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REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA
TUESDAY, APRIL 5, 2011

5:00 P.M. - 8:00 P.M.
Board Room, Plaza Level (2nd Floor), Education Centre
515 Macleod Trail SE, Calgary, Alberta

Conflict of Interest reminder: Trustees must disclose any potential pecuniary interest in any matter before the
Board of Trustees, as set forth in the agenda as well as any pecuniary interest in any contract before the Board
requiring the Board’s approval and/or ratification.

TOPIC

Agenda

Verbal

1.0

2.0

3.0

3.1

4.0

5.0

51

52
53

54

55

Who
CALL TO ORDER, NATIONAL ANTHEM AND WELCOME Chair
CONSIDERATION/APPROVAL OF AGENDA Chair
SCHOOL/SYSTEM PRESENTATIONS
Marion Carson School D. Yee

HONOURS AND RECOGNITIONS
PUBLIC CONVERSATION AND INFORMATION
Report from Chair and Trustees

Report from Chief Superintendent

Public Question Period

(An opportunity for the public and/or stakeholders to raise questions and seek .
clarification on educational matters with the trustees. Fill out “Public Question Public
Period” form on the table in the foyer and submit to the Corporate Secretary in

writing or electronically to corpsec@cbe.ab.ca no later than 5 hours prior to the

scheduled start time of the meeting. This form is also available in Appendix C of

the Board Meeting Procedures. The person asking the question must be

present at the meeting.)

Stakeholder Reports

(An opportunity for stakeholder groups or the public to verbally address the Board for )
3 minutes on any educational issue, to a maximum of 5 reports per meeting. Advise Public
the Corporate Secretary at least 10 minutes prior to the commencement of the meeting

if you wish to do a stakeholder presentation.)

Trustee Inquiries

Time

5 min.

2 min.

15 min.

30 min.
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Who Time

ACTION ITEMS
Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School and All Programs F. Coppinger 30 min.
Contained Therein
Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015 F. Coppinger 45 min.
Trustee Taylor’s Motion Re: EL-5: Annual Report to the Public S. Taylor 15 min.
Trustee Bazinet’s Motion Re: Annual Monitoring of Board-Chief C. Bazinet 15 min.
Superintendent Linkage Policies - Amend GP-11E: Board of Trustees
Committees — Terms of Reference — Board Evaluation Committee
Trustee Bowen-Eyre’s Motion Re: Amendment to GP-5: Board of J. Bowen- 15 min.
Trustees’ Role Description Eyre
MONITORING AND RESULTS
Annual Monitoring of Ends 3: Citizenship N. Johnson 60 min.
POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW
CONSENT AGENDA 5 min.

Attach. TOPIC
6.0
P.6-13 6.1
P.6-1 62
P.6-8 6.3
P.6:6 6.4
P.6-85 6.5
7.0
P.7-1 71
8.0
9.0
9.1
P.9-33 9.1
P.9-12 912
p.9-3g 13
P.925 914
P.9-28 915
P.9-31 9.16

Board Consent Agenda

Correspondence
(THAT the Board of Trustees receives the correspondence for information and for the
record)

EducationMatters Quarterly Financial Report
(THAT the Board of Trustees receives the report for information and for the record)

Annual Monitoring of Governance Process Policies 1, 2 and 5
(THAT the Board of Trustees approves the monitoring reports re GP 1 ,2and 5 as
attached to the report)

Liaison Report — Calgary Association of Parents & School Councils (CAPSC)
(THAT the Board of Trustees receives the report for information)

Liaison Report — Alberta School Boards Association (ASBA)
(THAT the Board of Trustees receives the report for information)

Liaison Report — Board of Trustees Governance Committee
(THAT the Board of Trustees receives the report for information)
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Attach. TOPIC
9.2

P.9-1 9.2.1

P.9-10 9.2.2
10.0
11.0

11.0

Chief Superintendent Consent Agenda

Chief Superintendent’s Update
(THAT the Board of Trustees receives the report for information)

Adjustment to Annual Monitoring Schedule
(THAT the Board of Trustees approves the presentation of the monitoring report for

EL-6: Instructional Program in November of each year, beginning in the 2011-2012
school year)

TRUSTEE NOTICES OF MOTION
IN-CAMERA ISSUES

ADJOURNMENT Chair



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PUBLIC AGENDA
April 5, 2011
To: The Board of Trustess
From: Naomi E. Johnson, Chiel Superintendent of Schools
Re: Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School and all programs contained
therein
Purpose: Information and for the Record, and Approval of the Public Meeting Minutes

Governance Policy Reference: EL-1:  General Executive Constraint

EL-3:  Information, Counsel and Support 10 the Board of
Trustees
GP- 5E: Closure of Schools

Originator: Frank J. Coppinger. Supenntendent. Facilities and Environmental Services

Resource Persons:  Calvin Davies, Director. Community  Engagement and  Operational

Flanning

Dianne Yee, Director, Area |

Rod Peden, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
Janice Barkway. Director of Client Services, Lepal Affairs

RECOMMENDATION
It 5 recommended:

1. THAT the Minutes of the Public Meeting of March 9. 2011. attached to this report as
Attachment L. be approved by the Board of Trusiees. and

=

2. THAT this report be received for information and for the record.
ISSUE

The Board of Trustees’ Governance Policies and Procedures identify the formal process
that must be followed when clesure is being considered. Under the direction of the Board
of Trustees, the steps necessary to comply with the Board of Trustees' Policies and
Procedures relative 10 school closure have been undertaken.  This report 15 beinp
provided 1o document compliance and to assist the Board of Trustees with its further
deliberations,



Iv.

BACKGROUND

Where the Board i1s considering closure 1t must raise the matter through a motion at a
regular meeting of the Board. On Janwary 18, 2011, the Board of Trustees passed a
motion 1o proceed with a consideration of closure of Montgomery School. and all
programs contained therein.

The attached chart identifies the timelines and actions taken in compliance with the
Board of Trustees' Governance Procedures. { Attachment II- Relevant Excerpis from
GP-3E: Board of Trusiees ' Procedure-Considerarion of Closure of Montgomery Schaoof)

CONCLUSION

The Calgary Board of Education has complied with the requirements of the Board of
Trustees' Governance Policies and Procedures as set forth herein. The Board of Trustees
i5 now In a position to deliberate and to decide, by resolution. whether 1o close
Montgomery School and all programs contained therein,  Any such resolution mav be
considered as of March 31, 2011 and must be considered before the end of this current
school vear.

NADOMI E. JOHNSON
CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

Attachment 1 Minutes of the Public Meeting Respecting the Consideration of Closure of
Montgomery Schonl

Attachment 11: Eelevant Excerpts from GP-3E: Board of Trusiees' Procedure —
Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Attachment 111: Written Notice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery
School

Attachment [V: Record of Signs Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery
school

Attachment V: Record of Posters Respecting the Consideration of Closure Montgomery
School

Attachment VI: Record of MNewspaper Advertisement Respecting the Consideration of

Closure of Montgomery School

Attachment VII: Agenda Pubic Meeting for Montgomerv Schoal
Attachment VIII:  Letter to His Worship Mavor Nenshi Regarding the Consideration of

Closure of Monigomery School and the Citv's response to  this
correspondence

Attachment [X: Written Submissions Received afier the Public Mecting Respecting the

Consideration of Closure of Montgomerv Schoaol

g-14



Attachment I: Minutes of the Public Meeting Respecting the Consideration of Closure of
Montgomery School

Minutes of the Public Meeting
For the Consideration of Closure of Montzomery Schoaol,
and all programs contained therein

March 9, 2011

6-15



I ion

Minutes of the Public Meeting re: Consideration of Closure of Montgomery
School and All Programs Contained Therein, held in the Montgomery School
Gymnasium, 2116 MacKay Road NW Calgary, Alberta on Wednesday, March
9, 2011 at 7:00 p.m.

FEE T

Board of Trustees:

Ms. L. Ferguson, Vice-Chair, Trustee - Wards 3 & 4
Ms, C. Bazinet, Trustee — Wards 12 & 14

Ms. J. Bowen-Eyre, Trustee - Wards 1 & 2

Ms. P. King, Trustee - Wards 5 & 10

Ms. &, Taylor, Trustee - Wards 11 &13

Administrati

Mr. C. Davies, Moderator and Co-Chair of the Public Meeting

Ms. K. Barry, Meeting Co-Chair of the Public Meeting and Systerm Principal,
Community Engagement and Operational Planning { CEOP)

Mr. . Peden, Procedures Chair, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Ms. N. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools

Dr. D. Yee, Director, Area I

Ms. 1. Barkway, Assistant Corporate Secrefary

M=, D, Doll, Assistant Corporate Secretary

Mz, H, Numrich, Recording Secretary

ND INTROD

Copies of the Agenda entitled “"Board of Trustees, Calgary Board of
Education, Public Meeting, Discussion Respecting Consideration of Closure of
Montgomery School and All Programs Contained Therein, Wednesday, March
9, 20117, which also contained information with respect to Purpose of the
Meeting, Discussion Guidelines, and Written Submissions and Further
Questions, were made available to those present and submitted for the
record.

Mr. Davies, Director, Community Engagement and Operational Planning
(CEOP) called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. and noted he would be Chair
of the meeting and that the meeting had been arranged and convened by the
Board of Trustees of the Calgary Board of Education. He made introduction
of the Trustees present and the Calgary Board of Education (CBE)
Administration. He also noted the attendance of Mr. M. MacDonald, Principal
of Montgomery School and gave recognition to the teachers and staff
members that were in attendance.

DRAFT = Thess Minutes are subject w approval by the Board of Trustees
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Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School and all Programs Contained Therein
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Mr. Davies informed that the meeting was being recorded on video for the
purpose of maintaining an accurate internal record of the proceedings and he
noted that minutes would be available on the website at www.che.ab.ca prior
to the Board of Trustees making its decision.

OPENING REMARKS

Chief Superintendent N, Johnson expressed her welcome and presented the
following information:

"Good evening ladies and gentlemen. My name is Naomi Johnson. 1 am the
Chief Superintendent of the Calgary Board of Education. On behalf of the
Calgary Board of Education Administration I'd like to extend my thanks to all
of you for attending tonight's meeting and for the significant time
commitment that many of you have previously made in relation to this
matter.

Tonight's meeting has been convened by the Board of Trustees and our
Board Vice-Chair, Lynn Ferguson, who will be speaking to you shortly to
outline their role in the closure consideration process. Before you hear from
the Board Vice-Chair 1 wanted to speak with you about the advisory role and
the support role that Administration plays leading up to and following the
formal legislated closure process.

As many of you will already know, Administration’s Community Engagernent
and Operational Planning department initiated and coordinated the
engagement process with the community some time ago, most significantly
in October and November, 2010, to address the opportunities and challenges
associated with the possible closure of Mantgomery School and all programs
contained theresin.

Many of you here tonight, and many other members of the community, made
significant contributions to that initial work, either as a parent representative,
as part of focus groups, or simply in attending Open Houses and providing
the CBE with your feedback, and 1 want to express my sincere appreciation
te each and every one of you for the thoughtful and carefully considered
input you provided Administration to assist in this difficult work, That work
was undertaken as part of Administration’s advisory role to the Board of
Trustees,

That engagement process led to the preparation of an Administrative
recommendation that went forward to the Board of Trustees on January 18,

2011 and, after deliberation, the Board of Trustees did decide at that time to
consider the closure of the Montgomery School and all programs.

DRAFT - These Mimutes ure subpect o approval by the Board of Trustess.
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As I'm certain the Board Vice-Chair will tell you, the fact that the Board of
Trustees is prepared to "consider”™ this closure should in no way suggest that
any determination has already been made, and the fact is no decision has
been made to date.

Administration of CBE has made "recommendations” in the past, in relation to
matters such as this, that the Board has reviewed and as 2 conseguence of
input from the public, decided not to follow.

Because the Board of Trustees has sole authority and responsibility for the
closure consideration process, Administration’s role since January 18, 2011
has been, and will be, to provide the Board of Trustees, the schoaol
community and the general public with our full and total support in providing
relevant information and answers to guestions. I want to offer my assurance
to you tonight that throughout the process we will be doing just that.

So once again, on behalf of Calgary Board of Education Administration 1
welcome any questions or comments that you may wish to direct to me or
the team that is assembled here tonight, Howewver, we would ask you to hold
them until the open discussion questions and comments portion of this
evening.

Thank you.”

F THE MEETING AN

Mr. Davies welcomed Ms, L. Ferguson, Board Vice-Chair and Trustee of
Wards 3 B 4. Ms. Ferguson spoke about the Board of Trustees' role in the
closure consideration process, presenting the following information on behalf
of the Board of Trustees:

“"Good evening ladies and gentlemen. As the Meeting Chair has indicated,
I'm Lynn Ferguson, Trustee for Wards 3 & 4 and Vice-Chair of the Board of
Trustees of the Calgary Board of Education. On behalf of myself and my
fellow Trustees, 1 would like to speak to you briefly about the Board of
Trustees’ role in the closure consideration process.

On Tuesday, January 18, 2011, after discussion and debate at the regular
meeting of the Board of Trustees, a motion was passed by the Board to give
consideration to the closure of Montgomery School and all programs
contained therein.

The Board of Trustees has the sole responsibility and authority to make
closure decisions and I want to make it clear tonight that no decision has
been made at this time.

DPRAFT = Thess Minutes are subject to approval by the Board of Trusices
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Based on information provided to us by Administration, a Written Notice
Regarding the Consideration of Closure has been issued by the Board of
Trustees, but that is only part of the information that has been, and will be,
reviewed and considered by Trustees. In accordance with Alberta legislation
and the Board of Trustees' Gowvernance Policies and Procedures, before
making any final decision on a matter such as this, the Board follows a
process to secure additional community input.

That process involves providing important and relevant information to you -
the Written MNoftice - and reviewing it with you, It also invelves providing you
and other concerned members of the public an opportunity to impact our
decision by providing us with your input, Tonight, Trustees want to augment
our understanding of the information presented in the Written Motice by
hearing your observations, submissions and guestions. That is why the Board
of Trustees has organized and convened tonight’'s public meeting. Following
tonight's meeting, you will have an additional opportunity to ask further
written questions and make further written submissions,

Trustees, as the final decision makers, are here tonight to listen and to
observe.  Throughout tonight's discussion and throughout the closure
consideration process, Trustees will be paying very close attention to what
you have to say.

Al of the information collected during the closure consideration process will
be weighed very carefully by Trustees before any final decision is made.,

The Board of Trustees tentatively anticipates debating the merits of this
matter and making a decision regarding this program closure consideration
on Tuesday, April 5, 2011.

The Board's ongoing commitment is to provide educational programs and
services in  suitable facilities throughout Calgary, To honour that
commitment, we, as a Board, need to take into consideration student
populations, the demand for programs, our avallable resources, and any
other factors that may be significant. Although we certainly may consider
financial factors, such as costs of the school or the program, there are many
other equally important considerations that impact our examination of any
school's circumstances --- student enralment levels, our ability to resource
instructional programming, the health and safety of students, accessibility,
and on a system-wide basis, serving the overall interests of public education
within our jurisdiction.

Consideration of closure is a very serious matter to the Board of Trustees and
we clearly appreciate that it is very significant to the students, the parents

DRAFT — These Mimumes are subject o approval by the Beard of Trustees.
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and other concerned members of this community. Because of that, we want
to hear your input around this very Important matter. We look forward to
listening carefully tonight to your comments, cbservations and gquestions.

On behalf of the Board of Trustees 1 thank you.”

REVIEW OF THE WRITTEN NOTICE

Mr. Davies indicated that copies of the Agenda and Written Notice Regarding
Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School and All Prograrms Contained
Therein were available on the table at the back of the gymnasium. He
indicated that the public’s observations and questions form part of the
material that the Board of Trustees will consider as they review the potential
closures and ultimately make a decision. It was pointed out that the public
also has until 12:00 noon on Monday, April 4th, 2011 to submit written
follow-up gquestions and until 2:00 a.m. on Tuesday, April 5th, 2011 to
provide further written submissions to the Trustees regarding this closure
consideration,

Ms. K. Barry, Meeting Co-Chair and System Principal, CEOQP, gave a
PowerPoint presentation that provided an overview of the Written Notice,
The following is a summary of the presentation given by Ms. Barry.

The Issue

Enrolment at Montgomery Scheol is low and is projected to decline. The low
number of grades seven to nine regular program students from the
residential districts of Silver Springs and Montgomery makes it challenging to
provide regular programming for these students.

Rationale and Opportunities

Enrolment at Montgomery School is low in grades seven to nine making
programming, resourcing and organizing for student learning a2 challenge.

H.D. Cartwright School has the capacity to provide a grade seven to nine

regular program for students from the residential districts of Montgomery
and/or Silver Springs.

Thomas B. Riley School has the capacity to provide a grade seven to nine
regular program for students from the residential district of Montgomery,

F.E. Gsborne 5School has the capacity to provide a grade seven to nine
regular program for students from the residential districts of Montgomery
and/or Silver Springs. For the 2012-2013 school year, the enrolment at F.E.

DRAFT = These Minutes are subject to approval by the Board of Trustess
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Osborne School will decline as students residing in the residential district of
Tuscany will be designated to the new middle school in Tuscany.

Schools and Programs

Montgomery School

On page 2 of the Written Notice, the table provides instructional space and
the enrelment information for Montgomery School. The school has

instructional space to accommodate 765 students and as of September 30,
2010, had an enrolment of 201 students.

W

The second table on page 2 provides the enrolment at H.D. Cartwright
School. The school has instructional space to accommodate 515 students
and as of September 30, 2010, had an enrolment of 342 students. H.D.
Cartwright School also accommodates a short-term Behavior/Emotional

system class known as the Learning Essentials to Achieve Potential {LEAP)
class.

ACCESS acronym stands for- Attitude, Community, Competence, Elements of
Academic Curriculum and Social Skills.

Bridges is the name of a system class designed for students with emaotional
and behaviour challenges. {not an acronym)

E.E. Osborne School

The table on page 3 provides information related to the instructional space
and enrolment at F.E. Osbormme 5chool. The school has the capacity to
accommodate 7BS students and, as of September 30, 2010, had a total
enrclment of 615 students, For the 2012-2013 school year, the enrolment at
F.E. Osborne Scheol will decline as students residing in the residential district
of Tuscany will be designated to the new middie school in Tuscany.

H FFECTED AS

Current Attendance Areas

The map on page 3 illustrates the current attendance areas for Montgomery,
H.D. Cartwright and F.E. Osborne Schools, for the 2010-2011 school year,

Change of Designation
On page 7 of the Written Notice you will find the student designations that

will change if the Board of Trustees decides to close the grade seven to nine
program at Montgomery School, and all pregrams contained therein,

DRAFT — These Minutes are subsect e approval by the Board of Trusiess

6-21



Minutes of the Public Meeting — March % 2017
Consideration of Closure of Montgomery Schos| and all Programs Comaimed Therein
Page 7

«  Students in grades seven to nine residing in the residential district of
Montgomery would be designated to F.E, Osborne School.

Students in grades seven to nine residing in the residential district of
Silver Springs would be designated to H.D. Cartwright School or F.E
Osborne School; with 2 final designation decision to be determined.

«  Move in its entirety, the Learning and Literacy classes to Simon Fraser

School.
*  Move in its entirety, the Paced Learning Program class to F.E. Osborne
School.
Pr A reas

The map on page 4 illustrates the proposed attendance area, including the
residential district of Montgomery, for the regular program at F.E. Osborne
School for the 2011-2012 school year.

The map on page 5 (llustrates the proposed attendance area, including the
residential district of Silver Springs, for the regular program at H.D.
Cartwright School for the 2011-2012 school year,

The map on page & illustrates the proposed attendance area, including the
residential districts of Silver Springs and Montgomery, for the regular
program at F.E. Osborne School for the 2011-2012 school year.

Impact on Attendance at Other Schools

Projected Enrolment at F.E. Osborne School

The table on page 7 provides the projected enrolment at F.E. Osborne School
assuming that Montgomery School, and all programs contained therein, is
approved for closure and the students from the residential district of
Montgomery and the system class are designated to F.E. Osborne Schoal.

Parents from the residential district of Montgomery indicated that
programming opportunities, distance to the school and transportation
services were high priorities. As a result of the engagement process, the
feedback substantiates Administration's recommendation that the students
residing in the residential district of Montgomery be designated to F.E.
Osborne School.

Designation to M, 0. Cartwright School or F.E. Qsborne School

Through the community engagement process, parents from the residential
districts of Silver Springs and Montgomery were given an opportunity to
provide feedback regarding three possible school designations (Thomas B.
Riley, H.D. Cartwright, F.E. Osborne). The parents from the residential
district of Silver Springs expressed interest in both H.D. Cartwright Schoal
and F.E. Osborme School. Programming opportunities, distance to the schoal

MEAFT — These Minutes are subject 1o approval by the Board of Trustees.
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and ftransportation services were high priorities for the Silver Springs
stakeholders.

As Administration gathers further feedback from the Silver Springs
stakeholders, a final determination regarding the designation of the grade
seven te ning regular program students from the residential district of Silver
Springs will be made and communicated prior to April 5, 2011, based on
further parent input.

Projected Enroiment at H.D, Cartwnght School

The table on page 8 provides the projected enrolment at H.D. Cartwright
School assuming that Montgomery School, and all programs contained
therein, is approved for closure and the students from the residential district
of Silver Springs are designated to H.D. Cartwright School. H.D. Cartwright
School has the capacity to accommodate the additional students from the
residential district of Silver Springs.

Projected Enrolment at F.E. Osborne School

The table on page 9 provides the projected enroclment at F.E, Osborme School
assuming that Montgomery School, and all programs contained therein is
approved for closure, and the students from both the residential districts of

Montgomery and Silver Springs are designated to F.E. Osborne School as well
as the system class.,

F.E. Osborne School has the space to accommodate the additional students
from the residential districts of Silver Springs and Montgomery and the
students in the Paced Learning Program system class.

As you can see in the highlighted green Tuscany line, for the 2012-2013
school year, the enrolment at F.E. Osborne School will decline as students
residing in the residential district of Tuscany will be designated to the new
middle school in Tuscany.

INFORMATION SECTION B: IMPLICATIONS RELATIVE TO CBE’'S
LONG-RANGE CAPITAL PLAN

Capital Plan

A decision to close Montgomery School, and all pregrams contained therein,
would have no implications relative to the CBE's long range capital plan which
Is comprised of the School Capital Plan 2011-2014 and the Ten-Year System
Student Accormmodation and Facilities Strategy.

The CBE's School Capital Plan 2011-2014 identifies project priorities for new
school/replacement school construction and preservation/major
modernization projects and is submitted to the Province on an annual basis.,

DREAFT = These Minutes are subject to approval by the Board of Trustees.
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The Calgary Board of Education's Ten-Year System Student Accormnmaodation
and Facilities Strategy provides the long range future project requests and
plans for CBE schools.

As noted on page 9 both documents are available from any CBE school or can
be accessed on the CBE website.

The web address is http://www, . che, ab.ca/aboutus/documents.asp and also
appears in the Written Notice.

INFORMATION SECTION C: IMPLICATIONS WITH RESPECT TO
BUSING

Administration anticipates that all students residing in the residential district
of Silver Springs will be eligible for transpertation to H.D, Cartwright School
or F.E. Osborne School. If Montgomery School and all programs contained
therein is approved for closure, it is anticipated that the current cost of
75,000 for transportation will be reduced to approximately $63,000,

resulting in an approximate savings of $12,000 to the Calgary Board of
Education.

There are no additional costs anticipated for transporting the students from
the two Learming and Literacy classes to Simon Fraser School and the
students from the Paced Learning Program class te F.E. Osborne School as all

three classes will continue to require charter bus service to their designated
schools.

The Administrative Regulation 6095-Student Transportation (Appendix 1)
provides information regarding the administration of transportation services.
It is also available on the CBE website and can be found at
http://www.cbe.ab.ca/policies/policies/ARG0S5, pdf

Appendix £ -provides the proposed Walk Zone for F.E. Osbarne School
Appendix 3 -provides the Proposed Walk Zone for H.D. Cartwright Schoal

Designated students residing outside the walk zone depicted in the map
would be eligible for subsidized transportation.

INFORMATION SECTION D: ED ING AND
STAFFING IMPACTS

Projected Enrolment for Montgomery School (Status Quo) if the Regular
Program is Not Closed

The table on page 10 provides the projected enrclment at Montgomery
School for September 2011, assuming that the school remains open (status
guo}. If the recommmendation for the proposed closure of Montgomery School

DRAFT — These Minutes are subect 1o approval by the Board of Trustees
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and all programs contained therein is not approved, Moentgomery School
would remain open with the current designations.

Educational Impact if Montgomery School is Mot Closed

With less than 150 students in the regular program in the school the ability to
meet the iearning needs and interests of a small number of regular program
students is challenging with fewer staff for the program. Funding is provided
on a2 per student basis via the Resource Allocation Method. Low and declining
enrolment makes resource allocation challenging with respect to the number
of teachers and the range of learning opportunities and supports available for
students.

Educational Impact if Montgomery School is Closed

If Montgomery School and all programs contained therein is approved for
closure, students from both the residential districts of Montgomery and Silver
Springs would have access to teachers with expertise in a wvariety of
disciplines and a larger cohort of peers, regardiess of which school they are
designated to.  This would provide more opportunities for flexibility in
organizing for learning, for grouping of students and for the development of
staff professional learning communities. Students would have access to
additional staff who offer extra-curricular and co-curricular activities.

If Montgomery School closes it is recommended that the students who are in
the Learning and Literacy (L & L) classes move to Simeon Fraser Schoaol
These students will have opportunities to be included in a larger variety of
regular program classroom environments as well as a broad range of extra-
curricular and co-curricular activities,

It is recommended that the students from the Paced Literacy Program ([PLP)
class move to F. E. Osborne School. These students will have opportunities
to be included in a larger range of extra-extracurricular and co-curricular
activities while also moving with their peers from Montgomery School,

Staffing Impact

Resources are allocated to schools based on a per school base allocation,
student enrolment and student profile. Should Montgomery School and all
programs contained therein be approved for closure, resource allocation
levels would be adjusted at F.E. Osborne School andfor H.D. Cartwright
School to reflect the projected student enrolment and profile for 2011-2012.
Further adjustments would be made should there be any discrepancy
between the projected student enroiment and profile and the actual
September 30, 2011 student enralment,

Based on the number and individual needs of students enrolled at the schoaol,
the principal, in consultation with their staff, determines how to effectively

DRAFT — These Minutes are subject 1o approval by the Board of Trostees
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allocate physical and human resources to best serve the learning needs of
students. As with all CBE schools, additional staffing decisions may take
place in the fall of each school year, based on September 30 actual student
enrolments, Teachers would be transferred as per the teacher transfer
process, in accordance with the CBE's current staffing processes, Support
staff in schools identified for transfer or layoff will be considered for
placement and recall in accordance with the Calgary Board of Education and
Staff Association Collective Agreement and current staffing processes.
Facility Operations staffing levels will be assessed in accordance with the CBE
and CUPE Local 40 Collective Agreement and caretaking staffing formulae
and practices.

INFORMATION SECTION E: FINANCIAL & CAPITAL IMPLICATIONS

The following are the Financial and Operational impacts should Montgomery
School, and all programs contained therein, close. Administration anticipates
a cost savings of approximately $272,000 related to the administrative cost
reductions associated with the proposed closure of the Montgomery School
facility.

A net savings of approximately $12,000 is anticipated due to the changes in
transportation for students from the residential districts of Montgomery and
Silver Springs (as defined above),

Dependent on the future use of the site, a savings of $140,000 for caretaking
and a decrease in wutility costs ranging from $25000 to $110,000 is
anticipated.

! cts

There are no known capital impacts associated with the proposed school
closure.

: FUTURE F,

The Calgary Board of Education does not have any plans to utilize the
Montgomery School facility for other CBE educational programming. An
opportunity to lease the facility or dispose of the bullding may be considered
in the future.

RESPONSES TO PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED OR ANTICIPATED
QUESTIONS

Mr. Davies indicated that the foliowing questions were either received before
this evening's public consultation meeting or are anticipated by
administration,
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Question: If Montgomery School closes, when will we know the
student designation for Silver Springs?

Response: PFarent and community feedback has been received on a number
of occasions., Feedback from tonight's meeting will also be
considered when making this administrative designation decision
and this will be communicated prior to the April 5" Board
Meeting.

Question: What is the five year projection for F.E. Osborne School
should the residential districts of Montgomery 5Silver
Springs be designated there?

Response: A graph was displayed showing the 5 year projection for F.E.
Osborne School if Montgomery School is approved for closure
and if the students from both the Montgomery and Silver
Springs residential districts are designated to this school. F.E.
Osborne School has instructional space for 785 students and
728 students are projected for September 2011. The enrolment
at the school decreases significantly in 2012, as the Tuscany
Middle School opens. Enrolment at F.E. Osborne School is
projected to remain stable into the foreseeable future.

Mr. Davies provided directions on how to find information regarding any
proposed CBE closure on the CBE Homepage at www.cbhe. ab.ca. AL the
Board of Trustees webpage click School/Program Closure Consideration link
in the navigation pane aon the left hand side of the page. Whether you
navigate through the CBE Homepage or through the Trustee's webpage, you
will come to the School/Program Closure page.  All proposed closures are
listed with a link to more specific information and links to documents related
to each proposed closure,

OPEN DISCUSSION - COMMENTS & QUESTIONS FROM PARENTS AND
PUBLIC

Mr. Davies provided a brief review of the discussion guidelines, which are
noted on the back of the Agenda. He reiterated that the Trustees were
present to hear the public’'s input and that they will ultimately be the sole
decision makers regarding the status of the Consideration of Closure of
Montgomery School and all Programs Contained Therein, and it would not be
appropriate in the middle of the process for Trustees to respond directly to
guestions or to engage in debate. He asked that questions be directed to
him as the meeting Chair and he would provide a response or he would direct
the question to an appropriate CBE Administrator for response.
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Mr. D. Marsh guestioned if Montgomery School closes, what would happen
to the property, what is the land value and where would the money go if it
were sold?

Mr. Davies replied that there is no determination at this point in time as to
what the use of the school will be if a2 decision to close is made. The school
closure process will be followed and Trustees will make the final decision. He
noted that disposal of property is one option that could be considered and
would require approval from the Minister of Education. He also stated that
there has been no assessment done of the property value at this point,

Mr. D. Marsh commented on the large size of Montgomery School and the
land that it occupies. He suggested the idea of down sizing the school and
selling the remaining land to developers. His idea would be to put some of
the profit back into the school to make It more viabile.

Mr. Davies replied that part of the school closure process includes looking at
various options. He noted that capacity is a significant factor affecting this
closure consideration. There are various opportunities available for students
in Area I, including F.E. Osborne School, He stated that the mast crucial
point regarding Montgomery School is that the low enrolment makes it
difficult to provide adequate programming and resources, which are now
being supported by the Area office.

Mr. D. Marsh stated that the enrclment at Montgomery School declined
when the Tuscany students left to attend their own new community school.
He inguired if it would be less costly to provide busing from the new
communities to the inner city schools, rather than building new schools?

Mr. Davies stated that they do realize that a new school in one community,
results in low enrolment elsewhere; however, it is important o0 move
students closer to home. He noted that it is a challenge as the new
community is pleased, while the other iz not.

Ms. M. Wannamaker, a parent of a student at Montgomery School and
member of the Montgomery community, guestionad the transportation cost
savings of $12,000 noted in the report should this closure consideration be
approved. She stated that the Montgomery students who reside in
Montgomery walk to school now and that by bussing them to other schools
transportation costs would increase,

Mr. Davies replied that a decrease in enrolment is forecasted in both the
Silver Springs and Montgomery communities, It is projected that they will
only need two buses next year, rather than three for the Silver Springs
students. The Montgomery students would be transported by Calgary
Transit, amounting to a cost savings to the CBE of $12,000.
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Ms. M. Wannamaker noted that bus training is provided for kindergarten
and grade one students who are designated elsewhere and inguired if there
would be any bus training for Montgomery students that haven't taken a bus
before?

Mr. Davies informed that should Mantgomery School close, a transition plan
would be developed for students by the principals and staff at the school. He
suggested that there is a good possibility that the transition might include a
tour of the new schocl and students could take the transportation that they
would be using to get there.

Ms. M. Wannamaker inquired If there had been any consideration given to
moving some of the Montgomery School teachers with the students in order
to provide some familiarity for students.

Dr. Yee replied that when a school is closed, a process is followed where
teachers are asked what their preferences would be as to where they would
like to be placed. They also give consideration to moving a group of
teachers, when possible, in order to stay with the students.

Ms. M. Wannamaker commented that it is her belief that F.E. Osborne
School will alse be losing a considerable number of students to the new
Tuscany Middle School and that some of the F.E. Osborne teachers may
follow those students to the new Tuscany school. She inguired If the number
of specialty teachers could be increased in order to ensure that specialty
classes such as drama, band, and shop would be available at both schools?

Dr. Yee responded that the specifics have not been dealt with yet. She noted
that the principals of both F.E. Osbome and H.D. Cartwright Schools were in
the audience and that many parents had already met with them and
attended an open house. She stated that the Area 1 junior/middle school
leadership meet on a regular basis to ensure that all schools have well
rounded programs and teacher expertise.

Ms. M. Wannamaker commented that her grade 7 child is currently in a
transition yvear and that if Montgomery School closes, next year she will
transition again and grade 9 will be her only stable year of junior high. She
requested that next yvear students be provided with as much continuity as
possibie.

Dr. Yee replied that when students are mowved as many connections as
possible are made with the school they are moving to. This starts in the
spring with student/parent groups meeting with administration, guidance
counselors, resource teachers, etc. She noted that principals are very caring
and it is important for parents to make connections with their child's teachers
and principals at whatever school they attend.
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Ms, M. Wannamaker inguired if junior high/middle school students could be
designated to the same high school in order to stay with their friends.

Dr. Yee responded that the communities of Montgomery and Silver Springs
would be designated to Bowness High School. She noted that in 2013 there
will be three North West high schools including a new North West high schoaol,
Bowness High School and S5ir Winston Churchill High Schaol. Transfers are
considered when there is space available; however it is not always possible.
She noted that another factor is that students are in a variety of alternative
programs as well,

Ms. D. Bamlett, a parent of a student at Montgomery School, commented
that she has a son with & physical disability who began his schooling at
Parkdale Elementary 5School and experienced that closure. After an
unsatisfactory experience at Queen Elizabeth School, she chose toe home
school her child for the early years and he now attends Montgomery School
where he is happy, comfortable, has friends and gets the help that he needs.
It is her belief that parents feel that the decision has already been made to
close Montgomery School and that they are frustrated as their taxes are
going up and their property values going down because they are losing their
amenities.

Maddi, a student from Montgomery School, questioned if Administration had
considered the effect this transition would have on students?

Mr. Davies replied that their focus is on students. Students come first and
the angst, stress and emotion is understood. It is their hope to make the
transition as smooth as possible, including the possibility of moving with their
friends and possibly some familiar staff as well. He noted that the focus on
the climate and culture of how students treat each other is also important at
H.D. Cartwright School as well as F.E. Osborne School., He expressed that it
is his hope that she will be able to look back and see that her new school has
been a great school as well.

Ms. V. Streets, a parent of two children in a special education program,
expressed her concern regarding the larger class sizes and a larger school,

Dr. Yee stated that at this point the recommendation is that Paced Learning
Pragram (PLP} students would also move to F.E. Osborne School. She
informed that in this type of class the teacher and education assistants
usually move with the students; however that is open to parental input. The
location of the class would be discussed with the principal to see where it
would provide the best security, comfort, etc. for students. Students would
be integrated into the larger student body only when ready to do so. She
also expressed that It is important for parents to discuss their child's needs
with the principal. Dr. Yee shared of her own experience and expertise
related to students with exceptional needs. As a former principal at Lord
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Beaverbrook High School of 2,000 students, there were a number of system
classes, She expressed her understanding of the initial fear of large numbers
but provided reassurance that the teachers and other students care and help
to make sure they are safe. She encouraged parents stating they might be
pleasantly surprised.

Ms. L. Raubach, a parent of a grade 7 student, inguired why the grade 7
students were designated to Montgomery School this year when the
projected enrolment was so low. She noted that there are only two
communities assigned to Montgomery School and she believes that this is
what contributed to the low enrolment.

Mr. Davies replied that the consideration of closure process began for
Montgomery School as far back as 2006. On March 10, 2010 staff from CEQP
met with a parent group at Montgomery 5chool, and as this was an election
year, the process continued in October, 2010 after the election with the
Montgomery and Silver Springs communities,

Dr. Yee informed that enrolment at Montgomery School declined significantly
more than was projected resulting in approximately 200,000 less revenue.
The Area office has had to supplement the school in order to offer a2 viable
program to students.

She stated that the 200772008 accommodation pilan indicated low and
declining enrolment in the Regular Program across the Bow corridor and
Bowcroft, Montgomery and Terrace Road Schools were identified at that time.
The 2009/2010 enrolment at Montgomery School was 313 students. Last
spring it was projected that there would be 243 students for 2010/2011 and
as a result five teachers were surplused as well as one .6 FTE support staff.
The actual enrolment in September, 2010 was 201 students, resulting in a
loss of approximately$200,000 revenue to the school, They have been able
to maintain the school by the support of the Area office and very dedicated,
hard working staff.

Ms. L. Raubach commented that as a Silver Springs resident it was
unfortunate that parents were not informed of the plan, or of a definite
closure date. It is her belief that many of her neighbors chose not to send
their children to Montgomery School because of the rumors of closure and
that if they had been more informed, enrolment might have been higher and
the school would be able to stay open longer. She also gave her opinion that
the small size of the school is beneficial to students as the students know
each other and are able to build relationships, which she believes is much
harder to do at a larger school.

Mr. B. Hnatiuk, a Montgomery parent and Silver Springs resident, agreed
that the low enrolment could be a result of the closure rumors, He compared
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it to when people hear rumors of a bank closing because it is going bankrupt
and people withdraw their money and it does go bankrupt. Mr. Hnatiuk
inquired if there was any public advertisement of space availability at
Montgomery School and an opportunity for other students to attend from out
of area?

Mr. Davies responded that to his knowledge there was no direct signage in
this regard, however, he noted that there is always opportunity for out of
boundary students to attend all Calgary Board of Education schools if there is
space available.

Mr. B. Hnatiuk inguired if there was any opportunity given to the
Montgomery School parent council to come up with an alternate plan to
attract other students, ie. alternative programs.

Mr. Davies informed that this is a commonly asked question, whether offering
an alternative program would lead to increased enrolment. He stated that
there are many opportunities in Area [ for alternative language programs
already. He noted that consideration had been given to offering a science
program in Area I, but they did not receive an adeqguate level of interest
when the meetings were held in order to proceed.

Mr. B. Hnatiuk commented that he has friends in other areas of the city
where alternative programs were offered and their schoaol was not closed as a
result. He commented that he feels short changed as Montgomery School
was not given that opportunity, noting that his own daughter attends the
Spanish program at Senator Patrick Burns School and that if that program
were offered at Montgomery School, she would attend there with her brother.

Mr. B. Hnatiuk questioned why smaller class sizes were seen as a reduced
learning opportunity? In his opinion, smaller classes offer a better learning
environment,

Mr. Davies explained that provingcial funding to a school is based on per
student enralment.

Dr. Yee stated that class size is an issue for students from Kindergarten -
Grade 12. The CBE endeavors to keep class sizes as small as possible, but
schools need to be sustainable. She stated that right now the Area 1 office,
which oversees 35 schools, is spending over one third of its budget to keep
the Instructional program at Montgomery School operating. She informed
that the average class size for middie/junior high is 24-26 students and that
in order to run a school effectively, certain class sizes are necessary.

Mr. B. Hnatiuk expressed thanks to the principal at H.D. Cartwright School
for the open house held for Montgomery School students. He felt that they
did a wanderful job to make them feesl welcome,
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Ms. 5. Evans, a parent of a grade 8 student at Montgomery School,
guestioned if other communities were considered for designation to
Montgomery School in order to increase enrolment?

Mr. Davies informed that they did consider whether there were other
communities in Area 1 that could be re-designated to Montgomery School;
however, there were none as they are all currently designated to other
schools, He stated the challenge is that when new districts have no schoaol,
students are bused to schools where there Is capacity, then a new school is
built and students are moved closer to home. Sometimes established
neighbornoods receive students from further away areas and over time space
becomes available for students to attend a school closer to home, This Is
generally seen as very positive by those communities.

Ms. 5. Ewvans commented that the students who reside in the community of
Rocky Ridge would be closer to Montgomery Scheool than where they are
currently being bused to Simon Fraser School. It is her belief that this
contributed to the low enrolment at Montgomery School,  She further
commented regarding the developmental stage that students are at when
they experience transition and requested that this be given consideration. It
is her opinion that the small size of Montgomery Schoo! enrolment has been
very wvaluable in contributing to a close community. Ms, Evans suggested
that if Montgomery School is closed that Montgomery students be designated
to H.D. Cartwright School. It is her belief that it would be a better fit
pecause If they move as a cohort group, they will take up a larger percentage
of the total student population there than they would at F.E. Osborne School
making the transition easier.

Ms. L. Josue, a new community resident, questionsd what is the
instructional space at Montgomery School and does it include both buildings?

Mr. Davies stated that the two Montgomery school buildings have been
combined into one school and that there is instructional space in both, The
main building has 1& classrooms, approximately 400 spaces, He informed
that at one time there were two schools, Mackay Elementary and
Montgomery Junior High School.

Ms. L. Josue expressed her opinion that If a portion of the school were
leased or sold it would be good for the community as it would be a capital
gain for the neighborhood and the portion of the school that would be still
operating would have a lower capacity ratio.

Ms. L. Josue inquired what is the student/teacher ratic at F.E. Osborne
School.
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Ms. M. Russell, Principal of F.E. Osborne School, responded that there are 32
certified staff at F.E. Osborne School with an average class size of 25-26
students.,

Ms. L. Josue commented that she understands the financial situation in that
Montgomery School cannot operate with low enrolment; however, it is her
belief that the community of Montgomery is a growing, viable neighborhood
ahd that businesses opening in the area will draw more people. She
commented that Mayor Nenshi is encouraging arowth in the inner city
nelghborhoods and believes that Montgomery parents also want their
children to be able to walk to school. She stated her opinion that it would be
a detriment to close the school.

Ms. Josue stated her opinion that it would make more financial sense to close
F.E. Osborne School instead of Montgomery School because the Tuscany
students will leave F.E. Osborne School to attend the new school in their
neighborhood and the other two neighborhoods designated to F.E. Osborne
School are mainly from the communities of Varsity and Hawkwood., She
noted that Hawkwood is closer to H.D. Cartwright School and expressed her
view that it would make better financial sense for them to be bused there.

Ms, Josue shared of her own experience attending a very large school in
Calgary, 5ir John A. MacDonald, which, at the time, was the largest junior
high school in the city with over 900 students. She stated that her
experience was not positive as the students were divided in half in order to
co-ordinate the time table and many of them did not know each other. She
noted that although there were more special programs offered, there was
often only one teacher and too many students who wanted to take the class,
so they rarely got their first choice.

Ms, C. Sanders, a resident of Montgomery, guestioned if consideration had
been given to offering a Science School program at Montgomery School and
if 50, would it have started at Kindergarten or junior high?

Mr. Davies stated that an expression of interest was done in Area 1 to see if
there was any interest in a Science School program from Kindergarten -
Grade 5. Upon review it was felt that there was not sufficient interest. They
will continue to monitor this with the Area director o see |f this becomes a
possibility in the future.

Ms. L. Josue requested that if Montgomery school were to close that the
current grade 8 and 9 students be given the opportunity to finish out their
junior high years at Montgomery School.

Ms. L. Raubach inguired if there were any health concerns regarding the
age of the Montgomery School building?
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Mr. Davies responded that there were no concerns regarding health or the
building structure for students and staff at Montgomery School.

Mr. B. Hnatiuk inguired if Montgomery School were to close, would

transportation be provided by a chartered school bus for Silver Springs
students to H.D. Cartwright School?

Mr. Davies replied that transportation would be provided by chartered buses

to H.D. Cartwright School for Silver Springs students, if Montgomery School
were to close,

Ms. M. Beach inguired if there had been a questionnaire sent home to every
student at Montgomery School to provide their feedback regarding the
consideration of closure? She expressed her view that after the considerable
amount of time spent on this process, it is her belief that the decision has
already been made to close the school.

Mr. Davies responded that there were opportunities for students to provide
feedback and that they did get some workbook feedback from some students
but that it did not go to all students. He expressed his agreement that it is a
good idea to get student feedback and that there will be further opportunity
for students as the process continues. He further noted that Administration
does not make the final decision regarding school closures and that it is the
Board of Trustees who will make the final decision,

Mr. S. Dalgleish, a parent of three students, two that attend Montgomery
School in grades 7 and 9, expressed his appreciation for the work of CBE
staff and Administration. He guestioned in an area with four schogls (two
small, two large} in close proximity to each other, why was the larger
capacity school chosen for closure?

Mr. Davies responded that Administration looks at the bigger picture of the
overall capacity in Area 1 as well as the Ten Year System Student
Accommodation and Facilities Strategy that reaches across all geographic

areas of the CBE. Opportunities to have students attend schooi closer to
home are considered.

Mr. 5. Dalgleish questioned if flexibility would be lost in the Ten Year

Strategy if they chose to keep the larger capacity school [Montgomery
School) open?

Mr. Davies responded that both the Ten Year Plan and the Three Year Plan
are important mechanisms that are used to inform the public of how
Administration is trying to plan ahead. Demographics and growing, maturing
and developing communities have all been factored in.

Mr. 5. Dalgleish questioned if there was potential for the same situation to
happen again at F.E. Osborme and H.D. Cartwright schools?
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Mr. Davies responded that he can’t say definitely "no”, but that the leng term
(3-5 years) projections look stable for those locations. He also noted that
the Ten Year Strategy could assist in enrolment at those locations.

Mr. S. Dalgleish inguired how many of the four schools in Area [ rely on
portable classrooms?

Mr. Davies responded that F.E. Osborne and H.D. Cartwright Schools each
have two portables, while the other two schools do not.

Mr. 5. Dalgleish inquired how the energy costs compare at each of the four
schools?

Mr. Davies stated that the energy utilization was comparable between
Montgomery and F.E. Osborne Schools, but significantly higher for
Montgomery as compared to the other two schools.

Mr. 5. Dalgleish commented that there was a significant decrease in the
enrolment at Montgomery School, from 600 to 200. It is his observation that
designation decisions can be made that increase or decrease capacity. He
requested that Trustees factor this in to their decision making. He further
requested that Trustees be strategic regarding capital assets and their long
term use. It is his opinion that it is a good choice to consider closure of one
of the four schools, but questions if the process should have been inclusive of
maore than one school. He again expressed his thanks to the Trustees and
staff for their time and for the opportunity to attend the meeting.

CLOSING REMARKS

Mr. Davies thanked everybody for attending the meeting and for providing
respectful comments and input, He directed attention to the back of the
agenda and reminded those in attendance that follow-up guestions from this
meeting must be received by the CBE on or before Monday, April 4, 2011.
He peointed out that it s not possible to direct personal responses to each
guestion; that all questions submitted would be reviewed for relevancy and
repetitiveness and those selected for response would be answered on the
Calgary Board of Education website at http!//www.cbe.ab.ca.

Mr. Davies noted that it is anticipated that the board meeting to discuss and
make a decision regarding the consideration of closure of Montgomery School
and all programs contained therein by Tuwesday, April 5, 2011. The public's
observations, comments and guestions are valued and will form part of the
material that Trustees will consider as they review the matter and ultimately
reach a decision. He advised that the public's input at the meeting this

evening has been an important contribution to the Board of Trustees
decision-making process.
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Mr. Davies declared the meeting closed at 9:02 p.m.

| E E:

The Minutes of the Public Meeting re: Discussion Respecting Consideration of
Closure of Montgomery School, held in the gymnasium, 2116 MackKay Road,
NW, Calgary, Alberta on Wednesday, March 9, 2011 at 7:00 p.m. include the
major points of discussion - they are not a verbatim transcript of the
meeting.
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Consideration of School Closure:

Relevant Excerpts from GP-5E: Board of Trustees' Procedure -

I Action:

| In this Governance Procedure,
| (o) “closure” means any action referred to in section 2,
2 The Board mav
{a) close a school permanently or for a specified period of
time:
| ih close entirely three or more consecutive prades in a
school;
{c) transfer all students from one school bulding 1o one or
more oiher school buildings on a permanent basis;
{dy  close the entire junior high school program or the entire
high school program in a school; or
el alter the configuration of a school such that a school
previously offering a regular program will, in the nexi
vear no longer do 507 or
(F} close the regular program in a school, at a fulure
proposed date, conditional on certain specified factors,
41)  Where the Board is considering the closure of a school. the
Roard shall
{a) raise the matter by way of a motion at a Regular Meeting
ol the Board, and

January 18, 2011 at a Regular Meeting of the Board — The
Board of Trustees passed the following motion:

BE IT RESOLVED, THAT ihe Board of Trustees is
satisfied that there is cause to proceed with a consideration

frage | of 8
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Helevant Excerpis from GP-58: Board of Trustees' Procedure —
Consideration of School Closure:

Action:

Page 2 of 8

(b

in writing notily the parents ol every child and student
enrelled in the school who, in the opinion of the Board,
will be significantly alTected by the closure of the school.

1A notice referred o in subsection (1Why shall set owt the

Schools Regulation and the Board of Trusiees’ Governance
Process Policy 5E: Board of Trustees' Procedure —
{onsideration of School Closwre, and

THAT THE Board lollows the procedures for the closure
ol schools, as outlined in Governance Policy GP-53E.
seclions 4 o 7,

March 3, 200 1— A Wrirten Notice o Parents/Guardians
{with enclosures) was provided to the parents’guardians of
stuclents currently enrolled at Montgomery School
{Atiachment T Written Novice Respecting the
Considereation of Closwure of Montgomery School - with
enclosures) Ty notice contained the mformation required
by the Board of Tristees Governance Procedures. Further,
a copy was posted to the CBE web site,

Prior 1o the public mecting scheduled for March 9, 2011
parents and guardians were provided with an opportunity

how the closure would affect the atendance at other | w submit written questions and comments related to the

following:

{) how the closure would affect the attendance area defined
for that school;

{h)
achonls;

{b.1)  information on the Board's long-range capital plan:

) the number of students who would need 10 be relocated
as @ result of the closure;

(dy  the need for, and extent of, busing;

i) program  implications for other schools and [or the

students when they are attending other schools;

consideration of closure,

The deadline For receipt of these questions o the Director
of Aren | was on or belore 12 noon Tuesday, March 8,
2011,

Mo submissions were received by the Director of Area |,
and one submission was received by the Trustees.
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Relevant Excerpis from GP-5E: Board of Trustees' Procedure —
Consideration of School Closure:

(1§ the educational and  lnancial impact of closing  the
school, including the effect on operational costs and
capital implications;

{g)  the cducational and financial impact if the school were to
Temain open;

{h) the time and location of the public meeting relerred to in

section 301 Ha);

4{3} A notice referred to in subsection (1xb) may set out the
following:

{a) the capital needs of the schools that may have increased
enrolment as a result of the closure, and

by the possible uses of the school building or space in the
school building if
(1} the entire school is being closed, or
(i) three or more consecutive grades in the school are
being closed entirely.

Actiom:

l

The written material provided to affected parents/guardians
supplied information regarding the CBE's School Capiial
Plan 20112004 and the Ten-Year System Student
Acvcommodation and Facilittes Straregy and indicated the
availability of these documents on the CBE web site

The written material provided 1o affected parents/guardians
indicated that, in the event of closure of the grade seven to
mine regular program at Montgomery School that the
school could be leased or disposed of in the Tuture,

Copies of the Written Notice were provided at the public
meeling for all attendees.

5{1) Where the Board has passed a motion at a Regular Meeting of
the Board that 1t is considering the closure of a school, the Board

{a)  shall organize amnd convene a public meeting for the
purpose of discussing the information provided to the
_ parents under section 4,

March 9, 2011 - A public meeting was held af
Montgomery School to discuss the program closure under
consideration. {Aftachment Vil Agenda Pubic Meeting for
Menigomery School)

At the conclusion of the public meeting il was announced
that follow up questions could be submitted 1o the Office

Fage 3 of &
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Attachment 11: Relevant Excerpis from GP-5E: Board of Trustees' Procedure — Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

ih)

()

Relevant Excerpts from GI-5E: Board of Trusiees' Procedure
Consideration of School Closure:

Action:

of the Board ol Trustees on or before 12:00 noon on

Monday, April 4, 2001 and written submissions by 9:00
a.m, on Tuesday, April 3, 2011,

shall provide an opportunity for the council of the
municipality in which the school is located to provide a
statement 1o the Board of the impact the closure may
have on the community,

may hold other meetings with respect 1o the closure af
times and places as the Board may determine

January 19, 2011 — A letter was sent {o the City of Calgary
advising of the motion 1o consider the closure Montgomery
School and inviting the Council to provide a stalement 1o
the Board of Trustees of the impact the closure may have
on the community, (Aftachment VIIT: Leiter to his Worship
Mavor Nenshi Regarding the Consideration of Closure of
Momtgamery Schood and the Cliy s response 1o this
covrespondence)

I'he date and place of the public meeting referred 1o in subsection

(1Wa) shall be

ta)

posted in live or more conspicuous places in the area or
areas of the school or schools affected by the closure, for
a period of at least 14 days belore the date of the public
meeting, and

The information required was posted 14 clear davs before
the public meeting in the required number of locations, as
follows:

Posters advertising public meeiing

Flyer-size notices indicating the date, place and fime of the
public meeting were posted on Wednesday. February 22,
2011 the consideration of closure Montgomery School,
Locations included:

«  Silver Springs Community Association- 5720
Silver Ridge Dr. N.W

= SOKO Out of School Program-3720 Silver Ridge

Dr. MW

Silver Springs School-7235 Silvermead Rd. MW,

W.0 Mitchell School- 311 Silvergrove Dr. N.W,

Mongomery Schoal- 2116 Mackay Rd. N.W.

Terrace Road School- 2103 46 51, N W,

Shouldice Memorial Pool- 5303 Bowness Rd. NW.

& & & & =

Page 4 of §
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Attachment 11: Relevani Excerpis from GP-5E; Board of Trusices” Procedore - Consideration of Clozare of Monigomery Sclool

Relevant Excerpts from GP-5E: Board of Trustees' Procedure -

Action:

o Bontgomery Community Association- 5003 16
Ave, N W,
fAvtachinent 1. Record of Posters Respecting the
Consiclerarion of Clesure of Monteomery Sehiool)

Road signs

Five signs were installed by February 22, 2011, and
remained until the public meeting on March 9, 2011,
The signs for Monigomery School were confirmed ai
the lollowing locations:
*  Montgomery School- 2116 Mackay Rd. N.W.
#  Silver springs Blvd, east of Nose Hill Dr.
= Corner of Silver Springs Blvd. and Silver Springs
Crate
*  Bowness Rd.. between Monserrat Dr. and Home
d.
o  Home Rd. and 52" St N.W.
fAttachment 11 Record of Signs Respecting the
Consideration of Closare of Monigomery School)

I"ublic Service Announcement
o Released on February 3, 2011

Web site
On January 19, 2011
e Consideration of School/Program Closures web
page created
o Created Web links to consideration of closure
project page from:

Page 5ol 8

= School web pages
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Attachment 11: Relevant Excerpts from GP-5E: Board of Trustees' Frocedure - Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Relevant Excerpts from GP-5E: Board of Trustees' Procedure —

Action:

Consideration of School Closure:

*  Areal page _
=  (CBE main home page

As ol March 3, 201 |
e The Written Nolice 1o Parenis was posted on the
closure consideration project page after senl home
o parenls.

On January 19, 2011
e A notice of the public meeting was located on CBE
public meetings calendar,

Adter public meeting was held, the document *Board of
Trustees” e-mail address for submissions’ was added to
consideration of closure page,

5(2) The date and place of the public meeting referred to in subsection
i 1Ma) shall be

ib)  mdvertised in a newspaper circulating within the area or
areas of the school or schools affected by the proposed
closure, on at least 2 eccasions as close as it is practicable
to the date of the meeting.

5(3) Al least two Trustees of the Board shall attend the public meeting
referred (e in subsection {1)ia)

Wednesday, March 2, 2011 and Saturday, March 5, 2011 -
[he required advertisemenis regarding the date, time and
location of the public meeting were placed in the Calgary
Herald and in the Calgary Sun newspapers.

Information was also posted on the Calgary Board of
Education web site prior to the public meeting.

fAnachment VI Record of Newspaper Adveriisement
Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Mentgomery
Sehood)

Five Trusiees were in attendance al the March 9, 2011
public meeting.

Page 6 of 8
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Attachment 11: Relevant Excerpts from GP-5E: Board of Trustees' Procedure — Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Relevant Excerpts from GI-5E: Board of Trustees' Procedure —
Consideration of School Closure:

Action:

Minutes of the meeting were prepared (Attachment [

Page 7 of 8

submuassions on the proposed closure (hat il receives afler the
public meeting referred to in section 5(1)(a).

{4)  The Board shall ensure that minutes of all public meetings held Muauies of Public Meeting Respecting the Consideration of
under this section are prepared. The minutes of the public Closwre of Montgemery School) and a draft copy of the
meetings shall include the major points of discussion. They are | Minutes of the public meeting was posted on the Calgary
nol & verbatim transeript of the meeting, Board of Education website,

The meeting is recorded audio/visually for internal
administrative purposes,
The Board has advised the public that it will decide
601) A Board shall not make a final decision on the proposed closure | whether 1o close the of the grade seven to nine regular
until at least three weeks have passed since the date of the public | program at Montgomery School on or about April 5, 2011,
meeling relerred to in section 5( 1 )(a) As of March 31, 2011 more than three weeks will have
passed since the date of the public meeting.
Monday, April 4, 2011 (before noon.) — This date and 1ime
{2} The Board of Trustees shall give due consideration 1o any written | was identified as the last opportunity For the Board of

Trustees to receive follow-up questions.

Tuesday, April 5, 2011 by 9:00 a.m.) — This date and time
was identified as the last opportunity for the Board of
Trustees 1o receive writlen submissions. Each Trustee
received a copy of each submission. For privacy reasons
they are not altached to this report. (Atlachment YT
Weritten Submissions Received affer the Public Meeting
Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery
Schoal) -these have been circulated only 1w Trustees and
retained lor the corporate record. Note: Questions were
received and those chosen for response were posted 1o the
website. Copies of all questions and responses are provided
o each Trusiee.

hembers of the _public were informed that the Board of
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Attachment 11: Relevant Excerpts from GP-5SE: Board of Trustees' Procedure — Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Consideration of School Closure:

Action:

Trustees would give due consideration o any submissions
received after the public meeting; at the time of this report,
one YourVoice submission and [our submissions were
received via the Board of Trustees’ office.

{3) The Board
{a) shall by resolution decide whether to close the school, and

by il the decision is 1o close the school, shall forthwith notily
the Ministers in writing of the decision

741 All School Closure procedures shall be imitiated and completed
within the school vear in which the decision to close the school 12
made.

{2)  Notwithstanding subsection (1), the Board may reguest
permission in writing from the Ministers 1o extend the school

closure procedures beyond one school year,

The procedure to consider the Closure of Monigomery

Scheoel and all programs contaimed therein began
January 18, 2011.

Fage 8 of §




Attachment ITT: Written Notice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

'l | Calgary Board of Education

OFFICE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Edcatian Cerdre
515 Mecieod Trall 5.E., Calgavy, Alberts Phoned05-204-8487 Fax' 4052048282

March 2. 2011
WRITTEN NOTICE REGARDING
CONSIDERATION OF CLOSURE OF
MONTGOMERY SCHOOL AND
ALL PROGRAMS CONTAINED THEREIN
INTRODUCTION

Al a Bepular Meeting on Tuesday, January 18, 2011, the Board of Trustess of the Czisary Board of
Education (CBE) passed a motion to consider the closure of Montgomery School and all programs
contained therein.  Motion 10 consider ¢losure does not mean that closure will occur — only thar the
peasibility of clasure will be considered. Mo closure decision will be made by the Board of Trustees until
parents and the public have had an opportunity to provide input with respect o this imporant community
matter,

A public meetng 15 scheduled in the Montgomery School gyvmnasium on Wednesday, March 9, 2011,
at 7:00 p.m. to discuss the closure under consideration'. The public meeting will provide those in
attendance with an opportunity to participate in & discussion respecting the information provided in this
notice. Parenis and interested members of the public will also have an opportunity ar the public meeting
Lo make statements or ask questions of Calgary Board of Education admunistraton.

The keyv issue is that enrolment at Montgomery Schoaol 15 low and 1s projected 1o decline, The
low number of grades seven to mine regular program students from the residential distncts of
Silver Springs and Montgomery makes it challenging to provide regular programming for these
students.

G-46



Attachment I11: Written Motice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

BACKGROUND

Az g way to effectively use space and resources for both educational programming and plant
operations and maintenance. the following were identified as both opportunities and challenges:
» Enrolment at Montgomery School is low in grades seven to nine making programming.
resourcing and organizing for student leaming a challenge.
e  H.D. Cartwright School has the capacity w provide a grade seven to nine regular program
for students from the residential districts of Montgomery and'or Silver Springs.
« F.E. Osborne School has the capacity to provide a grade seven to nine regular progeam
for students from the residential districts of Montgomery and/or Silver Springs.
« Thomas B. Riley School has the capacity to provide a grade seven to nine regular
program for students from the residential district of Montzomery.
« For the 2012-2013 school vear, the enrolment at F.E. Osborne School will decline as
students residing in the residential district of Tuscany will be designated to the new
middle schoal in Tuscany.

Kchools and Programs

Muontgomerv School
Instructional space available = 765
Enrolment as of September 30, 2010

GRT GRE GR9| Total
Montgomery 12 11 [T 40
Silver Springs 22 3 45 |06
Out OF Anendance Area 4 7 [2] <23
Svstern Classes (Leaming and Laeracy) 7 7 i 14
System Class (Paced Leamning Program) 5 Bl 13
Total 43 i) BY| 201
H.D). Cartwright School
Instructional space avadablke = 513
Enrolment as of September 30, 2010

GRT GRE GRS Toal
Dakouse iT 44 390 140
Ranchlands 33 48 45 126
Sherwood 12 11 il | -
O Of Amendance Area 3 7 4 16
Swvstemn Chass (ACCESS#®) | ) 2 G
Svstern Class (Bridges) 2 & 4
Total 90 119 133 342
*Anmede, Community, Competence, Ekments of Academic Cumiculum, Social Skills

H.D. Cartwright School also accommodates a shori-term Behavior/Emotional syvstem class
(LEAF),

Writen Mmice. Regarding ¢ ! o Cloggre oF Maompomery School and all programs comaned therein
Page X of 21
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Attachment 111: Written Notice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

F.E. Osborne School
Instructional space available = T83
Ermolment as of Sepiember 30. 2010

GR7 GRE GR9| Total
W arsit 41 54 55 150
Limiversity of Calme, 5 5
Hawkwood 5 T0 70[ 196
Tuscany 73 T3 85| 231
Outt of Attendance Area 14 9 10 33
Total 189 206 220f ol3

For the 2012-2013 school vear, the enrolment at F.E. Osborne School will decline as students
residing in the residential district of Tuscany will be designated to the new middle school in
Tuscany.

INFORMATION’ :
Section A: Implications For Affected Attendance Areas”

] A Decision to Close This School Would Affecr Anendance Areas’

The map below shows the current attendance areas for Montzomery, H.[D). Cartwright and F.E.
Osborne Schools, for the 2010-2011 school vear.

ey Sl e ey A

g e Current Attendance Areas
T enipomery BehosiFE. Oaboma Schealtll. Carbarighs Schoal .
L — gy BrogeE H
Wrrien Notice Regardmg Consaderation of Cleare of Mamgomeny Scnood aed all programs containgd thenan

Page 3ol 21
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Attachment 111 Written Motice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montzomery School

The map belew illustrates the proposed anendance area, including the residential district of
Montgomery. for the regular program at F.E. Osborne School for the 201 1-2012 schoal vear.

S

(113

Y

f

Legens F.E. Osborne School with Montgomery
o PR [Regular Program| !

Proposed Attendance Area | q

Written Mative Reganiing Corsideranon of Closune of Monzpameny School and all programs commnned thereir
Page 4 al 21
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Attachment I11: Written Notice Respecting the Consideration of Closare of Montgomery School

The map below illustrates the proposed attendance area, including the residential district of
Silver Springs. for the regular program at H.D, Cartwright School for the 2011-2012 school vear.

| —
3 @ L ST ':m Tl
Proposed Attendance Area 1
Lirgart H.D. Cartwright School with Silver Springs *'
n:;:n:.:w o (Regular Program) :

W rmen Baniee Beganlang Consideraion of Closure of Montgomen School and al programs comainad thereir

Pege 5 al 2]
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Artachment 111: Written Notice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Monigomery School

The map below illustrates the proposed attendance area, including the residential districts of
Silver Springs and Montgomery. for the regular program at F.E, Osborne School for the 2011-
2012 school year.

.
mu.:-':-q RO
Y ==
i Alre, [eit CRACE
T B 1 b
J-'Ihln.':\'t
5

DY OF Ca Tl

|
Proposed Attendance Area i
Lagend F.E. Osborne School with Silver Springs and Montgomery ‘%r
= T (Regular P
Ighmmm Arma gular Program) H
Wi hdtic: Regng Hi3 Cinsideraiuom of Chsure of Memgarer Schood and all programs conmined thems
Page & of 11
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Attachment IT1: Written Motice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Monigomery School

if) A Decision to Close This School Wouald Result in a Change in Designation for Some
Students

Should the Board of Trusiees decide to close the grade seven tw nine regular program at
Montgomery Schoal, and all programs contained therein, the students would be designated as
follows, effective the 2011-2012 school vear;

» Students in grades seven to nine residing in the residential district of Montgomery would
be designated 1o F.E. Osborne School.

*  Students in grades seven to nine residing in the residential diswict of Silver Springs
would be designated w H.D, Carmwright School or F.EE Osborne School; with a
designation decision to be determined.

= Move in its entirety, the Leaming and Literacy classes to Simon Fraser School.

o  Move in its entirety, the Paced Learmning Program class o F.E. Osbome School,

i) A Decision te Close This School Would Affect Attendance at Other Schools

Parents from the residential district of Montgomery indicated that programming opportenities,
distance to the school and transporlation services were high priorities.  As a result of the
engagement process. the feedback substantiates Administration’s recommendation that the
students residing in the residential district of Montgomery be designated to F.E. Osborne School.

The wble below provides the projected enrolment at F.E. Osborne School assuming that
Montgomery School. and all programs contained therein. is approved for closure and the
students from the residential district of Montgomery and the system class are designated 1w F.E.
Osbome School.

F.E. Osborne School
Instructional space avaiahl = 785
Projected o Seprember 2011

GRT GRE GRO| Towml
Varsiy 38 46 3B} 142
Limversity of Calgary 3 3 0 B
Hawkwood 52 57 7o} 135
Tuscany 86 74 75 235
Montzomery 14 13 12 39
Out of Anendarce Area 014 By 23
System Chss (Paced Leaming Program) ] 3 71 10
Total 193 212 237 642

F.E. Osborme School has the capacitv to accommodate the additional swudents from the
Montgomery residential district and the system class.

Wrinen Mocice Regeding Considerasion of Closure of Montgomery School and all pengrams corgaiged thenen
Pags: 7 a2l
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Attachment 111: Written Notice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery Schaol

Throwgh the community engagement process. parents from the residential districts of Silver
Springs and Montgomery were given an opportunity to provide feedback regarding three
possible school designations (Thomas B. Rilev, H.D. Cartwright, F.E. Oshorne). The parents
from the residential district of Silver Springs expressed interest in both H.D. Cartwright School
and F.E. Osbormne School. Programming opportunities, distance to the school and transportation
services were high priorities for the Silver Springs stukeholders. As Administration gathers
further feedback from the Silver Springs stakeholders. a final determination regarding the
designation of the grade seven to nine regular program students from the residential district of
Silver Springs will be made and communicated.

The table below provides the projected enrolment at H.D, Cartwright School assuming that
Montgomery School, and all programs contained therein, is approved for closure and the
students from the residential district of Silver Springs are designated 10 H.D. Cartwright School.

H.D. Cartwright School
Instructional space avafable = 315
Projected for September 201 |

GR7 GRE GR9| Total
Dalhousie 39 36 45 120
Ranchlands 42 3 47 123
Sherwoad 4 12 IZ[ 38
Sitver Springs 38 21 37 9%
O OFf Atendance Area 0 5 12
Svstem Class (ACCESS®) 3 2 4 i
Svstemn Class (Bridpes) & 2 I &
Total [38 112 153 403

*Aniude, Communiy, Competence, Elements of Academic Curricuben Social Skills

H.D. Cartwright School has the capacity to accommodate the additional students from the
residential district of Silver Springs.

Wries deoie: Regandmg Consideranion of Closwe of Morcgoseny Sehiool and all praprams comemes theren
Paze § o 11
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Altachment 111: Written Motice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

The table below provides the projected enrolment at F.E. Oshorme School assuming that
Montgomery School, and all programs contained therein is approved for closure, and the
students from both the residential districts of Montgomery and Silver Springs. as well as the
system ¢lass, are designated o F.E. Osborne School.

F.E. Osborme School
Instructional space availible = 785
Projected for September 201 |

GR7 GRE GRY| Touwl
Varsity I8 46 5B| 142
University of Calmary 3 3 a 8
Hawkwood 32 57 76| 185
Tuscamy g6 74 75| 235
Montgomery 14 13 12| 39
Sihver Springs 3 21 37 9%
Out of Anendance Area 0 14 9l 23
Svstern Class (Paced E_.Eammg Prﬂgl‘amll i 3 71 10
Total 231 233 274 738

F.E. Oshome School has the space to accommodate the additional students from the residential
districts of Silver Springs and Monigomery as well as the svstem class.  For the 2012-2013
school vear, the enrclment at F.E. Osborne School will decline as students residing in the
residential district of Tuscany will be designated to the new middie school in Tuscany.

Teationy Relaiive o . “apital

A decision to close Montgomery School, and all programs contained therein, would have no
implications relative to the CBE’s long range capital plan which is comprised of the School
Capital Plan 2001-2074 and the Ten-Vear Svstem Student Accommodation and Facilities
Strategv. The CBE's Schoal Capital Plan 2011-2074 identifies project pricrities for new
schoolreplacement scheol construction and preservation'major modernization projects and is
submitted to the Province on an annual basis. The Calgary Board of Education™s Ten-Fear
System Student Accommodation and Facilities Srrategy provides the long range future project
requests and plans for CBE schoaols.

These documents are available from anv CBE school or can be accessed on the CBE website at
htip:/wsoa, b.ca 5/ Nis.a

Ton T reations With R Sin

Administration anticipates that all students residing in the residential district of Silver Springs
will ke eligible for transportation to H.D. Camaright School or F.E. Osbome School.  If
Montgomery School and all programs contained therein is approved for closure, it is anticipated
that the current cost of 373,000 for transportation will be reduced to approximately 563,000,
resulting in &n approximate savings of $12.00H 1o the Calgary Board of Education.

Wrinmen Modies Regarding Consideratim ol Chrsune of Montpomery School and =il programs comamed therein
FPage S a2l
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Attachment I1E: Written MNotice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

There are no additional costs anticipated for transporting the students from the two Leaming and
Literacy classes to Simon Fraser School and the students from the Paced Learning Program class

to F.E. Osbome School as all three classes will continue to require charter bus service 1o their
designated schools.

Appendix 2 provides the Proposed Walk Zone Map for F.E Qshorne School, Appendix 3
provides the Proposed Walk Zone Map for HD. Cartwright School.  Designated students
residing outside the walk zone depicted in the map would be eligible for subsidized
Iransportation.

Administrarive Regulation 6093-Snudent Transporiation is available on the CBE website at

ttp:/fwww . che.ab.capolicies'policies/ U3 pdf and provides information regarding the
administration of transportation services. Also, see Appendix | - Transporiation Information
2010-2011 for a summary of transportation eligibility criteria, fees and parent/guardian
responsibilities relating 1o student transportation.

on f3: fEdL] ing and Staffing Impacts
i The Educational Impact Associated With Non-Closure of This School
Enrolment in the grade seven to nine regular program at Montgomery School is low and
praojected o decline.  The wble helow provides the projected enrolment at Montgomery School

for September 201 |, assuming that the school remains open (status quo).

Montgomery School
Instructional space available = 765

Projected for Sepiember 201 |

GR? GRE GR9| Tounl
Montgomery 4 13 12 39
Silver Springs 3821 37| 96
Crut Of Anendance Area 0 4 7 I
System Classes (Learning and Lieracy) 7 T a6 20
Svstem Class (Paced Ln:am'nf.: F'mgmmb ] 3 710
Total 3 48 69 178

If the recommendation for the proposed closure of Montgomery School and all programs
contained therein is not approved, Montgomery School would remain open with the current
designations.  With low enrolment in the school. the ability to meet the learning needs and
interests of students is challenging. Funding is provided on a per student basis via the Resource
Allocation Method. Low and declining enralment makes resource allocation challenging with
respect to the number of teachers and the range of leaming opportunitics and supports available
for students.

Weien haties Regardimp Comaderation of Closere of Montgomery Schodl ond all programs costaned theremn
Fage 16 of 21
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Attachment I11: Written Motice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery Schoal

i The Educational Impact Associared With Closure of This School

If Montgomery Schoal and all programs contained therein is approved for closure. students from
both the residential districts of Montgomery and Silver Springs would have access 1o teachers
with expertise in a variety of disciplines and a larger cohort of peers, regardless of which school
they are designated to. This would provide more opportunities for flexibility in organizing for
learming, grouping of students and for the developmen: of staff professional leaming
communities, Students would also have access o staff who could offer extra-curricular and co-
curricular activities.

If the Leamming and Literacy classes are moved to Simon Fraser School. sudents will have
opportunities to be included in a large variety of regular program classroom environments as
well as a broad range of extra-extracurricular and co-curricular activities.

If the Paced Leaming Program class is moved w F.E. Osborne School, students will have the
opportunity to be included in a larger range of extra-extracurricular and co-curricular activities
while also moving with students from Montgomery School.

i) The Staffing Impact

Resources are allocated to schools based on a per school base allocation, student enrolment and
student profile. Should Montgomery School and all programs contained therein be approved for
closure, resource allocation levels would be adjusted at F.E. Osbome School and H.D.
Carmwright School o reflect the projected student enrolment and profile for 2011-2012, Further
adjustments would be made should there be any discrepancy between the projected student
enralment and profile and the actual September 30, 2011 smdent enrolment.

Based on the number and individual needs of studemts enrolled at a school, the principal, in
consultation with their staff, determines how to effectively allocate physical and human
resources to best serve the leaming needs of students. As with all CBE schools, teacher staffing
decisions take place in the fall of each school vear, based on September 30™ actual enrolments.
Teachers would be transferred as per the teacher transfer process. in accordance with the CBE's
current staffing processes.

Support staft would be identified for transfer/layvoft and considered for placement and recall in
accordance with the Calgary Board of Education and Staff Association Collective Agreement
and current staffing processes. Facility Operations staffing levels would be assessed in
accordance with the CBE and CUPE Local 40 Collective Agreement and caretaking staffing
formulae and practices,

Wnnen Mnice Regarding Corssleration of Closune of Monigomen: Scnool and all progroms contained theran
Page 1i o1l
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Attachment 111: Written Motice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montzomery School

Section E: Financial and Capital Implications

i) General Financial and Operational fmpacis

The following are the Financial and Operational impacts should Montgomery School, and all
programs contained therein, close. Administration anticipates a cost savings of approximately

§272,000 related to the administrative cost reductions associated with the proposed closure of the
Montzomerv School facility.

A net savings of approximately 512,000 15 anticipated due to the changes in transportation for
students from the residential districts of Montgomery and Silver Springs (as defined above
Section C: Implications with Respect 10 Busing).

Savings will alse be realized resulting from a decrease to caretaking staff ($140.000) and a

decrease in utility costs ranging from 523,000 w $110.000; dependent on the future use of the
sile.

i Capital Impacis
At this time there are no known capital impacts associated with the proposed school closure.

Section Fr Funire Faciline Plans

The Calgary Board of Education does not have any plans to utilize Montgomery School facility

for other CBE educational programming. An opportunity to lease the facility or dispose of the
building may be considered in the future.

Writen Malice Repamdeg Comsideration of Closure of Momgomery School ond ol programs comaimed themem
Page 121 af 2]
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Attachment 111: Written Motice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Trustees welcome vour views and input and invite you to provide comments to them directly or
through administration. Questions regarding the Board of Trustees” consideration of closure of
Montgomery School and all programs contained therein may be submitted in writing on the
amgched form, prior to 12:00 noon on Tuesday, March 8, 2011.

Atention: Dianne Yee. Director, Area |
Calgary Board of Education
c/o Parkdale Centre
T28-32 S, N.W,
Calgary, Alberta T2N 2V9
Fax: 403-777-8719
OR

E-mail directly to vourvoice@che.ab.ca

It is not possible w respond individually 1o questions or inguiries prior o the public meeting. Al
the public meeting, having reviewed questions for relevancy and redundancy. selected questions
will be answered. Should vour specific question(s) not be selected for response at the public

meeting. you will have ample opportunity to direct guestions to administration and you are
invited to do s0.

As outlined in the Board of Trustees’ Governance Policies and Procedures. the Board aof Trustees
shall not make a decision on the consideration of closure of Montgomery School and all
programs contained therein until at least three weeks have passed from the date of the public
meeting. The Board of Trustees will give due consideration to any written submissions on the
proposed closure that it receives afier the public meeting and prior 1o the final debate and
decision at a meeting of the Board of Trustees.

Y ours sincerely,

Pat Cochrane.
Chair of the Board of Trusiess
CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Amachments:

Appendix 1: Transportation Information 2010-201 |

Appendix 2: Proposed Walk Zone Map for F.E. Osborne School (if Montgomery School
and all programs contained therein are approved for closure)

Appendix 3: Proposed Walk Zone Map for H.D. Cartwright School (if Montgomery

School and all programs contained therein are approved for closure)
Form For Return:  Question Submission Form

Writken Notice Regarding Corsderation af Clesure of Monggomery Scnocd and all programs conmined thengir
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Attachment Il Written Motice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montsomery Schoal

Endnotes

"Pursuant to the School Act, R.S.A. 2000, Chapter 5-3 and its associated repulations, the power to close a school or
# szhool building or to fransfer thres or more consscutive grades in & program & a schoal housing more than one
education program resis solely with the Board of Trustees and cannot be delepated. The Board of Trustees'
Governance Policies and Procedures identify the formal process that will be followed when closure is being
considered. The Board of Trustees' Govemance Policies and Procedures relevani wo closure considerations are
available on the CBE's website. [n accordance with those process reguirements. the information in this notice i

provided 1o the parents'guardians of stodents registered at Montgomeny School and is available on the CBE web
sile,

* The Closure of Schools Regulation (AR 23897) and the Board of Trostees' Gevemance Policies gnd Procedures
are direcaive regarding the content of the Wrinen Notce, The favout of that information is discretionary. For ease of
presentation. the specific information set forth ar = 4 (23 and (3} of the Board of Trusiess” Governance Process
Policy GPAE: Board of Trusiees” Procedure — Consideration of 5chool Closure is st forth in this Wrinten Notice in
the foliowing fashion: 5. 4 {2} {a} (b) &(c) are comained within this docoment at Section A: Implications For
Affected Anendance Areas. Section 4 (21 (b.]) 15 contained within this documen: ar Section B: lmplications
Relative to CBE's Long-Range Capital Plan, Section 4 (2} (d) is contained within this document at Section
Implications With Respect o Busing. Section 4 23 (e} (f) & () are conmzined within this document ar Section [
Educational Programming and Staffing Impacts and Section E: Financial and Capital Implications, Section 4 {3} (b}
15 comiained within this document at Section F; Future Facility Plans.

* With respect w the informarion contained throughout this Writien Notice, please note that: Enrolment figures are
based on September 30. 2010 dam from SIRS (Studemt Information Records Svstem) / enrolment projections for
Seprember 301 1 are prepared by the Depariment of Community Enpagement and Operational Planning.

* The municipal boundaries associated with the eurrent attendance area for Montgomery Schoold is as follows:

MONTLOMERY SCHOOL 216 Mekay RD MW, T38 107
Maorth  32AN NW

East Shaganappi TR

South  Bow River

West  Bow River

* The municipal boundaries associated with the current attendance aren for F.E, OSBORNE SCHOOL

F. E. OSBORNE 5515 Varsity DR W, T3A 1A7

Morth  Crowchibd TR NW

East Crowchild TR NW south to 16 AV WW

South 16 AV NW, University DR, 24 AV NW_ south opposite Collegiate BRI WW (westem edge of University of
Calgary boundary) to 16 AY NW, 16 AV NW

West  Shaganappi TR NW, 32 AV NW, Bow River. line nonth, Silver Springs GA KW

Includes Hawkwood and Tuscany communines

Wirstier: deotioe Hegaeding Consideraron of Chrure of Momigoineny Sehool and all proprams cooesined cherein
Page 14 atf'2]



Attachment IT1: Written Notice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

* The municipal boundaries associated with the current attendance ares for D, CARTWRIGHT SCHOOL
H. D. CARTWRIGHT 3500 Dathar RD WNW, T3A IVE

Morth  John Lavrie BY W)W

East Shaganappi TR XwW

South  Crowchild TR WNW

West  Sarcee TR NW

Incledes Ranchlands. Sherwood and ®olan Hill communities

The municipal boundaries associated with the proposed attendance grea F.E. OSBORNE SCHOOL

F.E. OSBORNE SCHOOL 5313 Varsiny DR KW, T3A 1AT

Morth  Crowchild TR WNW

East  Crowchild TR NW south 1o 18 AV NW

Bowth 16 AV MW, University DR, 24 AY NW. south opposite Collegiate RD NW (western edge of Linivessity of
Calgary boundary] 0 16 AV NW, 16 AV NW w0 Shaganappi TR NW, south on Shaganappi TR NW 1
Bow River

East  Bow River, line north to Silver Springs GA NW (western edge of Varsity boundary)

Includes Hawkwood and Tescany communiies

* The municipal beundaries associated with the propesed attendance area for H.DL CARTWRIGHT SCHOOL
H.D CARTWERIGHT SCHOOL 500 Datharn RD NW, T34 1V

Morth  John Laurie BY MW

East  Shaganappi TR MW

South Crowehild TR BW

West  Sarces TR WW

Includes Montgomery, Ranchlands. Sherwood and Nolan Hill communities

Writes Monce Repasding Corsidermion of Closure of Monigomery School and all programs contained fenin

Page 150721
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Attachment IH: Written Motice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Appendix 1:

ry

§omvars B o

Transportation Information
2010-2011

Administrative Regulation 609F — Sudent Transportation, section 3, states:

5 {11 The parent or guardian of a swdem or the independent swdent receiving subsidized transportation must
provide for the supervision and transportation of the student to and from the bus stop on the bus route for eligible
students,

5(2) If a swdent does not receive subsidized transponation. the parent/ruardian of the stedent or the independent
student must pravide for the supervision and rransportation of the stadent i and from schoal,

Eligibility for Subsidized Transportation

The Calgary Board of Edwcaton will provide subsidized transportation in accordance with ARSIDE for students who
attend their attendance area school or directed school and who live within the transporiation service area. The
Iransporiation service aren means the designated zone within an artendance area in which the Calgary Board of
Education provides subsidized transportation.

All students receiving charer bus service will be reguired 10 pay any applicable transportation fee. Parents of
eligible students experiencing financial difficulties may apply for a waiver of the transportation fee(sl. This

application i= available at vour child's school or on the CBE wehbsite at: waw che ab.cp/parenis' fomms.aso
ELIGIREE RIDERY (within Tranusportation Service Area)

Grudes K- ' Grades 7-9 Girades 10-12
Type of Transporzation Chartes Bae Chaner B Calgaey Transt 1CTi
[ Seathiand or Firs | i Southland or Fas: Saudent|
| Ssudent | 2]}
| Calgeey Transil (TT) (ondy for
specific =chools lisied on the
| CRE weteme |
| Special Meeds sdenis may b marspted by chaner b, oon or handiis and e reguined
_ 5oy Che meEporabaon fog dnd compiete e Special Meeds Transponmion Chamer form
Transporiation Fee 52{HI Kl srusdeni L2000 Dovmuden Cost of
lawmmum sz imum Calgary Transu {CT)
| SA00. W family dor chamer 8400 ek for chaner pers less rebane
| [ H I HETES ] ielesa ke a]
| | R
T o £ pass less roebale |
i T Bus Pass Rebage of 534. 23immnh foe Rehgge of 5 1B S¢momh for |
[unrestriciad) Calgary Transit peass il (Feirer Calpary Transi pass i
| Purchased o sudent/parers at |ocal [ B service 18 nol movided
i wEndor
Bus Slop Approocimanely 300 e Appresinanehy F00 m |
Acdmninisirative Repulacion RiRS Or minfe froen fmme i mane from home
1151 sttes “Frangporimtion Change “Iramsparianiod Chaepe
Finderparier, elemeniey siudenis Requer Form ™ can be Higuast Fare ™ can be i
and jurnar high school shudenes campleied oy ifthereare | completed only i©1here e na |
encilied in an aliernative program, THI SIOPS WILNm S willen appiosimalely
mther than 2 bidmguaal or mmmeron approximmely B meers | 1600 mekers of the studant's
g, may - be reguaned oy e al the sLudenl s home home address 1s2e CHE wensie
Earther e 300 melers o0 R ddress (e CHE wilbsie for details |
rhisters from thair bome o deycane fior desaals
penire, as owklined = secuons | 1430 |
and 1540 a congregoeed sohonl
hils slop |

Wrien Wociee Regarding Corsidermion of Closare of the Reguler Propram at Montgamery Scheal and all pmgrams contamed themem
Tage 16 af 2]
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Attachment 111 Written Motice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Biis Rounes Angnaes ngen Dne school 3 working daws peuer 1o L stan of Availobe oy mid-Auget ai
ciasses schoals and online &

CBE Bus Pass Studeats will bo mered a bus pass, which is senl 2o the
siudent s schoal for detniton
152 srugent joses a bus pass:
= Schoal will issue o semporary pass
= BTN fee For replecemten pass
it Trareponiation Services throush the schoal | |

CONDITIONAL RIDERS

Students who are not attending ther attendance area school or who are not within the transporation service arca

may he able 1o access existing service If there is g suitable stop on the existing bues route, Fees will nos be waived

for Conditional Riders

Crireria for Conditional Riders:

= Must aceess an existing stop

= MNust be room on the bas

®  Wust pay the transportation fes

¢ Mooadditionzl bus rowtes will b2 implemented 1o accommodate conditional riders

o Must wait for written approval from Transportation Services before staming to ride the bus
Mate: Approval may ke uniil med-October 20 altermative armangements must be in place prior to approval
or in the event that approval cannot be pramted.

CONDITIONAL RIDERS {mar wirkin Tramwspornarion Service Area)

Grades K-6 Grades 7-4 Grades 10-12
Tvpe of Transporiation Chamer Bus Clamer Bus “algary Teareil (0TI
rSmnhlond or First Studsn) [ Boaath el or Fost Slodent)
LI
Calgary Transit (CT) qoniy for
specific schools lsmed o the
CHBE websilg|
ngpuruﬂnn. Fiew 200 i siudent S0 O sudem Costnf
Mo family maximum Wo family maximum Calgary Trarsil (C7T)
LEL prass
Cost of OUT pass
155425 per month)
s S MU 20Cess @ CXIRINg Mol e Basighs S eoning
brus sligs, bus siop:
o siop changes will be ko siop chanpes will be
corsiderad coradered
T Bus Pass Noremee an C7 pass | Wirehats an &1 HisE
{nresmed | |
Pain:faased by siedenupancnt ai |
Tl verkar |
Fous Routes Availahle fram the schoal 5 working dins prce o e stan ol | Availebbe by mid-Auagsst
Hakses ol =emodds and oniie 22
LW 'I'Illl'm'lwl I'Ilm
CHE Bus Pass Siudenes: will be 1ssaed g s Poeiy, Wiath i senl Lo thee SDule L' s |
schonl Bor discrina i |
1 & stiaderm Tosiss o Bus fass.
& Sehoal will IssUe nRMparary pase
+ 5100 fee for replacement pas
(o Trersponstion S2rvices throosh the schaol i

Writen Motice Reganimg Considerauon of Closure of the Regular Program at Monigomery Schoal and 21l programs comained ihereir
Page |7 of 21
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Artachment [11: Written Notice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery Schoal

Transportation Fee vs, Lunchroom Fee

STUDENT P4 ¥S FOR LUNCHEN | STUBENT DOES NOT PAY FOR LUNCHROOM

Sfuclent does mor live within Trénsporaion Servics | Sudent bives within the Transportation Service Area
Area for their designated school and siavs for lunch | for their designated school and rides charer bus
— student pavs for lunchroom | — student pays for bus: but met for lunchroom

Stuclend dows mor live within the Transportation | Student lives within the Transporatan Secvice Area
Service Area for their designated school but rides for their designated school, but parent drives the
the chierter bus as a conditional rider and siayvs for student 1o schoo|

lunch — swudent deoes o pary for bus or lunchroom
— student pays Tor bus and lunchrooem

Wnnen Motee Regarding Coresderanicn of Closirs of tse Regular Program at Monlgomery School and 2 pragrams comnimed therem
Pege 1R 0721



Attachment 111: Written MNotice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Appendix 2:
Proposed Walk Zone Map for F.E. Oshorne School
(if Montgomery Schesl and all programs contained therein, is approved for closare)

Ol L 1- L en,

- i 3 1 k4 ke IS = m':'. H i

i Walk Zone for F.E. Osborne School '
| Progosed Wik Zone @ ......
L ﬂ Wil T [ T:I-\dlhllilil.-l--
mll 5creci Sulsng 0 250 sS04 . DY Wmers el
ol 5 i1 i i ] b Hetrls b vl e s

| DL Ot of Attendance Ares 121000 P L

Wrklen MNodwe Regandmg Conskderstnon of Closure of the Regular Programe o Monggomeny Sebonl and all programs contamed thenemn
Pape 1% af 21
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Attachment [II: Written Motice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery Schoaol

Appendix 3:
Walk Zone Map for H.D, Cartwright School
(if Montgemery School, and all programs centained therein, is approved for closere)

T
e

5 e,

1 5 X : : i

' 5 Walk Zone for H.D. Cartwright School b

! ﬂ i Efectiee Eepiemier 2005 EI._.__.._ |

1 ﬁ...“ Temraportahon Sannce Aras = F‘_:;:_m;m,?‘# |
Bekool Bulkding i X0 800 1 000 Meters P o v Cagary 512

i e el T S S J‘E i

I O of Attandance fres

W rimten Ptk Regarding Consaliratnis of Closwe of the Kegular Program a0 Momgomery Schood and all programs comamed therein
Page I0 &l 21
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Attachment 111: Written Motice Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgoemery School

Appendix 4
Question Submission Form

£

Calgary Broard of Education

Ouestions regarding the Board of Trustees ' consideration of closure of Monigemery Schoo! and
all programs contained thevein may be submitted in writing prior to 12:00 noon on Tuesday,
March 8 2011 ro:
Dianne Yee, Divector, Area |
Calpary Board of Education
efo Parkdale Centre
T28-32 St N.W.
Calgary, Alherta T2N 219
Fax; 403-777-8719

The public meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, March 9, 2011 at 7:00 p.m. in the |
Montgomery School gymnasium. Jf is not possible 1o respond individually 1o guestions or
inquiries priov to the public meeting. At the public meeting, having reviewed guestions for |
relevaney and redundancy, selecred guestions will be answered. Showld vour specific guestion(s)
not be selected for response al the public meeting, vou will have ample opportunity 1o dirvect
guestions o administration and vou are invited to do so.

Mame: Phomne:

Winiten e Rigarding Consideration af Ciosure of the Bepular Program a Monrgnmeny Schos and all proprams contamed therein
Page 21 pd 21
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Attachment ['V: Record of Signs Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Confirmation of Road Sign Postings and Text

Montgomery School

PUBLIC MEETING

COMNSIDERATION OF CLOSURE
MONTGOMERY SCHOOL
WEDKESDAY MARCH® T:00FM
MONTGOMERY SCHOOL GYMMNASILM
2116 MACEAY ROAD NW

| [
| Location | Date | Time - Initial
Siiver Springs Bhd, mast of Nose Hill Drive i o | & . ]
| Firue #a \Teb )| 5l | %A
[ Comer of Sjru'r Springs Bhed & Silver Springs | T | _ iy
Gate = b . B Lote s 20 | Tl o A=t
Bowness Road, between Monserrat Dr &

Horme Rd

| Horme Rg & 53 58

| Montgomerny Schpol Site at 2116 Mackay
| Aoad HW

6-67



Attachment I'V: Record of Signs Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Confirmation of Road Sign Postings and Text

Montgomery School

PFUBLIC MEETING

CONSIDERATION OF CLOSURE
MONTGOMERY SCHOOL
WEDNESDAY MARCH S  7:00PM
MONTGOMERY SCHOOL GYMNASIUM
2116 MACKAY ROAD NW

| Location . Date Time  Initial
" Silver Springs Bhvd, east of Nose HIl Drive
! |
| Corner of Siver Springs Blvd & Séver Springs
| Gate |
Bowness Road, between Monserrat Dr & T SEETE
| Home Rd L [ = 2ids | i
. T < e | &4
| Home Rd &52 5t - | i
redZ 20 A | = s
| 'F_-" 54 A | -..,L:'f-
Montgomery Schoa! Site a1 2116 Mackay e |
| Road MW A% S BIHE g £
T RS
LA s
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Aftachment I'V: Record of Signs Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

i

s e ..-—"'""-—'_.:l' -
Corner of Silver Springs Blvd. & Silver Springs Gate N.W,
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Attachment [V: Record of Signs Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

CONSIDERATION OF CLOSURE
MONTGOMERY SCHOOL

Home Road & 52 Strect MW,



Adtachment 1'V: Record of Signs Respecting the Consideration of Clesure of Montzomery School

WED MARCH 9 TPM
GOMERY SCHOOL GYM
Hn"HT'IE MACKAY RD NW

r ;

Montgomery School Site = 2116 Mackay Hoad MW,
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Attachment ¥: Record of Posters Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Confirmation of Poster Postings

*NOTE: A minimum of five posters MUST be posted
Meontgomery School
Public Meeting Date: March 8, 2011

Imwm

! :
: Date ITI.I'TFB Initial
| —
| Py :;:‘.;.,.r:-_.,- Faog e Inv . Rl | [ . |
—_— i SRR i i 5 R "'-\.r". " e ]
[ i .-|-|_,-'l'- > -'"I N1 '_Il‘ K / .“f' il i -._-_.‘__1:'\-__ s !:,:-.'-. 'é'- —d d 3 Tl
[L | 3%t Seivey Teiane L. Alw ' |
R e S Syl 1 5, 1 7] e =
[ e et B E v i i R T T L i e LR . XY ),
B A A | 'E'_:'.:l P : - . i
] i a ¥
. - . o o gy ' : L
) A .lrl'"-l II' |.|- ¥ I |I.-\'. { _'_f—'l e = & _l'-_.-' |
i ST R, e =
s L. i Tl LF oated L S | # J 'T:ﬂ"r_
|
|
1 | 1
[ I |
. | .
|
|
|
|
[ | |
| {
[
|
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Atnachment V: Record of Posters Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Confirmation of Poster Postings

*NOTE: A minimum of five posters MUST be posted
Montgomery School
Public Meeting Date: March 9, 2011

Location Date Time nitial |
|
wf [ 4 e a’-,eir.l-:',.,:%l_ Red M L N |
T i - i ) ey i ) :
'Ilr;l g 1" e B e ol e 4 | > Ge'sem | = F |
g : L . -
ﬂ.,;'|__'-\_': lin S ‘:'-.Jl..-a_- ) ! N [
.-f"" 7 e .'r_- .-'Ill i YiF s f Fmad M = I FFHI ¥
.. | H R Afr e #l “-'_..-_-L_""'* | FEd = gral | & ""'i-"rf".}._*f'
e Fliw . ’
“-‘-&‘1'?:' o™ Frve. Hlu _ || )
P H.’ bl € = Wranges 2ol retz el 4 Zepanl LT
"II 'i'l o PP L A S N A L L P = | rekEagl 7. ';":,.-"“.""" b _Le
[ I:_.l i [ Fi
1
] | |
! I . ,
[
|
[
|
1
||
[
[ 1 |




Attachment V: Record of Posters iic51:u::~:_ting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

With respect to the Consideration of Closure of

Montgomery School and all
programs contained therein

Wednesday, March 9, 2011
7:00 p.m.
Montgomery School — Gymnasium
2116 MacKay Road N.W.
Calgary, Alberta

The Board of Trustees of the Calgary Board of Education passed a
motion at the January 18,2011 regular board meeting to consider
closure of Montgomery School and all programs contained therein.

Pursuant to Alberta legislation and the Board of Trustees' i
Governance Policies and Procedures, a public meeting will be held |
for the purpose of discussing the possible closure. At least two '
Calgary Board of Education Trustees will be present at the public
meeting. Until the Board of Trustees makes its decision regarding.
the possible closure, the public can make written submissions to

| the Board regarding the closure under consideration. For more
information, visit the CBE website at www.cbe.ab.ca.

1
L |

T
- Celgary Baard of Education

Flaase nost this notice until T:00c oo March 52011


www.cbe.ab.ca

Attachment VI: Record of Newspaper Advertisement Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery Schaol

Confirmation of Newspaper Ads

Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Location | Date Page Initial
| _. | ‘ -
o ¥ i . 7
l_'ll:-ﬂ' i ! I = hadd =, _,’:'1 -II:I'“? J-"Ilr !
|
. I ol i, ¢ ! _.":I
| :.I_-;"_I.“HJ!_U ._..i ‘?Ill'ﬂ S | .'I” !r_..--ql'l 1 | J_?JI_{ | ?_,-B"‘
I : . '
| ':J-fT.'r':sJ o rdig £ it ri; £ { | AH LA |
|
| L g [ -
oilgary Swn a5t | s ‘ VL
g i
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Attachment V1: Record of Newspaper Advertisement Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE

dogry Bl o Bl

Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School and
! All Programs Contained Therein

The Bazed of Trustaes of the Caigary Boand of Edecation [CBE) passed & medion ot 1 Jassary 18, 2011 requiar Sosd
meafing by corsider the dosune of Montgormery Shaokand el programs coniained thensin.

Passuant to Abenta govefnment kegislation and the {aigery Board of Education Boand of Trustess’ Govamanie
Pefiies and Procedunes, 2 public mesting will be held 1or e purgeseof distussing the podsiblelore wde
cossidaration. The date and cation farthe pabdic mesting | st lollows

| Wednesday, March 9, 2011 700pm. Montgomery School - Gymnasium
2116 MacKay Road N.W., Calgary, Alberta
At hast swo Calgary Boaod of Education Trusioss will e presien a1 the peblic seeeting. Ueeil the Soand of Tnistess

Mk 15 deglion regandng the pedsie ciesure, the public can malos writhen sobomissions torthe Board regending
1 «Gasure under carsiderstion. For mome informstion, vii theC5E websne i wwscbeabop.

— e e
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Attachment VI: Record of Newspaper Advertisement Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery

The Calzary Sun' B WEDNESDEY, MARCHZ, 211

own in investigation

Libopping offiees's been in hol
wzilir,

Eropiclniskd was charged
with assauly Jast-full after
w prisongr was allegediy
mssundiod in g kaii ol

somue af the hilug postings
refer 10 BID WOLTTET 25 TR
andl-elass workdag Whores"
and "skanks”

L ismve ops calied “wiop
eing a police aflicer sucks,”
b grrambless ahont hew Soweh
icis jabris.

*1 -nm-held o o higher
stz tum anvose olse in
the commmminy,” he wribe

“L g dnta places thar woaid
make you s--- yvour pEnis
il yous il weenter nlone. 1

do this for
SN
The Lilog-
gar is also
erielcul ol
Camaches jug-
tice ByRIEIT,
The cotistalile's supemdsar
suwid the offfcer would naol be
purmmitied 8 oornien,

TANIGUCH!

Commants

gy Hoasd of Babalalani

i PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE

Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School and
All Programs Contained Therein

Thi: Brard ol Trusseas al the Calgary Board of Educetion 10EE] passed 3 mofion st ifs lanuary 18, 2501 requle board
mascira o consider e dlosare of Moncgamony School and &l proprasn contained theesin,

Fiirsust i Abar soversment legisiation gnd tho Caigary Boend of Education Board of Trustees' Sovemantce
Fuligas and Procodures, & pulic mesting will be held dor fhe porpose of discusing e peisible dossre undes
cordiderat o Tie derte. md incetion b Bhve parblic meseng is-as follows

Wednesday, March 9, 2011 7:00 pm, Mentgomery School - Gymnasivm
2116 MacKay Road MW, Calgary. Alberta |

Al Fear tren Calery Board of Edacation Trastees wil ba presest 2t the pubilic meeting Untll the Bozrd of Tratees
mirkas s dedsinn rmoanding the posshie thdure, the public tm make writien sobmbaion: ihe Boars regaeding 1
the tlastne unider consderaton, For moe inforasabon, wisil the CBE wobalte ot ymwche sbie J
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Altgchment V1 Record of Newspaper Advertisement Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Monizomery School

B2 2
2 Saturday, Mareh 5, 0

L 53

| PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE

Consideration of Closure of M
0
All Programs Cuntainem.i.lg mﬂ&hnﬂ G

[ Wedneseay, March 5, 201
: : 700 g m, Mantgomigr
Schgol -
G 2116Hﬂu}rﬁndﬂw...{algﬂff Aiﬂ‘:ﬁm e
nu-.\:-l:.irgn':.-iaardafEmmuunTrmmHHhe ; :

muthoas iz dep et "
: I mﬂlhﬂﬁgm:ﬁn;mmmhmmm ﬂmlﬂijh|kmlm1hhm&'!
"'"";'UE-UIL'unug_- ration E i tuﬁh-_;mmh“hrﬂn. . e
S kPO S mizrmaiion V15 e B2 el ﬂ;unimmhmmm;ardhb |
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Attachment V1: Record of Newspaper Advertisement Respecting the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Tre Caigary Sun 8 SATURTAY, MARCH £, 201
B e sty b 3

e e e——

il PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE|

Iz el wd T bty

Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School and
All Programs Contained Therein
That Biord of Trustess of the Caligary Boamd of Edecation |CBE saised a motivn atits Jataary 18,2011 megeler bagamd
mesting b coeiider e dosure of Mssngomery School and ofl programs contaired thersin,

Pzt b Albert goveenment legislston and tha Crigary Boand of Fduration Board of Trasteas Gowemanis
Fulichas and Froc=dures, a public meeting il b held far the puscss of disssming the possiile chosurs amder
| coraideation, The degeand ocartion for the pulsdic mesting iy esfollows:

Wednesday, Manch 5, 2011 7:00 p.m.  Montgomery Schoo! - Gymnasium
2116 Mackay Road MW, Calgary, Albertz
&2 lesast v Cadgmery Board of Educasion Frustee will b pressnt at e pebiic mesting Untit the Boaed af Trurises
mimesis deviales reganding the pasible domre, the publi an makewritien subyridsdens 1o the Board regarding
e clemite unier cansierzt . For mere dormetion, vish B CRE webighs al wirw che sk
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__Attachment VII: Agenda Public Meeting for Montgomery Schoal

Board of Trustees
Calgary Board of Education
Public Meeting

Discussion Respecting Consideration of Closure
of Montgomery School and
All Programs Contained Therein

Wednesday, March 9, 2011
7:00 p.m. —10:00 p.m.

AGENDA

i. Welcome, Introductions and Meeting Outline Calvin Davies, Meeting Chair
2 Opening Remarks Naom! E. Johnson, Chief Superinfandent of Schools
3 Purpose of the Meeting & Role of the Board of Trustees  Lynn Ferguson, Board Vice-Chair
4. Review of Written Motice Karen Barry. Meeting Co-Chair

« Introduction
=« Background
» |nformation
o Section A: Implications For Affected Attendance Areas
Section B: Implications Relative to CBE's Long Range Capital Plan
Section C: Implications With Respect to Busing
Section D: Educational, Programming and Staffing Impacts
= Section E: Financial and Capital Implications
= Section F: Future Facility Plans

} 0

Break — 10 minutes {at the discretion of the Chair)

g, Responses to Previously Submitted or Anticipated Questions Calvin Davies, Meeting Chair
B. Open Discussion Questions and Comments from Parents and Public

(See Discussion Guidelines on reverse) Calvin Davies, Meeting Chair
7 Closing Remarks Calvin Davies, Meeting Chalr

+ Opportunity for Written Submissions & Further Questions (see over)
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Attachment VII: Agenda Public Meeting for Montzomery School

PURPOSE OF THE MEETING

At & Regular Meeting on Tuesday, January 18, 2011, the Board of Trustees of the Calgary Board of

ducation passed a motion o formally consider the closure of Montgomery School and all programs
coniained therein. Mo decision has yet been made by the Board of Trustees of the Calgary Board of
Education and no decision will be made until parents and the public have had an opportunity &
provide input with respect to this community matter. The Board of Trustess of the Calgary Board of
Education have organized and convened this public mesting in accordance with the Board of
Trustees' Governance Policies and Procedure regarding Consideration of School Closure, for the
purpose of providing a public opportunity for the discussion of the information contained in the
Written Motice Regarding Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School and All Frograms
Contained Therein.

DISCUSSION GUIDELINES
The Chair shall facilitate the meeting and ensure that matters of business raised in the agenda are
covered.
During the Open Discussion portion of the meeting, all participants are asked o seek recognition
frorn the Chair by proceeding to the designated floor microphone.
Lipon being recognized by the Chair, all participants are asked to state and spell their name, state the
nature of their interest and to indicate if they wish to ask & question, make a comment, or both.
The Chair shall be solely responsible to determine whether questions have already been asked and
answerad, or, if they are relevant, provide a response to the guestions or o direct questions to
appropriate CBE administrative personnel for response.
Speakers from the floor will be imited to three minutes for questions or comments. and the Chair
shall exercise discretion in allowing follow-up guestions, time permitting.
When a speaker's ime has expired, they may return to the end of the line and again seek recognition
from the Chair.
The Chair reserves the right to declare indmiduals out of order if their conduct or comments are
disruptive and to take such action as necessary o restore order.
The Chair may confer with the Procedures Chair at any fime to resolve any questions ansing, and
rulings thereafter shall be final.

WRITTEN SUBMISSIONS & FURTHER QUESTIONS

11 ks not possible to direct personal responses to each guestion. All questions submitted will be reviewed
for relevancy and repetitiveness and those selected for response will be answered on the CBE website at
http:/fwww.cbe.ab.cal.

Please submit all Written Submissions and Questions o
Office of the Board of Trustees, Re: Montgomery School
Education Centre, 513 Macleod Trail SE, Calgary, Alberta, T2G 2LS

Or email to BoardofTrusteesifiche.ab.ca

Follow-up Questions must be received on or before 12 noon on Monday, April 4, 2011.
Written Submissions must be received by 9:00 a.m. on Tuesday, April 5, 2010.
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Attachment Y18 Letter to hiz Warship Magar Menshi Fltgllrdl:n-n the Consideraton of Cleaure of Monrlgoniery Schanl
end e Ciey's response 1o this correspondenee

Calgary Board of Education
Building a Collaborasive Learning Comamunity
OFFICE OF THE SLAAD OF TRUSTECE

Edusanan Cenbia Bushng
45 Bfacreed Tray 5.5, Lalpeny, Albsria T2 200 Telepfone: [HIL] SRSG487 Fauc (4031 250560

Yanuary 19, 2011

Hiz Warship, Maver Maheed Menshi
Criy of Calpary

PO, Box 2100 Stenon b

Calgary, Alberte T2P IMS

Dizar Mayor Nenshit

O behalf of the Board of Trostess, 1 am writing to advise you that at i regudar
meeting on Jamuary 18, 2011, the Board of Trusices passed the following motion:

THAT the Board of Trusrees iy seligfied thet there is cause to procedd with
& considerarion of closure of Montgomgry Sehool, and all programs
iheretn contained, in accordance with the Closire of Schooly Reendanon
and the Board of Trissees ' Governance Procese Policy SE-

Eoard of
Trewters” Pragegwre — Convideration of Séhoo! Closars; and

THAT the Boovg folfows the procedirds for the closure of séhoals, ar
putlined in Clovernance Folico (G P25E seciions S0 7

1 15 Egpected thal o deCifon il1 be mads by the Board of T before the end
at this schoot vedr 1o nddibion to this officind setficanioe resarding
1

ol olavie of thes prodmamd, the Olashee o Schools ey

Coursiolesitar

sedenl i ITICE
3 (1% Where s board hesoven natics oo regnbar estiny of the boand that
i1 = consilonne the closure ol a school, the boarl,,
(00} g L% fur the counctl of the municipahn

[pcatad e nrpvide B 3

(o ahall mrosidi
f

wr Tl

in which the schig)
tnfemnent oo the: board of the impsst the clos
have of the commumity

= TTHAY

Toi Epsoare demet dush Sevrcenl Dluwilborent TS Sines

6-82



astnehment VI Letter to his Worship Mayor Neashi Hegasding Lhe Consideraton of Clesure of Monigonery hehvopl
amed the Cliv's response 10 this correspondence

THE CITY OF
fﬁ il e S,
LP\LGHRY Ir!:_'i"‘.!-
CITY MAMNAGER'S OFFICE ]I i:._.:'_.’
fil 1l
F 23 !I I-I |_!- ir ::._.l '
2011 Fabruz Ry :
| | S0ARD OF THUSTEES i
Fat Cochrane, Chalr B !
Board of Trustees _
Calgary Board of Education

E15 Maslead Trajl 5.E.
Calgary, AB T2G 219

Dear M=, Cochrans:

Re: Ncotice of Propozed School Program Closure
Montgomery Echool

Further to your letter of 2077 January 12 to Mavor Nenshi and copsed to this office, | would like
10 advine 2 foflows:

Tha City acknowledges the fact that it is not the decistor maker for school programs or facilities
and thal decisions on schoal programs or facliliss are the responsibiity of the scheol beards, in
consultatian with the Province.  Further The Chy scknowlednes that the Calmary Board o
Educalion hes announced its intent o cloze Monigomery School and all programs thersin

contained, &s no change of use is proposed for this site at this time, a repor! 1o Council will naot
be reguired.

Council aporeciates the opporunity o comment on schocl program closures. Al this time the
Administration has idantified that no significant communily issues will anse from these proposed

snanges in programrning. Counci! may, in fulure, desire 1o commeant specifically on other school
program cosures

Should you have any CORCRMS or quasions, pleass contact Glen Radway, Coordinator, City-
wade Planning, who may be reached at (403)268-5928 or by amail glen. radwavi@calgsry.ca

Thank vou for sansidering The City of Calgary in this maliar.

Yoaurs iruly,
B P

:\____5,:_,!\_.__,' ] .
Craman Taberl

City Manager

7 40325858163 | F 403.288 3027 | Mail code #8003
Administzation Building, 233 -7 Avenus SE.

el iizyor Maheed Hensil #6065
femibers of Councll, $200
Do Wataon, Genard Manger. Planning. Developmens & Assazament 28138
Chris Branch. Director. Commamnity and Meighbosnood Services, #2116
Mary Sxwarlhy, Direcioe, Land Uze Flanning & Paiicy #8917
Sharon Purnis, Director, Corporale Propesiss #8057
Franca Gualber, 2ice Managar, Offons of e Mayor, 2B0ED

wder cabparein  call 51
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Abttachment IX: Written Submizsions Received After the Public Meeting Respecting the
Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

Written Submissions Received after the Public Meeting
for the Consideration of Closure of Montgomery School

(NOTE: Submissions are provided to each Trustee in their original format, for privacy
reasons they are not included as a part of the public document.)
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

April 5, 2011
To: Board of Trustees
From: Naomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools
Re: Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015
Purpose: Approval
Governance Policy References: ~ EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of

Trustees
EL-11: Financial Condition
EL-12: Asset Protection
EL-13: Facilities

Originator: Frank J. Coppinger. Superintendent, Facilities and Environmental Services

Resource Persons: Eugene Heeger. Director, Capital Planning and Development Services

II.

Calvin Davies, Director, Community Engagement and Operational
Planning

Karen Barry, System Principal, Community Engagement and Operational
Planning

Brent Hughes, Manager, Capital and Urban Planning Services

Robert Ashley, Manager, Architectural and Engineering Services

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended:

THAT the Calgary Board of Education’s (CBE) Three-Year School Capital Plan
2012-2015 (Attachment 1) be approved and referred to Alberta Education.

ISSUE

In accordance with requirements of Alberta Education, Alberta school boards are
required to submit a three-year school capital plan on an annual basis. This year’s
deadline for the Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015 is May 1, 2011.

The plan must identify two priority capital lists: one for “New School/Replacement

School” construction requests; and one for “Preservation/Major Modernization™
construction requests.
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III.

Alberta Education is not requiring the Board's priorities for modular classrooms to be
submitted through the Web Application Program for the May 1, 2011 deadline. New
modular classroom requests and modular moves will be dealt with through a separate
submission process. The Board of Trustees must approve capital submissions,
amendments, and any request for reconsideration before they are forwarded to Alberta
Education.

BACKGROUND

School boards must review their needs for new space and substantiate their applications
annually. Capital projects are reviewed and prioritized by the Ministry of Education prior
to being submitted to the government’s Capital Planning Initiative process led by the
Treasury Board. Projects are first reviewed for accuracy and clarity and Provincial staff
may meet with school jurisdictions to obtain further information as required.

Alberta Education prioritizes project requests by first considering school jurisdiction
priorities and then using the following criteria:

o Health and Safety

e Building Condition

e Utilization Rates

o Enrolment Projections

e Education Program Delivery; and

« Additional Information such as studies and regional plans.

Alberta Education then prepares the annual submission for the Provincial Capital
Planning Initiative. All government projects are evaluated and prioritized using a Project
Rating System which considers program delivery, infrastructure performance, and
economic and financial impacts.

An in-depth review of the ranking rationale assigned to each capital project is undertaken
by a cross-ministry committee, resulting in a recommendation being submitted to the
Deputy Minister Capital Planning Committee, and then to the Treasury Board Capital
Planning Committee. Provincial Caucus reviews the Treasury Board’s recommendations.
and ultimately, approves the Provincial Capital Plan.

The CBE’s School Capital Plan 2011-2014 was approved at the April 13, 2010 meeting
of the Board of Trustees. This plan was sent to the Minister of Education and the
Minister of Infrastructure on April 23, 2010, and constituted the CBE"s annual request for
Provincial funding for school building projects.

To date, no Provincial announcements have occurred for the School Capital Plan 2011-
2014.

J
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IV.

The CBE currently has six new schools under construction:

o Four middle schools (Coventry Hills School. Panorama Hills School, Taradale/Coral
Springs School and Tuscany School) and one senior high school (Northwest Calgary
High School) were approved in January 2008 as part of the ASAP Phase II project
and are in the early stages of construction. The Province’s schedule is to open all
four middle schools for the 2012-2013 school year, and the Northwest Calgary High
School for the 2013-2014 school year.

o The City of Calgary, the Province, and the CBE have entered into a memorandum of
agreement for the construction of the replacement school for the Ernest Manning
High School. Construction is nearing completion and the school is scheduled to open
for the 2011-2012 school year.

ANALYSIS

Using the CBE mission, vision, and values as an overarching umbrella for the
development of the School Capital Plan, Administration is ensuring that the annual
School Capital Plan aligns with the Three-Year Education Plan.

This alignment supports new capital funding strategies that recognize the changing needs
of students and focuses on building strong ties with parents, partners, and the community.
More specifically, the CBE recognizes the following:

e Provincial funding is required for new school construction in new and developing
communities:

o Parents desire schools to be closer to home, especially for younger students:

o Increasing public demand for program alternatives and personalized learning;

o Transition for students with minimal disruption in order to provide continuity of
learning with consistent peer cohorts.

The CBE's Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015 is attached for information and
approval for submission to Alberta Education.

The priorities have been listed for New School Construction on Table 1 (Page 29) and
consist of 16 new school construction projects for a total estimated cost of $309.3
million.

Saddle Ridge Middle is the first priority new school construction project followed by
Royal Oak/Rocky Ridge Middle. ASAP Phase I elementary schools have opened for the
2010-2011 school year and approvals are needed for high-priority middle schools such as
Saddle Ridge and Royal Oak/Rocky Ridge. The Centennial High School addition is
strongly recommended as third priority in order to accommodate students living south of
Fish Creek Park and relieve capacity pressure at other south high schools. The Northeast
High School is recommended as fourth priority due to over 1.250 students being bussed
from Area 1l to Area Il schools. Other strong growth communities such as Evanston and
New Brighton, require their first elementary school and are the fifth and sixth priorities.

L
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The priorities have been listed for Modernization on Table 2 (Page 29) and consist of 20
modernization projects for a total estimated cost of $265.5 million.

Chinook Learning Services is the first priority major modernization project and will
require modernizations to several CBE buildings to provide accommodation for students.
It is anticipated there will be one central location and satellite locations. The second to
fifth priority major modernization projects are part of the strategy for the Career and
Technology Centres. The Lord Shaughnessy High school modernization in Area IV is
under construction and is the first modernization project undertaken for the Career and
Technology curriculum.

Piitoayis Family School has been identified as the sixth overall priority. When
completed, a study related to aboriginal programming will provide direction regarding
facility requirements. Christine Meikle School, which is a unique setting for students
with severe and complex needs, is the seventh overall priority. The top seven priorities
have been identified on a placement basis as priority program needs for the CBE. The
remaining 13 projects on the major modernization list have been identified on a ranking
basis.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The financing of new construction and major modernization projects approved by Alberta
Education could be funded either through a P3 approach, or by cash grants under the
Provincial Capital Block Program. Some projects may also be financed through the use
of CBE capital reserves, if available.

Individual project applications would be submitted through the Web Application
Program, following the Board's approval of this “paper-based” Three-Year School
Capital Plan 2012-2015. The plans are to be electronically submitted to Alberta
Education on the Web Application Program before May 1, 2011.

The CBE is willing to examine how innovative funding mechanisms could supplement
the CBE’s traditional funding from the Provincial government.

IMPLEMENTATION CONSEQUENCES

Calgary continues to experience strong growth and increased 115.437 persons between
2005 and 2010, an average of 23.087 persons per vear. The five-year population forecast
to 2015 represents an average increase of 16.317 persons per year during this period.
Although Plan It Calgary was recently implemented April 1, 2010, the majority of
growth is still expected to continue in the developing communities in the next decade.

To date. projects listed in the School Capital Plan 20]11-20]14 have not been approved
and this is the third consecutive year that the school capital plan request from the CBE
has not obtained project approvals from the Province.



Although the total capacity of the six new schools approved and under construction will
total 6,900 student spaces, there will be a need for additional new schools within the next
three years for the developing communities. The Three-Year System Student
Accommodation Plan and the Ten Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities
Strategy will identify potential space consolidation on a rolling basis over the next
several years. The estimated capacity of existing facilities in inner-city and established
communities, that could be reduced over the next ten vears, is in excess of 12.300 student
spaces.

VII. CONCLUSION
The approval of the Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015 would allow the CBE to
demonstrate to the Provincial government that a comprehensive analysis of school capital

needs has been completed and requires funding.

The priorities for the Three-Year Capital Plan total $309.3 million for new construction
projects and $265.5 million for major modernization projects.

NAOMI E. JOHNSON

CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

Attachment I:  Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015
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Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015 is an analysis of the CBE’s forecasted school
capital needs, as assessed at the present time.

1. Calgary Population Projections

Calgary has experienced
tremendous growth over the past
decade. One indicator of the
magnitude of growth is the
increase in Calgary’s population
by 115,437 persons in the last
five years, an average of 23,087
persons per year. The City of
Calgary (the City) has forecast
that the total population of
Calgary will reach 1,153,100 in
2015 from the total 1,071,515 in
April 2010. This five-year
forecast represents an average
annual increase of 16,317 persons
during this period.

Student Enrolment
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The CBE’s current student enrolment of 102,917 is forecast to increase to 108,623 students
in 2015. The largest increase over the five-year timeframe will be Grades 1-3 students

followed by Grades4-6 students.

approximately 1,200 students.

Five-Year Enrolment Projections

The Grades 10-12 enrolments will decline by

2011-2015
Actual Projected

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Pre-Kindergarten 38 40 40 40 40 40
Kindergarten 7,459 7,627 7,993 8,346 8,013 8,221
Grades 1-3 22,443 23,163 23,797 24,623 25,628 26,035
Grades 4-6 20,436 20,590 20,965 21,720 22,418 23,032
Grades 7-9 21,693 21,549 21,507 21,242 21,401 21,783
Grades 10-12 25,667 25,303 25,009 24,660 24,498 24,453
Outreach Programs & Unique Settings 1,755 1,710 1,710 1,710 1,710 1,710
Sub-Total 99,491 99,982 | 101,021 | 102,342 | 103,708 105,273

Chinook Learning 2,789 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700
CBe-learn 637 650 650 650 650 650

Total Student Count

102,917

103,332 104,371 = 105,692

107,058

e Chinook Learning Services includes approximately 1,000 students who are 20 years old or older on September 1.
e All projections are subject to annual review and update.
. Projections use September 30, 2010, enrolments as a base, and two-year average trends.

Calgary Board of Education

108,623

Prepared by Capital and Urban Planning Services
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3. Calgary Growth and Development

Extrapolating from City forecasts, the following population increases for suburban locations
are identified for the CBE’s administrative Area:

City Growth Trends by CBE Area
2010-2014

Area Population Forecast
Area | 5,600-5,800
Area Il 21,600-24,200
Area lll 11,500-12,700
Area IV 11,000-12,200
Area V 52,000-57,500

4. Three-Year Education Plan

Alberta Education requires school boards to maintain three-year plans, updated annually.
School boards are responsible for carrying out their education plans; for reporting annually to
parents, communities, and government on results and use of their resources; and, for using
results information to update plans and improve education for students. The Board of
Trustees approved the combined Annual Education Results Report for the 2009-2010 school
year and the Three-Year Education Plan 2010-2013 on December 7, 2010.

5. Schools Under Construction and Approvals

The Province provided eleven approvals from the School Capital Plan 2007-2010 for six
elementary schools, four middle schools, and one senior high school. The six P3 ASAP |
elementary schools: Bridlewood, Cranston, Evergreen, Royal Oak, Saddle Ridge, and West
Springs, opened for the 2010-2011 school year.

The Province is constructing four middle schools and one senior high school as part of ASAP
Phase Il. The City of Calgary, the Province, and the CBE entered into a Memorandum of
Agreement for the construction of a high school in west Calgary. This is a replacement
school for Ernest Manning High school that will be closed as a result of the west LRT project
being undertaken by The City of Calgary.

Future School Openings

Approved Approval
School Year Opening | School/Community Grade Capacity Date
2011-2012 West Calgary High Grades 10-12 1,800 November 2008
2012-2013 Coventry Hills Middle Grades 5-9 900 January 30, 2008
Panorama Hills Middle Grades 5-9 900 January 30, 2008
Taradale Middle Grades 5-9 900 January 30, 2008
Tuscany Middle Grades 5-9 900 January 30, 2008
2013-2014 Northwest Calgary High Grades 10-12 1,500 January 30, 2008

Total School Space Capacity

The CBE’s current utilization rate by enrolment is 79%. Over the next three school years
approximately 6,900 additional student spaces will be built from schools approved, and under
construction. It is estimated that capacity reductions over the next ten school years could be
approximately 12,300 student spaces.

Calgary Board of Education Prepared by Capital and Urban Planning Services
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6. Capital Priorities — New School Construction

There are 16 new school construction projects in the Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-
2015.

Table 1: New School Construction

Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015 Priorities
Priority Ranking — Project Description
Community/School Grade Project Type 2011 Cost ($)
C-1 Saddle Ridge Middle Gr. 59 New School 23,900,000
C-2 Royal Oak/Rocky Ridge Middle Gr. 5-9 New School 23,900,000
C-3 Centennial High School Gr. 10-12 Expansion 5,000,000
C4 Northeast Calgary High Gr. 10-12 New School 46,000,000
C-5 Evanston Elementary K-4 New School 13,000,000
C-6 New Brighton Elementary K-4 New School 13,000,000
C-7 New Brighton/Copperfield Middle Gr.5-9 New School 23,900,000
C-8 Evergreen Middle Gr. 59 New School 23,900,000
C-9 Tuscany Elementary @ K-4 New School 13,000,000
C-10 Copperfield Elementary K-4 New School 13,000,000
C-11 Springbank Hill Elementary K-4 New School 13,000,000
C-12 Auburn Bay Elementary K-4 New School 13,000,000
C-13 McKenzie Towne Middle Gr.5-9 New School 23,900,000
C-14 Springbank Hill/Discovery Ridge Middle Gr.5-9 New School 23,900,000
C-15 West Springs/Cougar Ridge Middle Gr.5-9 New School 23,900,000
C-16 Panorama Hills Elementary @ K-4 New School 13,000,000
Total 309,300,000

7. Capital Priorities — Major Modernization Projects
There are 20 major modernization projects in the Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015.

Table 2: School Major Modernizations

Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2013 Priorities
Community/School Grade Project Type 2011 Cost (3)
M-1 Chinook Learning Services Major Modernization 10,500,000
M-2 Area | High Schools (CTS Program) Gr. 10-12 Major Modernization 24,250,000
M-3 Area V High Schools (CTS Program) Gr. 10-12 Major Modernization 24,250,000
M-4 Area Il High Schools (CTS Program) Gr. 10-12 Major Modernization 24,250,000
M-5 Area Il High Schools (CTS Program) Gr. 10-12 Major Modernization 24,250,000
M-6 Piitoayis Family School K-6 Major Modernization 12,500,000
M-7 Christine Meikle School Gr. 7-12 Major Modernization 7,500,000
M-8 Altadore School K-6 Major Modernization 9,000,000
M-9 Nickle School Gr. 5-9 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-10  Sir Wilfrid Laurier School Gr.5-9 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-11  Elboya School K-9 Major Modernization 10,000,000
M-12 Dr. J.K. Mulloy School K-6 Major Modernization 6,000,000
M-13 Henry Wise Wood High School Gr. 9-12 Major Modernization 23,000,000
M-14 Senator Patrick Burns School Gr.5-9 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-15 A.E. Cross School Gr. 7-9 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-16 Sir John A. Macdonald Gr. 7-9 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-17 Thomas B. Riley School Gr.5-9 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-18 Robert Warren School Gr.5-9 Major Modernization 4,000,000
M-19 Louis Riel School K-9 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-20  Woodman School Gr. 59 Major Modernization 9,000,000
Total 265,500,000
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

The Calgary Board of Education (CBE) is a global leader in public education. The
largest school district in Western Canada, the CBE provides a full range of educational
services for all instructional programs from Kindergarten through to Grade 12. The CBE
addresses the complexity and diversity of almost 103,000 students (includes Adult
Education) through 223 schools with more than 10,000 permanent employees and an
operating budget of $1,044.9 million.

Over the past decade, Calgary has seen tremendous growth and economic prosperity.
One simple indicator of the magnitude of the growth is that the population of Calgary
increased 115,437 persons between 2005 and 2010, at an average of 23,087 persons per
year.

Calgary’s population growth has significantly slowed the past year in comparison to
previous years. The population grew from 1,065,455 in April 2009 to 1,071,515 in April
2010, an increase of 6,060 (.57%). Low population growth the past year was primarily
due to the negative net migration of people moving away from Calgary.

The City of Calgary’s

Calgary's Actual and Projected Population report, Calgary and
2006-2015 Region Economic

1,250 Outlook  2010-2020
(October 2010), identi-

1,200 fies continued strong

= | growth for Calgary;

1,150
/-/-/1,153 however, at a reduced
1,100 e pace. The City fore-

(,000s)

1,112
'lg.,“’% cast indicates the total
o :
1050 1065 7 lation of Cal
//“11043 population of Calgary
1,000 | 2020 will reach 1,153,100 in
992 2015, an increase of

950

‘ : : : : : : ‘ ‘ 81,585 persons from
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 the 11071,515 total as

999E2901.101 ‘ —e—Actual +Pr0jected‘ at Aprll 2010 by the

Civic Census. The
five-year population forecast to 2015 represents an average increase of 16,317 persons
per year during this period.

Calgary Total Population (,000s)

Actual Projected
2005 2006 2007 | 2008 | 2009 2010 2011 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2015
956 992 1,020 | 1,043 | 1,065 | 1,072 1,082 | 1095 | 1,112 | 1132 | 1,53

Calgary and Region Economic Outlook 2010-2020 (October 2010), p. 2
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In 2010, Calgary’s population grew by 6,060 persons. The natural increase from April
2009 to April 2010 was 10,214 persons. There was a decrease of 4,154 persons in net
migration where more people moved away from Calgary than moved to Calgary. The
last time Calgary experienced a negative net migration was in 1992.

1.1 CBE Student Enrolment

Total CBE enrolment was 102,917 students on September 30, 2010. There are
99,491 students accommodated in 223 schools and 3,426 students are enrolled at
Chinook Learning Services and CBe-learn.

Enrolment increased by 247 students, excluding CBe-learn and Chinook Learning
Services, and 541 students including CBe-learn and Chinook Learning Services
from September 30, 2009, to September 30, 2010.

Enrolment increased at Kindergarten through Grades 1-3, and declined at
Grades 4-6, Grades 7-9, and Grades 10-12.

Over 14,000 births to Calgary mothers were reported for the fourth consecutive
year, which should result in strong enrolment in future years. Kindergarten and
Grade 1 registrations indicate strong enrolment into the future. Based on the
City’s census data, CBE’s market share for Kindergarten was 58% and 64% for
Grade 1. The average over the last five years is 59% and 63%.

Enrolment in French Immersion, Spanish Bilingual, German Bilingual, and
Chinese (Mandarin) Bilingual programs was 9,752 students at 35 schools.
Enrolment increased by 381 students over last year.

Enrolment reported at other alternative programs (Alice Jamieson Girls’
Academy, Arts-Centred Learning, Juno Beach Academy of Canadian Studies,
Medicine Wheel, Montessori, Piitoayis Family School, Science Schools and
Traditional Learning Centres) was 7,444 students at 26 schools. Enrolment
increased by 633 students over the last year.

The following table provides a summary of enrolments including unique settings,
outreach programs, Chinook Learning, and CBe-learn from September 30, 2006,
to September 30, 2010.

e-Yea O O 0 e py D 0
006-2010

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Pre-Kindergarten 0 0 0 0 38
Kindergarten 6,477 6,604 7,082 7,202 7,459
Grades 1-3 21,171 20,773 21,299 21,741 22,443
Grades 4-6 20,933 20,773 20,730 20,742 20,436
Grades 7-9 22,415 22,281 22,194 22,111 21,693
Grades 10-12 26,083 25,843 25,712 25,721 25,667
Outreach and Unique Settings 1,398 1,521 1,634 1,727 1,755
Sub-Total K-12 98,477 97,795 98,651 99,244 99,491
Chinook Learning 2,683 2,589 2,492 2,447 2,789
CBe-learn 525 651 679 685 637

100118 101,685 101,035 101,822

Calgary Board of Education Prepared by Capital and Urban Planning Services



Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015

Five-Year Enrolment Projections

Total enrolments are expected to increase by 5,706 students from September 2010
to September 2015. A summary of the September 30, 2010, actual student
enrolments and September 2011-2015 projected enrolments are below:

Five-Year Enrolment Projections
2011-2015

Actual Projected

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Pre-Kindergarten 38 40 40 40 40 40
Kindergarten 7,459 7,627 7,993 8,346 8,013 8,221
Grades 1-3 22,443 23,163 23,797 24,623 25,628 26,035
Grades 4-6 20,436 20,590 20,965 21,720 22,418 23,032
Grades 7-9 21,693 21,549 21,507 21,242 21,401 21,783
Grades 10-12 25,667 25,303 25,009 24,660 24,498 24,453
Outreach Programs & Unique Settings 1,755 1,710 1,710 1,710 1,710 1,710
Sub-Total 99,491 99,982 101,021 102,342 | 103,708 | 105,273

Chinook Learning 2,789 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700
CBe-learn 637 650 650 650 650 650

Total Student Count | 102,917 | 103,332 104,371 105,692 = 107,058 108,623

e Chinook Learning Services includes approximately 1,000 students who are 20 years old or older on September 1.
e Allprojections are subject to annual review and update.
e Projections use September 30, 2010, enrolments as a base, and two-year average trends.

Calgary Growth and Development

The City of Calgary supports an actively competitive land market in all areas of
the City and there are 23 new and developing municipal communities (Suburban
Residential Growth, May 2010) in various stages of development. The large
number of concurrently developing communities puts increased pressure on the
CBE to meet the expectations of parents for school construction in their
community. In terms of distribution of population growth, the 2009-2010
population increased 13,688 persons in the developing municipal communities
and decreased 6,406 persons in the established communities and decreased 1,222
persons in the inner-city communities.

Forecasted Suburban Growth —2010-2014

The Suburban Residential Growth 2010-2014 indicates that the majority of the
population growth over the past five years has been in the developing
communities. The new Calgary Municipal Development Plan supports more
intensification into developed areas of Calgary but forecasts used over the next
five years estimate the majority, at least 90%, of the population growth is
assumed to occur in the new suburbs.

There are 43,400 new housing units forecasted for 2010-2014, city-wide. Of the
total units forecast, The City of Calgary estimates that 80% (34,660 total units) is
projected to go to new communities.

Calgary Board of Education Prepared by Capital and Urban Planning Services
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Although the total population growth to the City as a
whole is expected to be 118,693 people, the new
suburban areas have traditionally grown at a higher rate.
These new areas have historically captured all of the
population growth in Calgary and more by pulling
additional populations from the built areas of the City.
Forecasts for the future are that the new suburbs will
capture 90% of the expected population gain over the
next five years. This growth means the City will likely
add 34,660 units to the new suburban areas of the City
and population projections are for 107,000 persons.

The figures in the Suburban Residential Growth 2010-
2014 (May 2010) are significantly more optimistic than
The City of Calgary’s Economic Outlook 2010-2020

(October 2010) that reflect new Census 2010 information.

The top ten developing
communities to receive
residential building permit
applications in Calgary for
2010 were:

e Panorama Hills (N)
New Brighton (SE)
Auburn Bay (SE)
Skyview Ranch (NE)
Silverado (S)

Cranston (SE)

Copperfield (SE)

Sage Hill (N)

Aspen Woods (W)

McKenzie Towne (SE)
(Source: Suburban Residential
Growth 2010-2014, p. A16, A17)

The next future

suburban residential growth forecast prepared for this year will have significantly

reduced forecasts for population growth.

A summary of the 2010-2014 period forecast for urban growth for suburban
locations is as follows (see Map 1):

City Growth Trends by City Sector
2010-2014

Housing Population
Sector Units Forecast Hectares | Acres
Northwest 0 0 0 0
North 8,900-9,800 27,200-30,000 522 1,290
Northeast 3,200-3,500 9,900-11,000 178 440
East 500-600 1,600-1,700 28 70
Southeast 10,200-11,300 32,200-35,600 672 | 1,660
South 6,500-7,200 19,800-21,900 437 | 1,080
West 3,600-4,000 11,000-12,200 316 780

Extrapolating from these City forecasts, the following population increases for

suburban

administrative Area boundary:

0 ends b BE Area
010-2014
Area Population Forecast
Areall 5,600-5,800
Area ll 21,600-24,200
Area lll 11,500-12,700
Area IV 11,000-12,200
Area V 52,000-57,500

locations were prepared to determine populations by CBE’s

A portion of the north growth for the communities of Nolan Hill and Sherwood
will be in the Area | population forecast. Area Il includes the Northeast and East
sectors. Area V includes the Southeast and South sectors and indicates that over
half of the City’s growth will be in these portions of the City.

Calgary Board of Education
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Map 1
City of Calgary Planning Sectors
City of Calgary, Suburban Residential Growth 2010-2014
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1.3 Plan It Calgary

Plan It Calgary was implemented April 1, 2010, and is the overarching policy
that documents municipal development and transportation. Plan It Calgary will
result in a long-term integrated land use and mobility plan for the City which is
projected to grow by 1.3 million people over the next 50 to 70 years.

The City of Calgary’s Plan It Calgary document identifies opportunities for
greater intensification of older established communities in the future. Plan It
Calgary intends to reduce the amount of growth allocated to the developing
communities which is currently 100% and to intensify the inner-city and
established areas with additional population. The 30-year target of the plan for
growth into established areas is 33% and the 60-year target is 50% growth to
established areas. Plan It Calgary will also ensure prioritizing municipal
investment to align with its long-term growth management strategy.

As identified in the previous section, the majority of City growth is occurring in
the developing communities. In terms of population increases from the April
2009 Census to the April 2010 Census, Panorama Hills was the only new and
developing community that exceeded 1,000 in population with an annual increase
of 1,455 persons. In the previous year, there were ten communities that exceeded
a 1,000-increase in population.

In contrast, the largest increases in the established and inner-city communities
were Beltline with a population increase of 561 persons and Spruce Cliff with a
population increase of 356 persons. Both these communities have had high
density developments (e.g., Westgate Park Towers in Spruce CIiff).

Schools with excess capacity are primarily located in established communities
where the lifecycle of the neighbourhood has surpassed the peak of school-age
population and is declining. Intensification of built-up areas as advocated by Plan
It Calgary may impact the population in CBE schools in the established and
mature communities.

1.4 City of Calgary Annexation

Previously Annexed Lands

The majority of the 36,000 acres annexed to The City of Calgary (the City), from
the MD of Foothills in 2005 and MD of Rocky View in 2007, remain outside of
the Calgary Board of Education’s (CBE) jurisdictional boundary. Only a portion
of land in the south from the MD of Foothills has been added to the CBE
boundary consisting of the southeastern communities of Walden and Legacy. In
June 2009, the Minister of Education gave the order to adjust the CBE
jurisdictional boundary to include Walden and Legacy.

Calgary Board of Education Prepared by Capital and Urban Planning Services
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The Minister of Education again reaffirmed this position in 2010 and advised the
CBE and Calgary Catholic School District that it is in the best interest of the
students to retain the existing school boundaries until urban development warrants
change. The Minister also indicated that annexed lands would be brought into the
CBE and Calgary Catholic School District inventory as area structure plans are
finalized.

The City Administration has been directed by City Council to complete the
applicable planning documents to guide development in the newly-annexed lands.
CBE planning personnel have been participating in meetings and discussions to
allow for long-term school planning in the newly-developed lands. The regional
context studies are the broad-based plans to guide development in the annexed
areas and have been approved by City Council.

« The City has approved the East Regional Context Study (April 2009) with an
eventual population of 160,000 persons and approximately 22,000 jobs upon
full build-out.

« The City has approved the West Regional Context Study (April 2010) with an
eventual population of 22,000 people and 7,000 jobs upon full build-out.

« The City has approved the North Regional Context Study (June 2010) with an
eventual population of 216,000 persons and approximately 69,000 jobs on full

build-out.
& North Regional
Context Study
Cabeary Buad of Ediralion
AN
West Regional
Context Study I
K
] 1l
East Regional
Context Study
'l vy i
S L
Annexed Land from:
[ MDof Rocky View No. 44
[ Mbof Foothills No. 31 B
[ cBE Administrative Areas
_‘ [
East Regional
Context Stud
J\fxf\,—f"* y
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The West Macleod

Area Structure Plan was -| .
approved  November A T
2009; however, outline Keystone Hils AS —
plans have not been
submitted to The City
of Calgary. The South | ]

|

Shepard Area Structure

Plan and West View West View ASP

Area Structure Plan are Y
expected to be Li E
approved in 2011. The

Keystone Hills Area
Structure Plan is in the
early stages of
preparation. It is
anticipated  following
approvals of the latter South Shepard A7) [ |
area structure plans,

that the CBE and ig;lcneg'\fﬁzdéﬁ

Catholic Separate

School District  will

request the Minister to [ West Macieod Asp
include these lands as (o be incomparatedto he Ciy)

part of their respective
school boundaries.

In the next five years, population growth is expected to occur primarily in the
developing Calgary communities, as they can still accommodate in excess of
250,000 new residents. It is anticipated that there will be less than 10,000
population growth from the newly-annexed areas. In the long term, the newly-
annexed areas will add approximately 350,000 to 400,000 new residents to the
City.

Recent Annexation Activities

In June 2010, the City and the Municipal District of Foothills signed a dual
annexation agreement and both municipalities initiated the new annexation
process. This annexation was prompted by the Spruce Meadows equestrian
facility, which desires to operate under one municipal jurisdiction rather than
seeking approvals from both the Municipal District of Foothills and The City of
Calgary. The Municipal District of Foothills will annex approximately 136 acres
to its municipal boundary. In return, the City will annex approximately 177 acres
from the Municipal District of Foothills. New planning will likely be undertaken
by the City to develop their lands to urban residential densities and standards.
Public hearings have been held and the annexations have been approved by the
Municipal Government Board. These annexation applications are going to
Cabinet for the spring sitting of the Legislature and are expected to be approved
retroactive to January 2011.
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L]
2.0 CAPITAL STRATEGIES

2.1 Calgary Board of Education

The CBE is pursuing capital funding opportunities which recognize the changing
needs of students and is focused on building strong ties with parents, partners, and
the community. More specifically, the CBE recognizes:

« Provincial funding is required for new school construction in new and
developing communities;

« Parents desire schools to be closer to home, especially for younger students;

« Increasing public demand for program alternatives and personalized learning;
and

« Transitions for students with minimal disruption in order to provide continuity
of learning with consistent peer cohorts.

This approach to planning anticipates a system of core elementary feeder schools
for local school communities (attendance areas), complemented with
middle/junior high, and senior high schools serving large geographic areas. The
CBE defines a school community as the population required to sustain a school.

The following planning strategies will be pursued to more effectively utilize space
and resources.

« Prepare annually, a Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities
Strategy.

« Undertake an annual review through the Three-Year System Student
Accommodation Plan to identify schools and programs that may lead to
consideration of closure.

. Apply to the provincial government to receive capacity exemptions for leased
space.

« Respond to demand for alternative programs and system special education
classes.

. Review the condition of portables/relocatables and request provincial support
for demolition/movements.

. Right-size schools to increase utilization.

2.2 Three-Year Education Plan

Alberta Education requires school boards to maintain three-year plans, updated
annually. School boards are responsible for carrying out their education plans; for
reporting annually to parents, communities, and government on results and use of
their resources; and, for using results information to update plans and improve
education for students. The Board of Trustees approved the combined Annual
Education Results Report and the Three-Year Education Plan 2010-2013 for the
2009-2010 school year on December 7, 2010.
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2.3 Administrative Areas and Space Utilization

The CBE has five administrative Areas as indicated on Map 2. Within each of
these Areas, this Three-Year School Capital Plan will review all new and
developing communities for new school construction eligibility. The Province
has indicated that utilization is reviewed when evaluating a jurisdiction’s capital
priorities; however, the 85% utilization rate is not a firm requirement but rather a
guideline. Currently the calculation of school capacities, which affects utilization
rates, is under review by the Province.

The CBE desires to use their facilities efficiently and continues to work towards
an 80% utilization rate. Given the constraints of the existing utilization formula
and other influencing factors such as the Class Size Initiative, the CBE considers
an 80% utilization rate a reasonable target. Currently, the CBE’s overall
utilization rate by enrolment is 79.0%. The utilization rate is 75.1% for K-9
students and 91.3% for Grades 10-12 students. The CBE will continue to use
planning strategies to improve use of facilities and increase utilization rates in
Areas with low utilization.

A summary of utilization by enrolment and by residence follows below and is
included in detail in Appendix I. Utilization by enrolment identifies the number
of students attending schools in an Area expressed as a percentage of the total
capacity. Utilization by residence identifies the number of students residing in an
Area expressed as a percentage of the total capacity. Projections for 2014-2015
account for additional school capacity through new construction and capacity
reductions through school closure and consolidation.

Area Utilization by Student Enrolment

Calgary Board of Education

2010-2011 Actual 2014-2015 Projections
K-9 Grades 10-12 K-9 Grades 10-12

Area Utilization Utilization Utilization Utilization
I 76.75% 108.84% 82.97% 67.82%
1] 77.04% 89.54% 77.55% 79.43%
11! 79.15% 85.86% 82.07% 76.16%
v 67.13% 90.20% 74.36% 79.62%
\% 72.68% 89.38% 79.50% 79.28%
Total 74.65% 91.30% 79.34% 77.09%

Area Utilization by Student Residence

75.47%

97.00%

79.81%

Prepared by Capital and Urban Planning Services

2010-2011 Actual 2014-2015 Projections
K-9 Grades 10-12 K-9 Grades 10-12

Area Utilization Utilization Utilization Utilization
I 85.08% 153.05% 91.52% 94.35%
Il 65.35% 58.87% 65.45% 51.66%
1] 87.67% 137.65% 90.46% 120.78%
v 67.81% 83.95% 74.73% 73.31%
\% 72.98% 95.09% 79.42% 83.45%

81.03%
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Map 2
2010-2011 Municipal Communities in Areas

(See List of Community Code Definitions)
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ABB
ACA
ALB
ALT
APP
ARB
ASP
AUB
BNF
BNK
BYV
BED
BEL
BLN
BDO
BOW-N
BOW-S
BRA
BRE
BRD
BRI
BRT
CAM
CAN
CAP
CAS
CED
CFC
CFL
CHA
CHW-N
CHW-S
CHN
CHK
CHR
CIT
CLI
COA
CcoL
CPF
COR
CGR
CHV
cou
cov
CRA
CRE
CRM
DAL
DRG
DRN
DIA
DIS
DDG
Dov
DNC
DNE
DNW
EAG
EMC
EAU
EDG
EPK
EYA
ERI
ERL
EVN
EVE
FAI

Abbeydale

Acadia

Albert Park/Radisson Hts
Altadore
Applewood Park
Arbour Lake

Aspen Woods
Auburn Bay

Banff Tralil
Bankview

Bayview
Beddington Hts
Bel-Aire

Beltline

Bonavista Downs
Bowness-N
Bowness-S
Braeside
Brentwood
Bridgeland/Riverside
Bridlewood
Britannia

Cambrian Hts
Canyon Meadows
Capitol Hill
Castleridge
Cedarbrae

CFB - Currie

CFB - Lincoln Park PMQ
Chaparral
Charleswood-N
Charleswood-S
Chinatown

Chinook Park
Christie Park
Citadel

Cliff Bungalow
Coach Hill
Collingwood
Copperfield

Coral Springs
Cougar Ridge
Country Hills Village
Country Hills
Coventry Hills
Cranston

Crescent Hts
Crestmont
Dalhousie

Deer Ridge

Deer Run

Diamond Cove
Discovery Ridge
Douglasdale/Glen
Dover

Downtown Commercial Core
Downtown East Village
Downtown West End
Eagle Ridge

East Macleod (ASP)
Eau Claire
Edgemont

Elbot Park

Elboya

Erin Woods

Erlton

Evanston
Evergreen

Fairview

FAL
FHT
FLN
GLA
GBK
GDL
GRV-N
GRV-S
GRE
HAM
HAR
HAW
HAY
HID
HPK
HIW
HIL
HOU
HUN
ING
KEL
KIL
KCA
KIN
LKB
LKV
LEG
LPK
LMR
LYX
MAC
MAH
MAN
MPL
MRL
MPK
MRT
MAF
MAL
MCK
MCT
MEA
MID
MLR
MIS
MOR
MON
MOP
NEB
NOL
NGM-N
NGM-S
NHV
NHU
OAK
0GD
PAL
PAN
PKD
PKH
PKL
PAT
PEN
PIN
POI
PUM
QPK
QLD
RAM

Falconridge

Forest Heights
Forest Lawn
Glamorgan
Glenbrook
Glendale
Greenview-N
Greenview-S
Greenwood/Greenbriar
Hamptons

Harvest Hills
Hawkwood
Haysboro

Hidden Valley
Highland Park
Highwood

Hillhurst

Hnsfld Hts/Briar Hill
Huntington Hills
Inglewood

Kelvin Grove
Killarney/Glengarry
Kincora

Kingsland

Lake Bonavista
Lakeview

Legacy

Lincoln Park

Lower Mount Royal
Lynx Ridge
MacEwan Glen
Mahogany
Manchester

Maple Ridge
Marlborough
Marlborough Park
Martindale

Mayfair

Mayland Heights
McKenzie Lake
McKenzie Towne
Meadowlark Park
Midnapore

Millrise

Mission

Monterey Park
Montgomery
Mount Pleasant
New Brighton
Nolan Hill

North Glenmore Park-N
North Glenmore Park-S
North Haven

North Haven Upper
Oakridge

Ogden

Palliser

Panorama Hills
Parkdale

Parkhill

Parkland

Patterson
Penbrooke Meadows
Pineridge

Point Mckay

Pump Hill

Queen’s Park Village
Queensland
Ramsay

Municipal Community Code Definitions

RAN
RED
REN
RIC-E
RIC-W
RID
RIV
ROC
RDL
RMT
RCK
ROX
ROY
RUN
RUT
SAD
SRI
SGH
SAN
SCA
SSW
SCE
SET
SHG
SHS
SHN
SHW
SIG
SIL
SVO
SKR
SOM
SoC
SMC
SOV
SOwW
SPH
SPR
STA
STR
SNA
SDC
SSD
TAR
TEM
THO-N
THO-S
TUS
TUX
UNI
uocC
UMR
VAL
VAR
VIS
WAL
WHL-E
WHL-W
WSP
WGT
WHI
WLD
WIL
WND
WIN
WBN
WOOo

Ranchlands

Red Carpet
Renfrew
Richmond-E
Richmond-W
Rideau Park
Riverbend

Rocky Ridge
Rosedale
Rosemont
Rosscarrock
Roxboro

Royal Oak
Rundle

Rutland Park
Saddle Ridge
Saddle Ridge Industrial
Sage Hill
Sandstone Valley
Scarboro
Scarboro/Sunalta West
Scenic Acres
Seton
Shaganappi
Shawnee Slopes
Shawnessy
Sherwood

Signal Hill

Silver Springs
Silverado
Skyview Ranch
Somerset

South Calgary
South Macleod ASP
Southview
Southwood
Springbank Hill
Spruce Cliff

St. Andrews Hts
Strathcona Park
Sunalta
Sundance
Sunnyside
Taradale

Temple
Thorncliffe-N
Thorncliffe-S
Tuscany

Tuxedo Park
University Heights
University of Calgary
Upper Mount Royal
Valley Ridge
Varsity

Vista Heights
Walden

West Hillhurst-E
West Hillhurst-W
West Springs
Westgate
Whitehorn
Wildwood

Willow Park
Windsor Park
Winston Hts/Mntview
Woodbine
Woodlands
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2.4 Planning and Consolidation of Surplus Space

System Student Accommodation Plan

The CBE has a Three-Year System Student Accommodation Plan to inform
appropriate decision-making and timely engagement for community members and
parents in CBE accommodation planning. The process applies to and informs
recommendations regarding all school and program accommodation issues. A
Three-Year System Student Accommodation Plan is developed to support and
reflect the Three-Year Education Plan, Three-Year School Capital Plan, and the
Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy.

Student accommodation needs are identified by the Department of Community
Engagement and Operational Planning in consultation with Area Directors.
Administration is responsible for engaging internal and external stakeholders
regarding student accommodation challenges.

Potential School Space Consolidation

The CBE is strongly committed to effective use of space and resources.
Consolidation of schools with low enrolments and the consolidation of programs
will continue in future years through the Three-Year System Student
Accommodation Plan.

Areas with low enrolments require effective strategies for programming for
students and, in some cases this is achieved through a school consolidation. In
other Areas, a combination of program consolidation through introduction of
alternative programs and other strategies is required. The Three-Year System
Student Accommodation Plan identifies future accommodation issues and
challenges for the five Areas. Strategies identified in this Three-Year School
Capital Plan are consistent with the Three-Year System Student Accommodation
Plan.

There are currently six schools that are under construction. There will be 6,900
student spaces added to the CBE over the next three school years and potential
school space consolidation will need to be evaluated.

The Three-Year System Student Accommodation Plan will identify issues and
challenges that may lead to consideration of closures of schools or programs on
an annual basis. The estimated capacity that can be reduced over the next ten
years is approximately 12,300 student spaces.
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Program Opportunities for Students

The CBE is committed to a balance among equity, access, excellence, and choice
within the school system and consequently offers a wide variety of programs for
students of all ages. Programs are designed to enrich the lives of students and to
promote quality learning. They recognize the many diverse ways of learning and
the many interests and abilities of students. Through the Three-Year System
Student Accommodation Plan, these programs are initiated where space is
available and as close as possible to where demand for the programs exists. A
link to the website is as follows:

http://www.cbe.ab.ca/Schools/ceop/pdfs/SSAP2010-2013.pdf

New School Construction and School Approvals

Six new elementary schools that were part of the ASP Phase | process opened for
the 2010-2011 school year:

Recent School Openings

School Year Provincial Provincial Day School
Opening School Grade Capacity Approval Opened

2010-2011 Bridlewood K-6 600 June 14, 2007 2010-Sep-01
Cranston K-4 550 June 14, 2007 2010-Sep-01
Evergreen K-4 550 June 14, 2007 2010-Sep-01
Royal Oak K-4 550 June 14, 2007 2010-Sep-01
Saddle Ridge | K-3 550 June 14, 2007 2010-Sep-01
West Springs | K-5 550 June 14, 2007 2010-Sep-01

The Province will undertake four middle schools and one senior high school as
part of ASAP Phase Il. The City of Calgary, the Province, and CBE entered into
a Memorandum of Agreement for the construction of a high school in west
Calgary. This is a replacement school for Ernest Manning High School that will
be closed as a result of the west LRT project being undertaken by The City of
Calgary.

Future School Openings

Approved
School Year Opening | School Grade Capacity | Approval Date
2011-2012 West Calgary High Grades 10-12 1,800 | November 2008
2012-2013 Coventry Hills Middle Grades 5-9 900 | January 30, 2008
Panorama Hills Middle Grades 5-9 900 | January 30, 2008
Taradale Middle Grades 5-9 900 | January 30, 2008
Tuscany Middle Grades 5-9 900 | January 30, 2008
2013-2014 Northwest Calgary High Grades 10-12 1,500 | January 30, 2008
Total School Capacity 6,900 \
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Map 3 identifies the location of schools under construction and approved for funding.

Map 3
School Construction Projects
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Communities Where Schools Have Been
Approved for Funding Prepared by Capital & Urban Planning Services
August 2010

Under Construction V:\Elayne\201012010 AVSchool\Projects\New School Construction\2012 New Construction
COV 1  COVENTRY HILLS
PAN 2 PANORAMAHILLS
TAR 3 TARADALE
TUS 4  TUSCANY
ARB 5  NORTHWEST CALGARY HIGH
SPH 6  WEST CALGARY HIGH
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2.6 Modular Units

The CBE defines modular units as being either portable or relocatable units. A
portable is a stand-alone unit ranging in age from the 1960s to the 1980s (two
portables are from the 1990s). The majority of portable units are in the 1960s.
Portable units typically have wood siding, gabled roofs, dual entrances, and are
designed to stand alone. In contrast, relocatable units are typically designed with
flat roofs and metal siding. Typically, these units are designed to be joined together
with other like units via an attaching corridor. This style enables the units to be
more easily attached to each other and main school structures.

The lifespan of modular units is approximately 25 to 30 years. Many of the current
units in the CBE inventory were constructed prior to 1997 and no longer conform to
the 2006 Alberta Building Code. These units, built in the 1960s and 1970s,
represent approximately 28% of the inventory, and have exceeded their original
lifespan. As a result, many units require significant upgrades and/or reconstruction
when relocated and frequently cost more than 75% of the unit replacement value.

Modular Units
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In the summer of 2009, the CBE undertook a re-evaluation audit of its complete
modular inventory. The intent of this modular audit was to rate the condition of
each unit’s interior, exterior, and roof condition. Additionally, the report noted the
condition of furnaces, skirting, venting, and other notes depicting the condition of
each individual unit. The modular audit used the same rating structure as Alberta
Infrastructure’s Renewal Capital Asset Planning Process (RECAPP).
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This modular audit has become an important report used by the CBE. The CBE’s
Facility Services use this audit to continually evaluate conditions of modular units,
and then maintain those units. The CBE’s Capital Planning and Development
Services additionally uses the modular audit to set priorities when evaluating and
finding units for demolition with no replacement, as well as demolition with
replacement.

School utilization rates, enrolment projections, school functionality, and future
accommodation plans play an important part when making decisions about modular
units that should otherwise be demolished. By reviewing this background
information, in conjunction with the modular audit, the potential list of aging
modular units can be narrowed, analyzing the need for those units otherwise
designated for demolition or demolition with replacement, meeting priority
accommodation needs within the CBE. This annual effort has resulted in the
development of the Three-Year Modular Accommodation Strategy 2010-2013
(Strategy).

The Strategy identifies new units, moves, demolitions, and replacements to be taken
over a three year period. The Strategy is updated on an annual basis as needs and
items come forward and/or are completed. If items within this Strategy become
emergent they are brought forward and addressed. In 2010, Year 1 of the Strategy,
the CBE demolished 11 modular units, of which eight were of 1960s vintage and
three were of 1970s vintage.

In September 2010, six new P3 schools were added to the overall CBE facility
inventory and were constructed complete with attached modular units. A total of 62
new modular units were constructed for the six new P3 schools. Bridlewood
School has 12 units and the remaining five schools (Cranston, Evergreen, Royal
Oak, Saddle Ridge, and West Springs) have 10 modular units each.

To date, the total current 2010-2011 inventory count is 640 modular units. Over
and above this count there are six modular units designated as daycare units, which
are owned by the Province but maintained by the CBE. Battalion Park, Chaparral,
and Tuscany schools have two units each.

2.7 School Major Modernization

School major modernization projects provide for the renovation of whole or part of
a school building to address physical obsolescence and/or improve functional
adequacy and suitability for present and future educational programs. School major
modernization projects should not exceed 75% of the replacement value of the
school building as per provincial guidelines. The approval of Western Canada High
School’s $35 million modernization in 2007 has been the only CBE modernization
approval in the last eight years. The Western Canada modernization will be
substantially completed by the end of 2011.
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From the 242 CBE-owned facilities, 233 are schools. One-hundred and forty of the
school buildings are more than 40 years old. This represents 60% of the school
building inventory. The current inventory by decade of CBE school buildings is
shown in the following graph:

Current School Building Inventory by Decade
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In 2004, the Province undertook a rolling condition assessment of schools in the
Renewal Capital Asset Planning Process and planned to audit CBE facilities every
five years. In the spring of 2009, Alberta Infrastructure recommenced evaluations
starting with the former 2004 assessments, thus continuing the five-year assessment
cycle. Approximately 40 to 50 facilities are audited every year. Findings of the
re-evaluation are incorporated into maintenance, modernization, and facility
planning for the CBE projects.

The CBE administration has evaluated modernization priorities for this year’s
Capital Plan. Key factors that are evaluated to determine priorities are:

e Role of the school and accommodation plans.

o Enrolment, utilization rates, and enrolment projections.
« Site features and location.

« Facility condition.

o Ability to upgrade the facility.

There are 20 modernization projects that have been included as part of this year’s
Capital Plan. Modernization projects are included in Appendix II.

A planned CBE strategy to address the new Career and Technology Studies (CTS)
curriculum requires approval of modernization projects to be undertaken in high
schools in each of Areas I, II, Il and V. These schools require priority placements
for major modernization projects in order to deliver CTS courses to students in each
of the four Areas. The Lord Shaughnessy High School modernization in Area IV is
under construction and is the first modernization project undertaken for the Career
and Technology Studies curriculum. As well, Chinook Learning, Piitoayis Family
School, and Christine Meikle School have been placed in priority order.
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2.8 Property and Leasing Strategies

The property and leasing strategies of the CBE provide the framework for
management of surplus school space, responsive to the Three-Year Education Plan
and directly correlated with the planning and utilization strategies as contained in
the Three-Year School Capital Plan.

Capacity Exemptions

Provincial policy allows for capacity exemptions through facility and/or partial
facility closures, as well as lease of surplus school space. The strategy of leasing to
receive capacity exemptions is considered a useful alternative to reduce the capacity
of schools that are moderately under-utilized. It is not considered a pragmatic
alternative for schools that are highly under-utilized and, as a result, leasing policy
recommends that lease initiatives be concentrated on those schools with a utilization
rate of 60% or higher. Schools with a significantly lower rate of utilization require
a systematic review prior to leasing being considered as the solution to reduce the
capacity of the school.

Leasing is Cost Neutral

The CBE supports the lease of surplus school space to organizations whose goals
and initiatives are aligned with the CBE’s vision and mission. Unless otherwise
approved by the Board of Trustees, all lease arrangements are provided on a “cost
neutral” basis, such that a lease fee is charged to recover costs incurred by the
Board in the provision of leased space. Closed facilities which are leased entirely
by a third party are assessed a lease rate based on market rates, in accordance with
Provincial policies.

The CBE performs an annual review of leases and will adjust lease rates where
required to ensure cost recovery for third-party use of surplus school space, as well
as conformance to Provincial guidelines.

System Perspective

The complex facility requirements of the CBE require that utilization of facilities be
considered on a system-wide basis. Property and leasing strategies are impacted by
ongoing system requirements for program and administrative space, as well as
provincial and municipal regulations, and market demand.

Closed schools are reviewed on an ongoing basis, in conjunction with system
accommodation planning.  The facility review process considers system
requirements for both the short and long term, and assists in determining whether a
property is reoccupied for CBE purposes, leased, or recommended for disposition.

Integrated Workplace System

The CBE maintains a vast amount of data pertaining to a multitude of properties
and buildings. Building data is currently being consolidated into an Integrated
Workplace Management System, a web-based database for a wide range of property
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and building data. The availability of facility information to various service units
through a common database will allow for long-term costs savings gained through
operational efficiencies.

2.9 Property and Leasing Policy

The CBE’s property and leasing policies not only reflect the goals and objectives of
the Board, but must also be congruent with provincial policy and regulations, as
well as City of Calgary by-laws and the Joint Use Agreement. A challenge exists to
develop a property and leasing policy which satisfies all regulatory requirements
while addressing Board objectives and allowing for innovative solutions to complex
property requirements.

The current property and leasing policy supports the Three-Year Education Plan
and allows for alternative uses for surplus school space which may create added
value for schools and communities.

2.10 Alternative Funding Models

Six new elementary schools opened for the 2010-2011 school year. Four middle
schools and two senior high schools are currently under construction. These capital
projects will assist in meeting new school needs for high priority communities
where student demand is significant. There is still pressure for CBE capital projects
as evidenced by nine new school construction projects and 11 modernization
projects in Year 1 of the previous School Capital Plan 2011-2014. The School
Capital Plan 2011-2014 was submitted to the Province on April 21, 2010, and there
have been no approvals announced to date.

In view of the lack of capital project approvals from the last three School Capital
Plan submissions, the CBE continues to be willing to examine alternative funding
models with government groups, borrowing money or issuing bonds to address new
school construction, and school modernization needs for the City. Alternative
funding models could be used to supplement the CBE’s funding from the provincial
government and ongoing discussions will help to determine future opportunities.

To make effective use of all potential capital funding sources, the CBE must
continue to investigate and leverage alternative funding mechanisms to support the
mitigation of the significant backlog in deferred maintenance within the CBE. In
2009-2010, administration identified a Phase Four energy savings retrofit project
that would again utilize a capital leasing approach to undertake the retrofit of
another 15 schools within the CBE commencing in the 2010-2011 school year and
in keeping with the characteristics identified above.

This was done through leveraging surplus short-term cash funds held by the CBE
resulting in reduced borrowing costs. In addition, changes are required in the
Capital Borrowing Regulations to engage school districts to better utilize borrowing
mechanisms. The Phase Four Energy Retrofit, to be undertaken by Ameresco, was
approved on May 25, 2010, by the Board of Trustees and approved by the Minister
of Education.
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Collaborative Initiatives with The City of Calgary

For many years, the CBE and The City of Calgary have enjoyed a strong working
relationship. This relationship has been expressed through both city-wide initiatives
and specific initiatives focussed on property, leasing, and infrastructure challenges.
The following initiatives are examples of the CBE working together with the City:

e The west LRT is currently under construction and is progressing well. The west
LRT will have an impact on Ernest Manning High School and the Westbrook
Station is planned at this site. An 1,800-student-capacity school (West Calgary
High School) will replace Ernest Manning High School in the Springbank Hill
community. The CBE allowed the City to access a portion of the Ernest
Manning playfields to begin work on the Westbrook LRT Station. Ernest
Manning will be closed once students have relocated to the new school.

« The CBE worked with the City on plans for the new ten-storey CBE
Administration Centre on 12" Avenue SW and 8" Street SW. A key
component of the Administration Building Complex includes the renovation and
modernization of the Dr. Carl Safran School, which is one of the CBE’s original
sandstone structures located on the site (formally known as Central High). The
CBE and The City of Calgary reached an agreement to ensure one-third of the
site is used for green space and that there is no net loss of functional open space
in the community.

« The CBE and the City participated on a Provincial Working Committee with the
City of Edmonton’s representatives to pursue the use of vacant surplus school
envelopes to accommodate a range of community service-based uses.
Amendments had been made to the Municipal Government Act to accommodate
community uses. The CBE has returned 12 vacant school sites to the City, two
of which have been used for other municipal purposes. The City is evaluating
the ten remaining sites for open space needs and/or community service uses.

o CBE representatives have been involved in city-wide initiatives such as the new
Land Use Bylaw, annexation and Plan It Calgary. Annexation was completed
in 2007 and the Land Use Bylaw update was completed in mid-2008, while
Plan It Calgary was implemented April 1, 2010.

« The CBE and the City are involved in ecologically friendly initiatives that
represent a mutual commitment to responsible environmental stewardships. In
this domain, the CBE’s recent initiative to establish an Eco-Team meshes well
with the City’s commitment to responsible stewardship of the Calgary
environment. The CBE’s Eco-Team was awarded the 2009 Emerald Award in
the Government Institution category.
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3.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PLAN CRITERIA

The CBE defines a school community as the population required to sustain a school. In
the new and developing municipal communities, elementary school communities
generally reflect municipal community boundaries. The junior high and middle school
communities can serve one large municipal community or two or more small-to-medium-
sized municipal communities. In the inner-city and established areas, school
communities tend to cover larger geographic areas for elementary, junior high, and
middle schools, and do not always align with municipal community boundaries as there is
a large range of municipal community sizes and demographics.

The CBE has developed a standardized process to evaluate new school construction for
school attendance areas in the new and developing municipal communities. This
approach is designed to be transparent, equitable, and fair to all municipal communities.

3.1 Construction Planning Criteria: Kindergarten to Grade 9 Schools

There are two types of criteria in the evaluation process used to rank school
communities for capital building priorities in the Three-Year School Capital Plan.
These are as follows:

1. Eligibility Criteria acts as a screening filter for new capital projects and must
be met before a school community evaluation proceeds to the ranking
phase.

2. Ranking Criteria that will be used to further evaluate and prioritize new
capital projects.

Eligibility Criteria

« Eligible School Communities

For the Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015 all new and developing
municipal communities will be ranked for new school construction. Inner-city
and established areas are not ranked.

Most municipal communities have an elementary site and are ranked
individually as a school community. In certain cases, two small municipal
communities form one school community where they do not exceed the
community population threshold of 10,000 people. In the case of
middle/junior high schools, adjacent municipal communities can form one
school community where they do not exceed the community population
threshold of 24,000 people. Large municipal communities that can sustain a
middle/junior high school are ranked individually as a school community.
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« Accommodation Options

This criteria is used to evaluate student accommodation options for eligible
school communities. There should be a logical progression from an
elementary (K-4) school to a middle school (Grades 5-9) in order to allow
students to progress to higher grades. In some cases, an accommodation
option may exist and a school community may not need to be ranked for new
school construction.

Ranking Criteria I

For school communities that meet the eligibility criteria, a ranking is applied
based upon criteria identified in three categories: the Community Growth Profile;
Busing and Travel Time; and Accommodation. Points for each of the profiles are
totalled and used to rank priorities for new school construction.

o« Community Growth Profile

Point assignments are given to school communities based on growth factors.
Based on this information, three categories have been developed for ranking
purposes: preschool census/student enrolment; community build-out
potential/student enrolment; and, annual average population growth.

o Busing and Travel Time

Point assignments are given to school communities based on Busing and
Travel Time assessment. Based on this information, two categories have been
developed for ranking purposes: median travel time and number of bus
receivers.

« Accommodation Available for a Community

Two additional categories exist for middle schools to reflect continuity of
accommodation plans. Points will be awarded if an existing K-4 school has
been approved or constructed in a community. As well, points will be
awarded if students have more than two transition points for schools (e.g., K-
4, Grades 5-6, and Grades 7-9) rather than one transition point.

Calgary Board of Education Prepared by Capital and Urban Planning Services



Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015

A flow chart summarizing the evaluation process for recommended new school
construction follows:

Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015
New School Construction Evaluation Process

I Eligible School Communities
Identify new and developing
school communities.

Eligibility I
Criteria < Accommodation Options
Evaluate accommodation options
for eligible school communities to determine final
communities to be ranked.
~ I
e School Community Profile
. Preschool Census/Enrolment
. Build-Out/Enrolment
. Annual Population Growth
Ranking ,
Criteria

Busing and Travel Time
< . Median Travel Time
o Bus Receivers

Accommodation Available for a Community
. Existing K-4 School or Approved
. Transition Points

~ I

Recommend School Communities
for New School Construction

Capital Projects Submission
to Board of Trustees

3.2 Construction Planning Criteria: Senior High Schools

The Area-based approach is used to evaluate projects for new senior high capital
priorities. Utilization rates are listed below:

Senior High Area Utilization

Residence Enrolment
Area Utilization Utilization
Area | 153.05% 108.84%
Arealll 58.87% 89.54%
Areallll 137.65% 85.86%
Area IV 83.95% 90.20%
AreaV 95.09% 89.38%

Notes:
e Student residence and enrolment as at September 30, 2010

® Capacity is based on Alberta Infrastructure’s Area, Capacity and
Utilization Report dated July 20, 2010
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Area | indicated a very strong demand based upon 153% utilization by residence
and 109% by utilization, and this demand will be met with construction of the
new Northwest Calgary High School to open for the 2013-2014 school year.

The greatest demand for new senior high school construction is an 1,800-capacity
senior high in the northeast. Utilization rates for the northeast are 138%
utilization by residence and 86% utilization by enrolment. Area Il has the
greatest priority with only three high schools. One of these schools, Jack James,
provides an emphasis on Knowledge and Employability courses. Greater detail
related to senior high schools and priorities is discussed in Section 3.4,

There is also demand in Area V based upon 95% utilization by residence and 89%
utilization by enrolment. Increased population growth in the developing
communities in Area V will put pressure on existing schools and additional
capacity at Centennial High School should be considered. Over 50% of the city
growth over the next five years is expected to occur in the south and southeast
developing communities of the city.

3.3 Construction Ranking: Kindergarten to Grade 9

The list of top-ranked school communities for Kindergarten to Grade 9 to be
included in this year’s Plan are:

School Communities ‘

Saddle Ridge Middle

Royal Oak/Rocky Ridge Middle
Evanston Elementary

New Brighton Elementary

New Brighton/Copperfield Middle
Evergreen Middle

Tuscany Elementary @

Copperfield Elementary
Springbank Hill Elementary

10. Auburn Bay Elementary

11. McKenzie Towne Middle

12. Springbank Hill/Discovery Ridge Middle
13. West Springs/Cougar Ridge Middle
14. Panorama Hills Elementary ®

Il ol Il S FA Bl ESl I o

CBE school communities ranked for elementary and middle/junior high schools
must have a site available and have a student population large enough to sustain
an elementary or middle/junior high school per the ranking criteria. New school
construction projects for the top-ranked school communities have been identified
in Section 4.0. Details of ranking for all school communities with points are
included in Appendix IlI.
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When there are ties in the ranking between communities, the community with the
stronger community profile (enrolments, pre-school census) will be placed ahead
as was the case of Evanston (#3) over New Brighton (#4). As well for ties in
ranking, an elementary school will be placed ahead of a middle school for a
community as was the case with New Brighton Elementary (#4) ahead of the New
Brighton/Copperfield Middle (#5). In the case of a tie with a second elementary
being ranked for a community, the community that does not have an elementary
or a middle school (e.g., Evergreen #6) will place ahead of the community being
ranked for a second school (e.g., Tuscany #7).

Construction Priorities: Senior High Schools

Senior high schools (see Map 4) are not ranked using point criteria but are
recommended on the new school construction priority list based on need.

Centennial High School

A 400-capacity expansion at Centennial High School is identified as a high
priority in this Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015. The current
attendance area for Centennial High School includes the communities of
Bridlewood, Chaparral, Evergreen, Midnapore, Millrise, Shawnee Slopes,
Shawnessy, Somerset, and Sundance. Additional space is required at Centennial
High School to accommodate the anticipated growth of the developing
communities in Area V.

Northeast High School

A high priority for new high school construction is in the northeast. Lester B.
Pearson High School and Forest Lawn High School are currently unable to
accommodate all Area Il senior high students. Arealll has a large student
population by residence with 6,629 senior high students. Students residing in the
communities of Castleridge, Coral Springs, Falconridge, Martindale, and Taradale
are designated to James Fowler, located in the Highland Park community
(Area Il) and students residing in the community of Saddle Ridge are designated
to Crescent Heights, located in the Crescent Heights community (Area ll).
Skyview Ranch is a new developing community north of Saddle Ridge and
students are designated to Lester B. Pearson (Area IlI).

There are 1,258 students from communities north of McKnight Boulevard NE that
attend James Fowler High School and Crescent Heights High School.
Communities north of McKnight Boulevard NE will have a build-out population
of 70,000 people and generate over 1,800 students in Grades 10-12.

The CBE has an 18.6 acre northeast senior high school site on the north portion of
a 48-acre joint use site in the Martindale community. The site will also
accommodate the Genesis Centre for Health and Wellness for cultural,
recreational, and library uses. Partners of the project are: the Northeast Centre
Community Society, YMCA, Public Library, and The City of Calgary. The
Genesis Centre project is under construction and is to be completed fall of 2011.
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Map 4

% Senior High Schools and Future Senior High Sites
Mlﬁl Located within Administrative Area and Sector Boundaries

North Serigy
High Site/

COUNTRY HILLSBVNE.

Lo, It Northwest Senior,
%&‘Qz @’ High Site Northeast Senior
&, High Site
®

Bowness

r Wiliam Vanao¥

Lester B. Pearsan
6 AVNE

d

Ernest Manning | ¥ & Lk idmes
~ @ sy estem Canada Forest Law@®

17 AvSE

-

® 2 ]
West Senior| High Site @

‘LLB Certral Memoﬁaﬁlvmwa e High A
rd

ghnessy

SO

oW CHILDTR

Areal = Sectors 1/2 N &-tefyfwiseyvood
Areall = Sectors 3/4
Arealll = Sectors 5

ArealV = Sectors 6/7 Lord Beaverbrook
AreaV = Sectors 8/9

ALEN VORE TRSE

MACLECD TR S

or E. P. Scarlet®

Véi

ESpIuteeEr=E)

9
=

Centeni\al @

Fo
=

o

(5

Southeast Senior

% High(fj e

[ AreaBoundary
Sector Boundary m /_,.,-7
Community Boundary

®  Senior High School ";f i

®  Senior High Site Prepared by Capital & Urban Plaming Services
March 2007
V:\Elayne\2006 AVSchodl\Projects\Senior High Area-Sector Groups

Calgary Board of Education

Prepared by Capital and Urban Planning Services



Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015

4.0 THREE-YEAR SCHOOL CAPITAL PLAN 2012-2015 - SUMMARY

Capital projects are reviewed and prioritized by the Ministry of Education prior to being
submitted to the government’s Capital Planning Initiative process led by the Treasury
Board. Projects are first reviewed for accuracy and clarity and Provincial staff may meet
with school jurisdictions to obtain further information as required.

Alberta Education will prioritize project requests by first considering school jurisdiction
priorities and then the following criteria:

o Health and Safety

« Building Condition

« Utilization Rates

o Enrolment Projections

e Education Program Delivery
o Additional Information

Alberta Education then prepares the annual submission for the Provincial Capital
Planning Initiative. All government projects are evaluated and prioritized using a Project
Rating System consisting of program delivery, infrastructure, performance, economical,
and financial impacts.

An in-depth review of the ranking rationale assigned to each capital project is undertaken
by a cross-ministry committee, resulting in a recommendation being submitted to the
Deputy Minister Capital Planning Committee, and then to the Treasury Board Capital
Planning Committee. Provincial Caucus reviews the Treasury Board recommendations
and, ultimately, approves the Provincial Capital Plan.

This section provides a summary of recommended new school construction and major
modernization projects. Table 1 (New School Construction) and Table 2 (School
Modernizations) provides a summary of the recommended projects and project costs are
based upon 2011 Alberta Infrastructure support prices. Sections 5.0 through 6.0 provide
details of the recommended projects.

Projects are listed in order of priority. The CBE has not identified a Year 1, Year 2 and
Year 3 category as was done in previous years. No approvals have occurred for three
years and one master list is being used for current priorities. Details of modernization
rankings are in Appendix Il and details of new school construction priority rankings are
identified in Appendix I11.

The sections that follow this summary (Sections 5.0 to 6.0) describe the community and
school profiles in order of priority. The key maps in the top right corner of the page
depict the location of the community described for new construction projects. The light-
shaded areas represent all the new and developing communities in Calgary.

The following tables provide a summary of the new school construction and major
modernization projects recommended for funding and these are identified on Map 5 and
Map 6.
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Table 1: New School Construction

Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015 Priorities
Priority Ranking — Project Description
Community/School Grade Project Type 2011 Cost ($)
C-1 Saddle Ridge Middle Gr. 59 New School 23,900,000
C-2 Royal Oak/Rocky Ridge Middle Gr. 59 New School 23,900,000
C-3 Centennial High School Gr. 10-12 Expansion 5,000,000
C-4 Northeast Calgary High Gr. 10-12 New School 46,000,000
C-5 Evanston Elementary K-4 New School 13,000,000
C-6 New Brighton Elementary K-4 New School 13,000,000
C-7 New Brighton/Copperfield Middle Gr. 59 New School 23,900,000
C-8 Evergreen Middle Gr. 59 New School 23,900,000
C-9 Tuscany Elementary @) K-4 New School 13,000,000
C-10 Copperfield Elementary K-4 New School 13,000,000
C-11 Springbank Hill Elementary K-4 New School 13,000,000
C-12 Auburn Bay Elementary K-4 New School 13,000,000
C-13 McKenzie Towne Middle Gr.5-9 New School 23,900,000
C-14 Springbank Hill/Discovery Ridge Middle | Gr.5-9 New School 23,900,000
C-15 West Springs/Cougar Ridge Middle Gr. 59 New School 23,900,000
C-16 Panorama Hills Elementary @) K-4 New School 13,000,000
Total 309,300,000

Note: @ = second elementary school for the community

Table 2: School Major Modernizations

Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2013 Priorities
Community/School Grade Project Type 2011 Cost (3)
M-1 Chinook Learning Services Major Modernization 10,500,000
M-2 Area | High Schools (CTS Program) Gr. 10-12 Major Modernization 24,250,000
M-3 Area V High Schools (CTS Program) Gr. 10-12 Major Modernization 24,250,000
M-4 Area Il High Schools (CTS Program) Gr. 10-12 Major Modernization 24,250,000
M-5 Area Il High Schools (CTS Program) Gr. 10-12 Major Modernization 24,250,000
M-6 Piitoayis Family School K-6 Major Modernization 12,500,000
M-7 Christine Meikle School Gr. 7-12 Major Modernization 7,500,000
M-8 Altadore School K-6 Major Modernization 9,000,000
M-9 Nickle School Gr.5-9 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-10 Sir Wilfrid Laurier School Gr.5-9 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-11  Elboya School K-9 Major Modernization 10,000,000
M-12  Dr. J.K. Mulloy School K-6 Major Modernization 6,000,000
M-13 Henry Wise Wood High School Gr. 9-12 Major Modernization 23,000,000
M-14  Senator Patrick Burns School Gr. 59 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-15  A.E. Cross School Gr. 7-9 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-16 Sir John A. Macdonald Gr. 7-9 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-17 Thomas B. Riley School Gr.5-9 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-18 Robert Warren School Gr.5-9 Major Modernization 4,000,000
M-19 Louis Riel School K-9 Major Modernization 11,000,000
M-20  Woodman School Gr. 59 Major Modernization 9,000,000
Total 265,500,000
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Map 5
2012-2015 - New School Construction Projects
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Map 6
2012-2015 - Major Modernization Projects
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5.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
Priority 1 - Saddle Ridge Middle School (C-1)

School Community Profile

Saddle Ridge Community began development in
1960 and is situated in the Northeast sector of the City
immediately west of 68 Street NE and north of the
Martindale community.

o As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of
occupied dwelling units in Saddle Ridge was 3,299
with a population of 12,961.

o The Saddle Ridge community is planned for an
estimated 7,900 housing units with a population
capacity of 23,190 to 24,300.

o The community had an average annual population
growth of 1,177 persons during the past three-year
period and has completed approximately 42% of its development.

Enrolment Profile

o As of September 30, 2010, there were 609 Kindergarten to Grade 4 and 481
Grades 5-9 students residing in the Saddle Ridge community who attended CBE
schools.

Site Planning and Transportation

« There are two elementary sites and one middle school site in Saddle Ridge. The
Saddle Ridge School (K-3) opened for the 2010-2011 school year. Saddle Ridge
(Grades 4-6) students are bussed to Marlborough.

« Saddle Ridge junior high students are currently bussed to Bob Edwards School,
which is located in the Marlborough community in Area Ill. Median travel time
to Bob Edwards School is 32 minutes.

Recommendation

« Construct a middle school for 500 Grades 5-9 students complete with space to
support a relocatable addition for 400 students in sixteen units. The capacity of
the school will be 900 student spaces.

o The total project cost is budgeted at $23.9 million (January 2011 prices),
including the construction of the new relocatable units, funding for CTS space
and CTS equipment allowance.
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5.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
Priority 2 - Royal Oak/Rocky Ridge Middle (C-2)
School Community Profile
Royal Oak Community began development in 1996 ]

and is situated in the northwest, north of Crowchild
Trail NW and west of Stoney Trail NW.

o As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of o
occupied dwelling units was 3,686 with a BN
population of 10,718. The community is planned SR
for an estimated 3,820 housing units with a —
population capacity of 11,500.

o The community had an average annual population !
growth of 677 persons during the past three-year Gn
period and has completed approximately 96% of its ¢
development.

Rocky Ridge Community began development in 1995 and is located in the
northwest, north of Crowchild Trail and west of Rocky Ridge Road NW.

o As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of occupied dwelling units was
2,709 with a population of 7,093. The community is planned for an estimated
3,160 housing units with a population capacity of 8,200.

o The community had an average annual population growth of 163 persons during
the past three-year period and has completed approximately 86% of its
development.

Enrolment Profile

« As of September 30, 2010, there were 441 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students and
357 Grades 5-9 students residing in the Royal Oak community who attended CBE
schools.

« As of September 30, 2010, there were 268 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students and
222 Grades 5-9 students residing in the Rocky Ridge community who attended
CBE schools.

Site Planning and Transportation

« Royal Oak School (K-4), located on the south portion of the joint use site, opened
for the 2010-2011 school year. There is one middle school site in Royal Oak
located on the north portion of the joint use site.

« Royal Oak and Rocky Ridge Grades 5-9 students are bussed to Simon Fraser
School, which is located in the Brentwood community in Area I. Median travel
time to Simon Fraser is 28 minutes.
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5.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
Priority 2 - Royal Oak/Rocky Ridge Middle (C-2)
Recommendation

« Construct a middle school for 500 Grades 5-9 students complete with space to
support a relocatable addition for 400 students in sixteen units. The capacity of
the school will be 900 student spaces.

o The total project cost is budgeted at $23.9 million (January 2011 prices),
including the construction of the new relocatable units, funding for CTS space
and CTS equipment allowance.
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5.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
Priority 3 - Centennial High School (C-3)
Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Centennial High School is located in southeast Calgary in the community of
Sundance, which is an established community.

« Regular Program

Centennial High School currently accommodates the Regular program for
Grades 10-12 students living in the communities of Bridlewood, Chaparral,
Evergreen, Midnapore, Millrise, Shawnee Slopes, Shawnessy, Somerset, and
Sundance.

Area V consists of southwest and southeast developing communities. These areas
will comprise approximately 50% of the City’s growth over the next five years.

The southwest developing communities’ five-year growth is 19,800 to 21,900
people. The southeast developing communities’ five-year growth is expected to be
32,200 to 35,600 people. This will put pressure on Area V high schools and
accommodation plans will need to be developed. Additional capacity at Centennial
High School will be required to ease pressure for student accommodation in the
south.

Facility Description

The school was built in 2004. The school structure sits on a pile and grade-beam
foundation. The super-structure is constructed of concrete slab on grade. The super-
structure is comprised of steel columns, exterior curtain walls, concrete block, and
steel deck. The exterior fagade is both metal siding and masonry.

The total area of the building is 15,309 m?2 consisting of 61 classrooms for
instruction. A number of classrooms are internal and do not have access to natural
light. Due to its age (younger than ten years of age), Alberta Infrastructure has not
evaluated school’s facilities through RECAPP, and determines a facility of this age
as being in overall excellent condition. There are no evaluation recommendations at
this time.

Expansion

The expansion project identified will add a fourth classroom wing on the west side
of the school. The new wing would be similar in construction and finishing to the
other three wings. The fourth wing would be comprised of 16 classrooms (400
student capacity), lockers along the corridors, two staircases, support space (offices
and storage rooms) and a small entry addition that would extend the core school’s
central corridor or street to enclose the north end of the wing addition, thereby
relocating the west entry to align with the west edge of the new wing. The fourth
wing addition would add approximately 2,300 m? to the school at an estimated cost
of $5 million (January 2011 prices).
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5.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
Priority 4 - Northeast Calgary High School (C-4)
School Community Profile
The Northeast High School will serve the residents —~ ]

of the developing and established communities north of
McKnight Boulevard NE.

o Currently, the. northeast area is served by Forest s
Lawn High School, Jack James High School, and mS
Lester B. Pearson High School in Area Ill, and by S
Crescent Heights High School and James Fowler —
High School in Area Il.

« A site is available in Martindale for a new senior
high school. The senior high school will be on the
north portion of the 48-acre site and the Genesis
Centre will be on the south half of the site (see
Section 3.4 for details).

Enrolment Profile

« Area Il has a utilization rate by residence of 138% and a utilization rate by
enrolment of 86%.

o Lester B. Pearson has a provincial capacity of 1,715 student spaces and a
utilization rate by enrolment of 93% and is operating at peak capacity for its
design. The provincial capacity is considered to be approximately 200 spaces
greater than the school can comfortably accommodate.

« Jack James has a net capacity of 885 student spaces for a utilization rate by
enrolment of 89%. A large number of students are in the Knowledge and
Employability classes.

« Forest Lawn has a utilization rate by enrolment of 79%.

o Crescent Heights and James Fowler are located in Area Il and accommodate
additional demand for students from Area Ill. There are 1,258 students from the
northeast communities of Castleridge, Coral Springs, Falconridge, Martindale,
and Taradale that attend James Fowler High School. An additional 236 students
from Saddle Ridge attend Crescent Heights High School.

Site Planning and Transportation

Several communities in the northeast are bussed to Area Il schools.

Recommendation

« Construct a senior high school for 1,800 Grades 10-12 students.

« The total project cost is budgeted at $46 million (January 2011 prices); including
the CTS space allowance and an allowance for CTS equipment in the amount of
$1 million.
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5.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
Priority 5 - Evanston Elementary School (C-5)
School Community Profile

Evanston Community began development in 2002 T
and is situated in the North sector of the City, north of !
Stoney Trail and east of Symons Valley Road. X

« As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of _
occupied dwelling units was 1,675 with a =
population of 5,183.

L1

« The community is planned for an estimated 6,510
housing units with a population capacity of 17,570
to 18,400. A

. The community has had an average annual o
population growth of 638 persons during the past
three-year period and has completed approximately
26% of its development.

AN S===aa kg

Enrolment Profile

« As of the April 2010 Census, there were 509 public pre-school-aged children in
Evanston.

« As of September 30, 2010, there were 210 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students
residing in the Evanston community that attended CBE schools.

Site Planning and Transportation

« There are two elementary sites and one middle school site in Evanston.

« Evanston elementary students are bussed to Cambrian Heights School, which is
located in the Cambrian Heights community in Area Il. Median travel time to
Cambrian Heights is 33 minutes.

Recommendation

« Construct a core elementary K-4 school for 300 students complete with space to
support a modular addition for 300 students in twelve units. The capacity of the
school will be 600 student spaces.

« The total project cost is budgeted at $13.0 million (January 2011 prices).
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5.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
Priority 6 - New Brighton Elementary School (C-6)
School Community Profile

New Brighton Community began development in ]
2002 and is located in the Southeast sector of the City,
immediately east of the McKenzie Towne community,
south of 130 Avenue SE and north of Mclvor Boulevard ,
SE. =

o As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of
occupied dwelling units in New Brighton was 2,121
with a population of 6,078.

M
1]

o The community is planned for an estimated 4,490
housing units with a population capacity of 12,550 to
13,200.

o The community had an average annual population
growth of 1,133 persons during the past three-year period and has completed
approximately 47% of its development.

Enrolment Profile

« As of the April 2010 Census, there were 566 public pre-school-aged children.

o As of September 30, 2010, there were 234 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students
residing in New Brighton who attended CBE schools.

Site Planning and Transportation

« There is one elementary and one middle school site in New Brighton. The
middle school site will also serve Copperfield.

« New Brighton students are currently accommodated in Acadia School located in
the Acadia community in Area V. Median travel time to Acadia is 32 minutes.

Recommendation

« Construct a core elementary K-4 school for 300 students complete with space to
support a modular addition for 300 students in twelve units. The capacity of the
school will be 600 student spaces.

« The total project cost is budgeted at $13.0 million (January 2011 prices).
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5.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
Priority 7 - New Brighton/Copperfield Middle School (C-7)
School Community Profile

New Brighton Community began development in W:J—T
2002 and is situated in the southwest, north of Mclvor , |
Boulevard SE, south of 130 Avenue SE and east of 52 : );F
Street SE. al

« As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of
occupied dwelling units was 2,121 with a
population of 6,078. The community is planned
for an estimated 4,490 housing units with a
population capacity of 12,550 to 13,200. :

« The community had an average annual population .
growth of 1,133 persons during the past three-year
period and has completed approximately 47% of
its development.

il
mll

Copperfield Community began development in 2002 and is located in the
southwest, north of Marquis of Lorne TR SE and south of 130 Avenue SE.

« As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of occupied dwelling units was
2,296 with a population of 6,428. The community is planned for an estimated
5,220 housing units with a population capacity of 13,090 to 13,700.

« The community had an average annual population growth of 909 persons during
the past three-year period and has completed approximately 44% of its
development.

Enrolment Profile

« As of September 30, 2010, there were 234 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students and
163 Grades 5-9 students residing in the New Brighton community who attended
CBE schools.

« As of September 30, 2010, there were 242 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students and
188 Grades 5-9 students residing in the Copperfield community who attended
CBE schools.

Site Planning and Transportation

o There is one elementary and one middle school site in the New Brighton
community and one elementary site located in the Copperfield community. The
new middle school will be located on the middle school site in New Brighton.

« New Brighton middle school students are bussed to David Thompson School,
which is located in the Acadia community in Area V. Copperfield middle school
students are bussed to R.T. Alderman School, which is located in the Willow
Park community. Median travel time to David Thompson and R.T. Alderman is
32 minutes.
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5.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
Priority 7 - New Brighton/Copperfield Middle School (C-7)
Recommendation

« Construct a middle school for 500 Grades 5-9 students complete with space to
support a relocatable addition for 400 students in sixteen units. The capacity of
the school will be 900 student spaces.

« The total project cost is budgeted at $23.9 million (January 2011 prices),
including the construction of the new relocatable units, funding for CTS space
and CTS equipment allowance.
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5.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
Priority 8 - Evergreen Middle (C-8)
School Community Profile
Evergreen Community began development in ]
1990 and is situated approximately 3 kilometres west , |

of Macleod Trail South between 146 Avenue SW and . J;F
162 Avenue SW. 1]

« As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of E.
[
=

1]

occupied dwelling units was 6,372 with a
population of 18,692.

« The community is planned for an estimated 7,490
housing units with a population capacity of 20,960 29,
to 22,000. 3

« The community had an average annual population
growth of 1,348 persons during the past three-year
period and has completed approximately 85% of its development.

Enrolment Profile

o As of September 30, 2010, there were 501 Kindergarten to Grade 4 and 536
Grades 5-9 students residing in the Evergreen community (includes Evergreen
Estates) who attended CBE schools.

Site Planning and Transportation

« Evergreen School (K-4) opened for the 2010-2011 school year. There is one
additional elementary site and one middle school site in Evergreen.

« Evergreen Grades 5-9 students are currently bussed to Woodman School, which
is located in the Haysboro community in Area V. Median travel time to
Woodman School is 24 minutes.

Recommendation

« Construct a middle school for 500 Grades 5-9 students complete with space to
support a relocatable addition for 400 students in sixteen units. The capacity of
the school will be 900 student spaces.

o The total project cost is budgeted at $23.9 million (January 2011 prices),
including the construction of the new relocatable units, funding for CTS space
and CTS equipment allowance.
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5.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
Priority 9 - Tuscany Elementary School @ (C-9)
School Community Profile
Tuscany Community began development in 1995 and ]

is situated in the northwest, south of Crowchild Trail and
west of Stoney Trail.

« As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of
occupied dwelling units was 6,321 with a population
of 18,601.

« The community is planned for an estimated 6,570
housing units with a population capacity of 19,100. H

L1

NI e T

« The community has had an average annual population in i
growth of 827 persons during the past three-year ;
period and has completed approximately 96% of its
development.

Enrolment Profile

« As of the April 2010 Census, there were 1,765 public pre-school-aged children
in Tuscany.

« As of September 30, 2010, there were 1,010 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students
residing in the Tuscany community that attended CBE schools. There is a strong
demand for a second elementary school in Tuscany.

Site Planning and Transportation

« There is one elementary K-4 school located within the south half of Tuscany
community. The north elementary site would be used for the second elementary
school.

« The central site has been approved for a middle school for Grades 5-9 and it is
anticipated that it will open in the 2012-2013 school year.

Recommendation

« Construct a core elementary K-4 school for 300 students complete with space to
support a modular addition for 300 students in twelve units. The capacity of the
school will be 600 student spaces.

« Tuscany School (K-4) is in the south and has a capacity of 613 student spaces.
The site in the north will accommodate long-term enrolment growth for
elementary students.

« The total project cost is budgeted at $13.0 million (January 2011 prices).
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5.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION

Priority 10 - Copperfield Elementary (C-10)

School Community Profile

Copperfield Community began development in
2002 and is located in the Southeast sector of the City,
east of New Brighton and McKenzie Towne and north
of Marquis of Lorne Trail SE.

« As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of
occupied dwelling units in Copperfield was 2,296
with a population of 6,428.

o The Copperfield community is planned for an
estimated 5,220 housing units with a population
capacity of 13,090 to 13,700.

« The community had an average annual population
growth of 909 persons during the past three-year
period and has completed approximately 44% of its development.

Enrolment Profile

« As of the April 2010 Census, there were 643 public pre-school-aged children.

o As of September 30, 2010, there were 242 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students
residing in Copperfield who attended CBE schools.

Site Planning and Transportation

« There is one elementary school site in Copperfield.

« Copperfield K-4 students are currently accommodated in Maple Ridge School
located in the Maple Ridge community in Area V. Median travel time to Maple
Ridge School is 28 minutes.

Recommendation

« Construct a core elementary K-4 school for 300 students complete with space to
support a modular addition for 300 students in twelve units. The capacity of the
school will be 600 student spaces.

« The total project cost is budgeted at $13.0 million (January 2011 prices).
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5.0 NEW SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
Priority 11 — Springbank Hill Elementary School (C-11)

School Community Profile

Springbank Hill Community began development in WRJ—T
1997 and is located in the West sector of the City,

south of Aspen Woods, west of 69 Street SW., north of
Glenmore Trail and east of the City Limits.

1]

occupied dwelling units in Springbank Hill was
2,815 with a population of 8,185.

o The community is planned for an estimated 4,890
housing units with a population capacity of 13,650
to 14,300.

« The community had an average annual population
growth of 693 persons during the past three-year
period and has completed approximately 58% of its development.

o As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of ]
JJ
=

Enrolment Profile

« As of the April 2010 Census, there were 497 public pre-school-aged children.

o As of September 30, 2010, there were 296 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students
residing in Springbank Hill who attended CBE schools.

Site Planning and Transportation

o There is one elementary site, one middle site and one senior high site (future
Ernest Manning High School under construction) in Springbank Hill.

« Springbank Hill students are currently accommodated in Battalion Park School
located in the Signal Hill community in Area IV and Glenbrook School located in
the community of Glenbrook in Area IV. Median travel time for Battalion Park
and Glenbrook is 25 minutes.

Recommendation

« Construct a core elementary K-4 school for 300 students complete with space to
support a modular addition for 300 students in twelve units. The capacity of the
school will be 600 student spaces.

« The total project cost is budgeted at $13.0 million (January 2011 prices).
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Priority 12 — Auburn Bay Elementary (C-12)

School Community Profile

Auburn Bay Community began development in 1999
and is located south of Marquis of Lorne Trail SE and
east of Deerfoot Trail SE.

o As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of
occupied dwelling units in Auburn Bay was 1,403 with
a population of 4,217.

o The community is planned for an estimated 4,280
housing units with a population capacity of 18,040 to
18,900.

« The community had an average annual population
growth of 631 persons during the past three-year
period and has completed approximately 21% of its
development.

Enrolment Profile

« As of the April 2010 Census, there were 425 public preschool-aged children.

* As of September 30, 2010, there were 174 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students
residing in Auburn Bay that attended CBE schools.

Site Planning and Transportation

o There are two elementary sites and one middle school site in Auburn Bay.

o Auburn Bay elementary students are currently accommodated in Andrew
Sibbald Elementary School, which is located in the Lake Bonavista community
in Sector 8. Median travel time to Andrew Sibbald is 28 minutes.

Recommendation

« Construct a core elementary K-4 school for 300 students complete with space to
support a modular addition for 300 students in twelve units. The capacity of the
school will be 600 student spaces.

« The total project cost is budgeted at $13.0 million (January 2011 prices),
including the construction of the new relocatable units.
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Priority 13 - McKenzie Towne Middle School (C-13)
School Community Profile
McKenzie Towne Community began develop- ]

ment in 1995 and is located north of Marquis of Lorne , L
Trail between Deerfoot Trail and 52 Street SE. . J;F

« As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of
occupied dwelling units was 5,771 with a ]

[
=

1]

population of 14,702.

o The community is planned for an estimated 7,210
housing units with a population capacity of 17,600
to 18,400. N

« The community had an average annual population ’
growth of 966 persons during the past three-year
period and has completed approximately 80% of its
development.

Enrolment Profile

o As of September 30, 2010, there were 499 Kindergarten to Grade 4 and 387
Grades 5-9 students residing in the McKenzie Towne community who attended
CBE schools.

Site Planning and Transportation

« McKenzie Towne School (K-4) opened January 2010. There is one middle
school site in McKenzie Towne.

o McKenzie Towne students are currently bussed to David Thompson School
(Grades 5-9), which is located in the Acadia community in Area V. Median
travel time to David Thompson is 31 minutes.

Recommendation

« Construct a middle school for 500 Grades 5-9 students complete with space to
support a relocatable addition for 400 students in sixteen units. The capacity of
the school will be 900 student spaces.

o The total project cost is budgeted at $23.9 million (January 2011 prices),
including the construction of the new relocatable units, funding for CTS space
and CTS equipment allowance.
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Priority 14 - Springbank Hill/Discovery Ridge Middle (C-14)
School Community Profile

Springbank Hill Community began development W:J—T
in 1997 and is situated north of the Discovery Ridge , ||
community at Glenmore Trail SW., east of the City : );F
Limits, south of 17 Avenue SW., and west of 69 _ ]
Street SW. =
Al ]
ro

o As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of
occupied dwelling units was 2,815 with a
population of 8,185. The community is planned
for an estimated 4,890 housing units with a :
population capacity of 13,650 to 14,300. >

« The community had an average annual population

growth of 693 persons during the past three-year
period and has completed approximately 58% of its development.

Discovery Ridge Community began development in 2000 and is located in the
West sector of the City, immediately east of the City Limits at 101 Street SW. and
south of Glenmore Trail SW.

« As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of occupied dwelling units was
1,613 with a population of 4,333. The community is planned for an estimated
1,860 housing units with a population capacity of 5,500.

« The community had an average annual population growth of 176 persons during
the past three-year period and has completed approximately 87% of its
development.

Enrolment Profile

« As of September 30, 2010, there were 296 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students and
217 Grades 5-9 students residing in the Springbank Hill community who
attended CBE schools.

o As of September 30, 2010, there were 205 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students and
133 Grades 5-9 students residing in the Discovery Ridge community who
attended CBE schools.
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Priority 14 - Springbank Hill/Discovery Ridge Middle (C-14)
Site Planning and Transportation

« There is one elementary site and one middle site in Springbank Hill. There is
one elementary site in Discovery Ridge. The two communities can only support
one middle school.

« Springbank Hill Grades 7-9 students are bussed to A.E. Cross School located in
the Glenbrook community in Area IVV. Discovery Ridge Grades 7-9 students are
bussed to Bishop Pinkham School located in the Lakeview community in
Area IV. Median travel time for both Springbank Hill and Discovery Ridge is
27 minutes.

Recommendation

« Construct a middle school for 500 Grades 5-9 students complete with space to
support a relocatable addition for 400 students in sixteen units. The capacity of
the school will be 900 student spaces.

« The total project cost is budgeted at $23.9 million (January 2011 prices),
including the construction of the new relocatable units, funding for CTS space
and CTS equipment allowance.
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Priority 15 - West Springs/Cougar Ridge Middle School (C-15)
School Community Profile

West Springs Community began development in W:J—T
1999 and is situated north of Aspen Woods at 12

Avenue SW., east of the City Limits, south of the
Cougar Ridge community and west of the Coach Hill B
community. -
. =ydil
o As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of o
occupied dwelling units was 2,354 with a —
population of 7,204. The community is planned ] dl
for an estimated 4,700 housing units with a !
population capacity of 13,080 to 13,700. Qs

« The community had an average annual population
growth of 486 persons during the past three-year
period and has completed approximately 50% of its development.

Cougar Ridge Community began development in 2000 and is located in the
West sector of the City, north of the Old Banff Coach Road, west of 69 Street SW,
south of Canada Olympic Park and east of the City Limits.

« As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of occupied dwelling units was
1,860 with a population of 5,656. The community is planned for an estimated
2,640 housing units with a population capacity of 7,500.

« The community had an average annual population growth of 230 persons during
the past three-year period and has completed approximately 70% of its
development.

Enrolment Profile

« As of September 30, 2010, there were 301 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students and
187 Grades 5-9 students residing in the West Springs community who attended
CBE schools.

o As of September 30, 2010, there were 199 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students and
134 Grades 5-9 students residing in the Cougar Ridge community who attended
CBE schools.
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Priority 15 - West Springs/Cougar Ridge Middle School (C-15)
Site Planning and Transportation

o West Springs School (K-5) opened for the 2010-2011 school year. There is one
elementary site and one middle school site in West Springs, both on the same
site. The two communities can only support one middle school. There is one
elementary site in Cougar Ridge.

o West Springs and Cougar Ridge Grades 7-9 students are bussed to Vincent
Massey School, which is located in the Westgate community in Area IV.
Median travel time to Vincent Massey for West Springs' students and Cougar
Ridge's students is 19 minutes.

Recommendation

« Construct a middle school for 500 Grades 5-9 students complete with space to
support a relocatable addition for 400 students in sixteen units. The capacity of
the school will be 900 student spaces.

« The total project cost is budgeted at $23.9 million (January 2011 prices),
including the construction of the new relocatable units, funding for CTS space
and CTS equipment allowance.
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Priority 16 - Panorama Hills Elementary @ (C-16)
School Community Profile

Panorama Hills Community began development ) ]
in 1996 and is located north of Coventry Hills ) T
Boulevard and west of Harvest Hills Boulevard NW. :

« As of the April 2010 Census, the total number of
occupied dwelling units in Panorama Hills was
5,620 with a population of 17,899.

o The community is planned for an estimated 8,370
housing units with a population capacity of 24,310
to 25,500.

« The community had an average annual population >
growth of 2,001 persons during the past three-year
period and has completed approximately 67% of
its development.

q
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Enrolment Profile

« As of the April 2010 Census, there were 1,200 public pre-school-aged children.

« As of September 30, 2010, there were 799 Kindergarten to Grade 4 students
residing in Panorama Hills who attended CBE schools.

Site Planning and Transportation

« Panorama Hills K-4 students are currently accommodated in Panorama Hills
School. There is one additional elementary school site in Panorama Hills.

« A site has been approved for a middle school for Grades 5-9 and it is anticipated
that it will open in the 2012-2013 school year.

Recommendation

« Construct a core elementary K-4 school for 300 students complete with space to
support a modular addition for 300 students in twelve units. The capacity of the
school will be 600 student spaces.

« The total project cost is budgeted at $13.0 million (January 2011 prices).
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Priority 1 - Chinook Learning Services (M-1)

Mandate for Chinook Learning Services

Chinook Learning Services provides older adolescent and adult high school
upgrading, Adult ESL, and Continuing Education programs for the CBE. Chinook
Learning Services provides high school upgrading to over 9,000 part-time students
over the course of a year, including summer school. It serves students from all
Areas of the City and from the greater Calgary region.

00 ead 0
Program Annual Daily Location
9,000 students

High School Credit (13,500 registrations) 1,600 | Viscount Bennett Centre

ESL 450 200 | Tuxedo Park School

LINC* 360 260 | Six city locations (Balmoral Bungalow,
Killarney School, Calgary Achievement
Centre for Youth, Calgary City Church,
Tuxedo Park School, Tuxedo Park
Community Centre)

Continuing Education 12,000 Varies | Approximately 25 CBE locations
across Calgary

*Language Instruction for Newcomers to Canada

High School Upgrading

« Largest high school upgrading centre in Alberta.

. Plays akey role in addressing high school completion.

. Serves more than 9,000 high school upgrading students annually. Two-thirds are
school-aged (19 years of age and younger) and supported by Alberta Education
CEUs (credit enrolment units); one-third are 20 years and older and pay tuition.

« A large proportion of students plan to, and a few already do, attend post-
secondary institutions.

Adult ESL

« About 425 adult English-as-a-Second Language students are funded by Alberta
Immigration and Employment (AEI) and another 360 are funded by Citizenship
and Immigration Canada (CIC).

« Students come from across the City and would benefit from a central location
that is well-served by public transit.

Non-Credit Continuing Education

Continuing Education administration would be located at the replacement school but
most of the estimated 12,000 annual clients will continue to be served at
approximately 25 locations across the City.
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Priority 1 - Chinook Learning Services (M-1)
Current Status

Over the past several years, the CBE has been in the process of planning for the
move of Chinook Learning Services from Viscount Bennett Centre and its five other
locations to a proposed Urban Campus initiative in the East Village of downtown
Calgary. The Urban Campus was a proposed P3 project led by the University of
Calgary and included: Athabasca University, Bow Valley College, the Chinook
Learning Services, the University of Lethbridge, and SAIT Polytechnic.

On October 14, 2008, Alberta Education advised that the Minister of Advanced
Education and Technology approved financial support for the expansion of SAIT
and Bow Valley College and the lease of space for the University of Calgary in
downtown Calgary. As a result of this approach to increasing access to the post-
secondary institutions, government support for the Urban Campus Learning Village
would not be forthcoming.

Recommended Modernization

Chinook Learning Services needs to vacate its main campus at Viscount Bennett
Centre as the 57-year-old building is in need of major renovations and upgrading.
Alberta Infrastructure conducted a detailed architectural and engineering study in
2000 and determined that $23 million was required to renovate the existing building
to meet educational needs and building code requirements. The conclusion of
Architectural and Engineering Services was that it was uneconomical to restore the
building. The CBE plans to sell the Viscount Bennett site.

Chinook students come from all five Areas of the City. It is therefore desirable to
have a central location for Chinook Learning Services plus satellite locations in
order to best meet the needs of students.

Following the October 2008 announcement, the CBE has evaluated a range of
options for meeting the needs of Chinook Learning Services. Chinook Learning
Services requires 12,080 m® and options are being investigated by the CBE to
renovate existing school buildings for their accommodation. The estimated cost of
renovations is $10.5 million.
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Priority 2 — Area | High Schools — CTS Program (M-2)
Priority 3 — Area V High Schools — CTS Program (M-3)
Priority 4 — Area lll High Schools — CTS Program (M-4)
Priority 5 — Area Il High Schools — CTS Program (M-5)
Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

A planned CBE strategy to address the new Career and Technology Studies (CTS)
curriculum requires approval of modernization projects to be undertaken in high
schools in each of Areas I, Il, 11l and V. These schools require priority placements
for major modernization projects in order to deliver CTS courses to students in each
of the four Areas. The Lord Shaughnessy High School modernization in Area IV is
under construction and is the first modernization project undertaken for the Career
and Technology Studies curriculum.

Career development requires students to develop enthusiasm for lifelong learning
that carries them beyond learning in school. Ultimately, students make their links
between school, career development and post-secondary options. Creating
personalized pathways in CTS allows students the opportunity to expand their career
goals and interests and make connections among CTS courses and other subjects.

The Career and Technology Centres will combine hands-on learning with
personalized education, where classroom theory can be implemented into projects
selected by students.

Modernization

The proposed projects will modernize the related spaces and enhance the teaching
environment. The modernizations will also include the replacement of worn
architectural elements (finishes and/or fixtures) and include select program space
renovation, hazardous material abatement, and building code upgrades. Mechanical
and electrical equipment upgrades are also included in the scope of work. The total
project cost is estimated to be $24.25 million (January 2011 prices).
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Priority 6 - Piitoayis Family School (M-6)
Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Calgary’s Aboriginal population is the third largest among Canadian metropolitan
centres. CBE’s Administrative Regulation 3079, Aboriginal Education, outlines the
importance of improving the success rate of Aboriginal students and increasing the
understanding and acceptance of Aboriginal cultures of all students. Alberta’s
Commission on Learning specifically recommended that parents be able to access a
variety of educational settings for Aboriginal students including separate settings
where both parents and students may learn in a facility dedicated to the Aboriginal
culture and history.

Open to all students who want an Aboriginal-based education, the Piitoayis Family
School offers Blackfoot and Cree languages, as well as cultural classes such as
drumming, singing, and dancing.

The future student accommodation plan is to provide a facility that meets the needs
of students, family, and community programming. As Colonel Walker School also
accommodates the Regular program for elementary students residing in the
community of Inglewood, there is limited space to expand the Piitoayis Family
School at Colonel Walker School that includes the vision for students, families, and
community needs.

Facility Description

The Piitoayis Family School is temporarily located within Colonel Walker School in
the community of Inglewood. The school has shared the building with the Colonel
Walker School since 2005.

Replacement/Modernization

The estimated cost for modernizing an existing school with an addition as a
replacement school to accommodate the Aboriginal program would be $12.5 million
(January 2011 prices). A more detailed estimate can be provided once a final school
has been determined.
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Priority 7 - Christine Meikle School (M-7)
Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Christine Meikle School, located in the community of Bridgeland/Riverside, is a
unique setting for students with severe and complex needs. This program draws
junior/senior high school students (ages 12 to 19) from all areas of Calgary.

The curriculum includes development of communication skills, sensory-motor skills,
functional academics, work experience and pre-vocational abilities, travel training,
and adaptive physical education. A modified curriculum is implemented based on
the individual needs of each student. Instructional accommodations may include the
use of assistive technology, augmentative communication systems and individual
small group instruction. The staff, students, and their families also receive
consultative support from Regional, Educational, Assessment and Consultation
Services (REACH) for program development.

Facility Description

The Christine Meikle School facility is leased from The City of Calgary. The lease
agreement was renewed for a 25-year period, expiring in 2034. A long-term facility
is required for the school program in a modernized or new facility.

The total area of the building is 2,464 m? consisting of 13 classrooms for instruction
These classrooms are small in size accommodating 6-10 students each. There are
three pods that focus on flexible groupings and team teaching to best meet student
needs: Emerging, Developing and Maturing.

In 2009, Alberta Infrastructure evaluated school facilities through RECAPP and
rated the overall condition of the facility as being in acceptable condition. The
evaluation made the following recommendations:

« Roof elements require upgrading (drain and gutter modifications, etc.)

« Exterior requires upgrades (replace metal siding, painting, etc.)

« Interior spaces require upgrading (door panic bars, accordion styled partitions,
screens, automated door openers, painting, millwork, bathroom fixtures,
flooring, etc.)

o Mechanical systems require upgrading (shower stalls, fountains, plumbing
fixtures, hot water heaters, boiler, etc.)

« Electrical systems require upgrading (secondary panels, motor control center,
master light fixtures, etc.).
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6.0 SCHOOL MAJOR MODERNIZATIONS
Priority 7- Christine Meikle School (M-7)
Modernization

The modernization considers a student population of 90-100 students:

« four classes (25 +/-) non-ambulatory emerging pod/developing pod students

« six classes (40 +/-) ambulatory developing pod students

« five classes (35 +/-) ambulatory maturing pod students (including space for
higher  functioning Autism  Spectrum Disorder students from the
Communication, Sensory and Social Interaction program).

Design considerations include best practices from other institutions such as:

« Natural light (no metal mesh on external window)

« Sound dampening

« Wide hallways to accommodate wheelchairs, walkers, rails on walls

« Ready access to all materials that may be required by students

« Wheelchair access to all materials that may be required by students

« Storage for large footprint equipment — either in storage with classrooms or in
other storage locations.

The estimated cost for a school modernization at an existing school would be in the
range of $7.5 million (January 2011 prices). An estimated cost of a new school
would be $14 million.
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Priority 8 — Altadore School (M-8)
Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Altadore School is located in southwest Calgary in the community of Altadore
which is in the inner city in Area IV.

« Regular Program

Altadore School currently accommodates the Regular program for Kindergarten
to Grade 6 students living in Altadore which includes Garrison Woods.

The long-term student accommodation plan for Altadore School is to accommodate
students from Altadore (including Garrison Woods). Garrison Woods is part of the
Canada Lands redevelopment of the old Canadian Forces Base (CFB). This
redevelopment has resulted in an increased number of families with children moving
into the Altadore community. This school has been identified as one that is required
by the CBE to accommodate students into the future. It is anticipated that enrolment
will be at or near capacity.

Facility Description

The one-storey building was constructed in 1952 with a wood frame on a concrete
foundation. The school was renovated in 2002 with new exterior cladding,
windows, doors, skylights and roof. A barrier-free washroom was provided in 2002;
however, the remainder of the school requires barrier-free renovations. The total
area of the building is 2,737 m2 consisting of 14 classrooms for instruction. Most of
the classrooms are similar to current standards and have good natural light.

Modernization

In 2010, Alberta Infrastructure evaluated school facilities through RECAPP and
rated the overall condition of the facility as being in acceptable condition. The
evaluation made the following recommendation: mechanical systems require
upgrading (hot water tanks, boiler, ventilators, etc.).

The modernization would upgrade the entire mechanical systems: replace hot water
tanks, steam boilers, breeching, steam piping, controls, exhaust fans, radiation
system, and unit ventilators. Electrical upgrades would consist of cabling and
electrical wiring upgrades. The project would also upgrade building code
deficiencies with full barrier-free accessibility. The total project cost is estimated to
be $9 million (January 2011 prices).
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Priority 9 — Nickle School (M-9)
Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Nickle School is located in southeast Calgary in the community of Lake Bonavista,
which is an established community.

o Regular Program

Nickle School currently accommodates the Regular program for Grades 5-9
students living in Bonavista Downs and Lake Bonavista and students from the
communities of Auburn Bay and Cranston.

« System Classes

Nickle School currently accommodates Bridges and Learning and Literacy
classes.

The long-term student accommodation plan for Nickle School is to accommodate
students from their home area and students residing in new and developing
communities in Area V. This school has been identified as one that is required by
the CBE to accommodate students into the future. It is anticipated that enrolment
will be at or near capacity.

Facility Description

The original school building was completed in 1970 with masonry and steel
construction. The two additions were built in 1976 and 1985.

The total area of the building is 6,951 m? consisting of 26 classrooms plus three
portables for instruction. The classrooms range in size and have minimum access to
natural light. The mechanical and electrical systems have exceeded their lifecycle
expectancy and need upgrading or replacement.

In 2007, Alberta Infrastructure evaluated school facilities through RECAPP and
rated the overall condition of the facility as being in acceptable condition. The
evaluation made the following recommendations:

« Replace parts of roof that have not already been replaced

« Replace damaged caulking around perimeter

« Incorporate barrier-free items where applicable (i.e., automatic door openers)

o Mechanical features need upgrading (i.e., hot water tanks, exhaust fans,
sprinklers)

« Upgrade various electrical various components, i.e., lights, exit signs, etc.

Modernization

A scope for modernization improvements is required due to the age and condition of
the building components. The modernization would replace some of mechanical
systems and damaged lockers, upgrade electrical system, finishes and millwork,
reconfigure internal spaces, and renovate washrooms. The addition of a mechanical
control system and start/stop automation is recommended. Barrier-free accessibility
and exiting would be addressed as well. The scope of this modernization strategy
also includes upgrading of all the interior program spaces as required. The total
project cost is estimated to be $11 million (January 2011 prices).
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Priority 10 - Sir Wilfrid Laurier School (M-10)
Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Sir Wilfrid Laurier School is located in southeast Calgary in the community of
Albert Park/Radisson Heights, which is an established community.

« Regular Program
Sir Wilfrid Laurier School currently accommodates the Regular program for
Grades 5-9 students living in Albert Park/Radisson Heights and part of Forest
Heights.

o System Classes
Sir Wilfrid Laurier School accommodates Learning and Literacy classes.

« Traditional Learning Centre (TLC) Alternative Program

Sir Wilfrid Laurier School and Chris Akkerman School are the designated
schools for the Traditional Learning Centre (TLC) alternative program for
students residing in Area Il1.

The long-term student accommodation plan for Sir Wilfrid Laurier School is to
accommodate students from their home area and the Traditional Learning Centre
alternative program for Area Il students. This school has been identified as one that
is required by the CBE to accommodate students into the future. It is anticipated
that enrolment will be at or near capacity.

Facility Description

The building was originally completed in 1966 as a masonry building with a brick
and stucco exterior. An addition was built in 1983. Upgrades in 1997 replaced the
original ceilings with acoustic suspended tile. In 2003 barrier-free renovations were
undertaken. The total area of the building is 5,258 m? consisting of 21 classrooms
for instruction. The classrooms are slightly smaller than the current standard and
have moderate access to natural light. Generally the facility is in reasonable
condition. The electrical and mechanical systems require upgrading or replacement.
The breakout rooms, library and computer lab were upgraded in the 2006-2007
renovations.

In 2006, Alberta Infrastructure evaluated school facilities through RECAPP and
rated the overall condition of the facility as being in acceptable condition. The
evaluation made the following recommendations:

« Roof requires replacement

« Exterior requires upgrades (doors, seals, stucco, windows, hardware, etc.)

« Interior spaces require upgrading (floor tiles, acoustic panels, painting, millwork,
flooring, etc.)

« Mechanical systems require upgrading (plumbing fixtures, boilers, HVAC
equipment, etc.)

« Electrical systems require upgrading (secondary panels, motor starters, master
clock system, etc.).
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6.0 SCHOOL MAJOR MODERNIZATIONS
Priority 10 - Sir Wilfrid Laurier School (M-10)
Modernization

The proposed modernization will enhance the teaching spaces and upgrade the
school and its aging systems. The modernization includes an upgrade of mechanical
systems and all electrical systems (panel upgrades, interior and parking lot lighting,
and emergency lighting). All finishes (flooring, ceilings, and painting) will be
upgraded or replaced. Envelope upgrades to include roof and door repair and
replacement. Washroom and change room upgrades and locker replacement are also
part of the modernization.

Teaching space upgrades include science, art, and computer rooms, cafeteria
kitchen, library, art, and CTS space. Millwork, display cases, fixtures, and blinds
should be replaced. This modernization will address safety and security concerns
with a front entry renovation, stairway, and corridor door hardware upgrades
controlling unauthorized access to the school. An estimate cost of the modernization
is $11 million (January 2011 prices).

Calgary Board of Education Prepared by Capital and Urban Planning Services



Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015

6.0 SCHOOL MAJOR MODERNIZATIONS
Priority 11 — Elboya School (M-11)
Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Elboya School offers Kindergarten to Grade 9 programming and is located in
southwest Calgary, in the inner-city community of Elboya.

« Regular Program — Kindergarten to Grade 6

Currently, Elboya School accommodates the Kindergarten to Grade 6 Regular
program for students living in Bel-Aire, Britannia, Elboya, Manchester, Mayfair,
Meadowlark Park, and Windsor Park.

o Regular Program — Grades 7-9

Elboya School accommodates the Grades 7-9 Regular program for students
living in the communities of Bel-Aire, Britannia, Elboya, Manchester, Mayfair,
Meadowlark Park, and Windsor Park.

e« French Immersion

Elboya School accommodates the Grades 5-9 French Immersion program for
Area 1V students living south of the Bow River, east of Crowchild Trail, and
north of the Glenmore Reservoir, excluding the communities of North Glenmore
Park, Ogden, Richmond/Knob Hill, Riverbend, Scarboro, and Sunalta.

« GATE

Elboya School accommodates Gifted and Talented Education (GATE) for
elementary and junior high students residing in Area IV. Area IV serves
southeast and southwest Calgary and contains approximately 55 communities
including several new and developing communities.

The long-term student accommodation plan for Elboya School is to continue to
accommodate a K-9 Regular program, a Grades 5-9 French Immersion program and
system GATE classes for all Area IV students. This school has been identified as
one that is required by the CBE to accommodate students into the future. It is
anticipated that enrolment will be at or near capacity.

Facility Description

The original one-storey building was built in 1953 and two, two-storey additions
were completed in 1956 and 1958. The school was partially renovated in 1990 and
1998. A barrier-free washroom was provided in the building; however, the
remainder of the building requires barrier-free renovations.

The total area of the building is 3,907 m? consisting of 28 classrooms for instruction.
The classrooms have a range of sizes and good natural light. In 2010, Alberta
Infrastructure evaluated school facilities through RECAPP and rated the overall
condition of the facility as being in acceptable condition.
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Priority 11 — Elboya School (M-11)

Facility Description

The evaluation made the following recommendations:

« Required improvements to the out-of-date electrical systems

« Facility contains a single boiler with no backup system in place should failure
occur

« Ventilation systems should be updated along with boiler

Significant problems are an inadequate gymnasium for junior high physical education
programs and inadequate science labs. Windows and doors were replaced in 2006-
2007.

Modernization

The school is identified as requiring major modernization to meet junior high school
programming requirements. A modernization, including a new junior high
gymnasium and redistribution of existing space will improve functionality and
security while reducing noise level at the same time. The project will replace
flooring, fixtures, ceilings and lighting, and upgrade building code deficiencies with
full barrier-free accessibility. It will also add data/power to teaching spaces and
upgrade the school to meet City of Calgary bylaw requirements. The estimate
includes an allowance for phasing-in the project in an occupied building. An
estimated cost of the modernization is $10 million (January 2011 prices).

This school could also be a replacement school, which could be built on the site. The
old school could be demolished when the new school is built. The new school would
be more energy-efficient and have a more effective layout. The estimated cost of a
700-capacity K-9 replacement school for Elboya School would be $20 million
(January 2011 prices).
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Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Dr. J.K. Mulloy School is located in northeast Calgary in the community of
Huntington Hills which is an established community.

« Regular Program

Dr. J.K. Mulloy School currently accommodates the TLC alternative program
for Kindergarten to Grade4 students. Dr. J.K. Mulloy School also
accommodates Grades 5-6 students residing in the new and developing
community of Panorama Hills.

The long-term student accommodation plan for Dr. J.K. Mulloy School is to
accommodate students in the TLC alternative program. This school has been
identified as one that is required by the CBE to accommodate students into the
future. It is anticipated that enrolment will be at or near capacity.

Facility Description

The two-storey building was constructed in 1969 with pre-cast concrete construction
and masonry exterior. The total area of the building is 4,067 m? consisting of 20
classrooms for instruction. Many classrooms do not have access to natural light due
to primarily open area classrooms. Electrically, the fire alarm system is in need of
upgrading. The existing lighting system is in fair condition and should be replaced.
Computer cabling and dedicated circuits should be added to the classrooms.

In 2006, Alberta Infrastructure evaluated school facilities through RECAPP and
rated the overall condition of the facility as being in acceptable condition. The
evaluation made the following recommendations:

« Exterior requires upgrades (doors, seals, stucco, windows, hardware, etc.)

« Interior spaces require upgrading (floor tiles, acoustic panels, painting, millwork,
carpet flooring, etc.)

o Mechanical systems require upgrading (plumbing fixtures, boilers, HVAC
equipment, etc.)

« Electrical systems require upgrading (secondary panels, motor starters, master
clock system, light fixtures, public access system, etc.).
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Modernization

The modernization will improve functionality, security, and safety and will upgrade
building infrastructure. The modernization includes some mechanical system
upgrades, a major electrical systems upgrade (power, interior lighting fixtures, and
controls) and envelope upgrades (roof and door). All finishes (flooring, ceilings)
and worn fixtures (operable wall between gym and stage) will be replaced.
Washroom upgrades and millwork replacement are part of the work.

Teaching space upgrades include adding walls and doors to address acoustic
problems and adding electric blinds and acoustic panels in the library. This
modernization will address barrier-free issues (handicap washroom) and security
concerns (front entry-administration renovation to control access to the school).
Replacing gravel with asphalt, adding an exterior stair for safe access downhill will
address the safety issues. Replacement of the open garbage containers with closed
containers on site is required. An estimate cost of the modernization is $6 million
(January 2011 prices).
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Priority 13 - Henry Wise Wood High School (M-13)
Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Henry Wise Wood High School is located in southwest Calgary in the community of
Kelvin Grove, which is an established community.

« Regular Program

Henry Wise Wood High School currently accommodates the Regular program
for Grades 10-12 students living in Bayview, Braeside, Chinook Park, Eagle
Ridge, Haysboro, Kelvin Grove, Kingsland, Oakridge, Palliser, Parkhill, Pump
Hill, and Southwood. Students residing in Woodlands and Woodbine currently
have the option to attend either Henry Wise Wood High School or Dr. E.P.
Scarlett High School. The new and developing community of Mahogany is also
designated to Henry Wise Wood High School for Grades 10-12 students. Henry
Wise Wood High School currently accommodates the International
Baccalaureate (IB) for senior high residing in Area V.

« System Classes

Henry Wise Wood High School currently accommodates Gifted and Talented,
Literacy English and Academic Development, Paced Learning, and ACCESS
classes.

« Traditional Learning Centre (TLC) Alternative Program

Henry Wise Wood High School currently accommodates the Traditional
Learning Centre (TLC) alternative program for students residing in Area IV and
Area V.

The long-term student accommodation plan for Henry Wise Wood High School is to
accommodate students residing in Areas IV and V for Regular and TLC programs.
This school has been identified as one that is required by the CBE to accommodate
students into the future. It is anticipated that enrolment will be at or near capacity.

Facility Description

The original building was constructed in 1961 with an open courtyard that was
enclosed in 1964 to form a large library, a study and a lunchroom area. The original
school structure sits on a combination of pile foundation and basement foundation
walls. The main floor is concrete slab on grade. The super-structure is constructed
of cast-in-place concrete columns, floor, and roof slabs. There are single-storey
portions of the super-structure comprised of steel joists and metal decking. The
courtyard infill is comprised of steel joists and metal decking. The super-structure is
capable of a significantly longer life than the other major components. Minor
renovations were made to the building in 1999, upgrading two CTS areas, some
science labs, and the home economics area, as well as the drama change rooms.
Handicap accessibility in the building has also been addressed.
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Facility Description

In 2005, upgrades were made to the ceilings in second and third floor classrooms.

The total floor area is 15,804 m? and the school has 74 classrooms. The provincial
capacity of the school is 1,946 student spaces. The teaching spaces are different
sizes and have good natural light.

In 2007, Alberta Infrastructure evaluated school facilities through RECAPP and
rated the overall condition of the facility as being in acceptable-to-marginal
condition. The evaluation made the following recommendations:

Exterior requires upgrades (curtain walls require replacement, painting, etc.)
Interior spaces require upgrading (barrier-free accessibility features, paint, etc.)
Mechanical systems require upgrading (HVAC system (old), boilers, roof top
vent systems, hot water system, etc.)

Electrical systems require upgrading (security systems, master clock system, exit
signs, receptacles, vapour fixtures in cafeteria, motor starters, main distribution
switchgear in school, etc.).

The most pressing need identified within the facility is the lack of adequate space for
larger performances and presentations where more than 50 students can gather at a
time. The most pressing need identified was the inadequate performance and
presentation spaces. Particularly lacking was a space that could be used for
presentations to medium-sized audiences (100 to 300 persons). Modernization
should include developing a multi-purpose presentation space/theatre.

Modernization

The scope of the modernization will include developing a multi-purpose
presentation and exhibition space, as there is no space within the school where
gatherings/meetings for more than 50 students can take place. The scope will
include mechanical and electrical upgrades that will address thermal comfort, energy
efficiency, provide additional power and data outlets, and building envelope
upgrades. The scope will also include upgrading worn finishes and fixtures (e.g.,
paint, lockers), doors and hardware, replacement and washroom upgrades. Select
program space renovation, hazardous material abatement, and building code and
barrier-free accessibility upgrades will be part of the modernization. The project
proposed will enhance the teaching environment. The total project cost is estimated
to be $23 million (January 2011 prices).
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Priority 14 — Senator Patrick Burns School (M-14)
Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Senator Patrick Burns School is located in northwest Calgary in the community of
Collingwood, which is an established community.

« Regular Program

Senator Patrick Burns School currently accommodates the Regular program for
Grades 7-9 students living in Banff Trail, Charleswood, Collingwood, and
Capitol Hill (west of 14 Street). Senator Patrick Burns also accommodates the
National Sport Academy.

« Spanish Bilingual Program

Senator Patrick Burns School currently accommodates Grades 5-9 students for
the Spanish Bilingual alternative program for students residing in Areas | to I11.

The long-term student accommodation plan for Senator Patrick Burns School is to
accommodate Spanish Bilingual students residing in Areas I, Il, and Ill. Senator
Patrick Burns School will continue to accommodate Regular program students and
the National Sport Academy. This school has been identified as one that is required
by the CBE to accommodate students into the future. It is anticipated that enrolment
will be at or near capacity.

Facility Description

The two-storey building was constructed in 1961 as a concrete, steel, and masonry
structure. An addition in 1966 created an exterior courtyard between the original
two U-shaped wings. A renovation in 1999 replaced linoleum and acoustic ceiling
tile in five classrooms and the staff lounge. The total area of the building is
7,989 m? consisting of 32 classrooms for instruction. The classrooms are slightly
smaller than the current standard and have moderate access to natural light.

In 2007, Alberta Infrastructure evaluated school facilities through RECAPP and
rated the overall condition of the facility as being in overall acceptable condition.
The evaluation made the following recommendations:

« Interior spaces need upgrading (all components)

« Exterior fagade requires upgrading (windows, doors, siding)

« Electrical systems in general require upgrading (exit signs, panels, transformer,
etc.).
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Modernization

Since the evaluation, it has been found that the original curtain wall is in poor
condition and the majority of original finishes are showing signs of deterioration.
Different preservation projects have since been undertaken and completed. Such
projects have included upgrading lockers and the communication systems.

Numerous areas in the school require renovations such as the visual communication
lab, the fashion lab, the music room, and CTS spaces. Wiring and data
enhancements are required as part of improvements to the electrical systems.
Renovations would also be carried out to the mechanical systems. Finishes and
millwork throughout the school are aging and in need of replacement. The school
would be upgraded to be barrier-free by providing an elevator and related upgrades
such as barrier-free accessible washrooms. The original curtain wall exterior
cladding is deteriorated and should be replaced. The roof must be replaced. Some
site work is also required. The cost estimate for this modernization is $11 million
(January 2011 prices).
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Priority 15 - A.E. Cross School (M-15)
Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

A.E. Cross School is located in southwest Calgary in the community of Glenbrook,
which is an established community.

« Regular Program

A.E. Cross School currently accommodates the Regular program for Grades 7-9
students living in Glenbrook, Glamorgan, Killarney, Glengarry, Lincoln Park,
Richmond, CFB Lincoln Park/Garrison Green, and Rutland Park. Students
residing in Signal Hill and Springbank Hill are also currently designated to A.E.
Cross School for Grades 7-9.

« System Classes

A.E. Cross School accommodates Paced Learning and Learning and Literacy
classes for Area IV students.

The long-term student accommodation plan for A.E. Cross School is to
accommodate students from their home area and to continue to accommodate
students residing in new and developing communities in southwest Calgary. This
school has been identified as one that is required by the CBE to accommodate
students into the future. It is anticipated that enrolment will be at or near capacity.

Facility Description

The original building was built in 1961 with a two-storey classroom wing added in
1966. The building has a masonry and steel construction, wood-roof deck with
masonry and curtain wall exterior. A modernization took place in 1983. The gross
building area is 9,064 m? consisting of 36 classrooms, with the majority of the
classrooms being slightly smaller than current standards. The provincial capacity of
A.E. Cross has been set at 1,066 student spaces. The gym, library, and
administration space are typical size for a school of this capacity. The ancillary
spaces are quite large compared to classroom standards which would account for the
higher capacity for the facility’s rating.

The structure is considered to be in good condition. Many of the classrooms have
good natural lighting. The building exterior is finished with low maintenance
materials; however, the wood portions of the exterior are in need of maintenance.
Floors are generally in good condition with some repair needed.
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Facility Description
In 2009, Alberta Infrastructure evaluated school facilities through RECAPP and

rated the overall condition of the facility as being in acceptable condition. The
evaluation made the following recommendations:

« Exterior requires upgrades (stucco, painting, caulking, etc.)
« Interior spaces require upgrading (some items require repair or replacement)
« Mechanical systems require upgrading (HVAC system, ventilation, etc.)

Electrical systems require upgrading (expand current circuit system).

Modernization

The modernization will address building envelope deficiencies (e.g., replacement of
the curtain wall), mechanical and electrical upgrades (improving thermal comfort,
and energy efficiency), and provide additional power and data outlets. The scope
will include replacement of old and worn finishes and fixtures (e.g., vinyl-asbestos-
tile flooring, wood flooring, and lockers), door and hardware replacement, and
washroom upgrades. The modernization will also include select program space
renovation, hazardous material abatement, and code and accessibility upgrades. The
proposed project will modernize the whole facility and enhance the teaching
environment. The total project cost is estimated to be $11 million (January 2011
prices).
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Priority 16 - Sir John A. Macdonald School (M-16)
Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Sir John A. Macdonald School is located in north-central Calgary in the community
of Huntington Hills, which is an established community.

« Regular Program

Sir John A. Macdonald School currently accommodates the Regular program for
Grades 7-9 students living in Greenview (north of McKnight Boulevard),
Huntington Hills and Thorncliffe, and students from Panorama Hills.

« System Classes

Sir John A. Macdonald School accommodates Paced Learning classes and
Learning and Literacy.

The long-term student accommodation plan for Sir John A. Macdonald School is to
accommodate students from their home area. When the new middle school in
Panorama Hills opens, there will be an opportunity to designate other students to Sir
John A. Macdonald School closer to home. This school has been identified as one
that is required by the CBE to accommodate students into the future. It is
anticipated that enrolment will be at or near capacity.

Facility Description

The facility was originally built in 1966 as a masonry building with a mixed material
exterior. An addition, completed in 1970, increased the building area by a total of
50%. Four relocatables were added in the fall of 2007 to accommodate growth
pressures. The school is exhibiting age-related deficiencies in finishes, mechanical,
and electrical systems. Upgrades to building systems and finishes, including
window replacement, are needed to restore this well-used building to feasible
condition.

The gross building area is 7,814 m® consisting of 32 classrooms, with a provincial
capacity of 905 student spaces. Most of the teaching spaces are smaller than current
standards; however, most have good natural light. The gym is small, by Alberta
Education standards, for a junior high school of this capacity. The school has CTS
labs (for graphics, construction, information processing, and foods and fashion), as
well as fine and performing arts (music, drama, art, and French).

In 2006, Alberta Infrastructure evaluated school facilities through RECAPP and
rated the overall condition of the facility as being in acceptable condition. The
evaluation made the following recommendations:

Exterior requires lifecycle upgrades (painting, caulking, etc.)

Interior spaces require upgrading (main entranceway, barrier-free accessibility
features, etc.)

Mechanical systems require upgrading (HVAC system, boilers, hot water
system, etc.)

Electrical systems require upgrading (switchboard, motor starters, emergency
battery packs, etc.).
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Modernization

The modernization will include upgrading building systems, mechanical and
electrical equipment. The scope will include replacement of all worn finishes and
fixtures (i.e., flooring, paint, and lockers); windows, doors, and hardware will be
replaced and washrooms upgraded. The modernization will include select program
space renovation, hazardous material abatement, building code and handicap
accessibility upgrades, and site improvements (parking lot and landscape upgrades).
The proposed project will modernize the whole facility and enhance the teaching
environment. The total project cost is estimated to be $11 million (January 2011
prices).
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Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Thomas B. Riley School is located in northwest Calgary in the community of
Bowness, which is an established community.

« Regular Program

Thomas B. Riley School currently accommodates the Regular program for
Grades 7-9 students living in Bowness and Greenwood/Greenbriar and students
from the communities of Valley Ridge and Crestmont.

« System Classes

Thomas B. Riley School accommodates Paced Learning and Adapted Learning
classes.

« German Bilingual Program

Thomas B. Riley School is the designated school for junior high students for the
German bilingual program residing in the CBE boundary.

« Traditional Learning Centre (TLC) Alternative Program

Thomas B. Riley School and Brentwood School are the designated schools for
the Traditional Learning Centre (TLC) alternative program for Kindergarten to
Grade 8 students residing in Area I. Brentwood School accommodates K-4
students and Grades 5-8 students are accommodated at Thomas B. Riley School.

The long-term student accommodation plan for Thomas B. Riley School is to
accommodate students residing in the northwest quadrant of Calgary for Regular and
alternative programs. This school has been identified as one that is required by the
CBE to accommodate students into the future. It is anticipated that enrolment will
be at or near capacity.

Facility Description

The facility is a split two-storey building comprised of load-bearing masonry and
steel and was originally constructed in 1967. Both a modernization and an addition
to the school were completed in 1985. The modernization upgraded the industrial
arts shop, administration, library, and second floor ancillary rooms. The total area of
the building is 6,188 m2 consisting of 22 classrooms for instruction. Most of the
classrooms are smaller than the current standard (80 m2) with good natural light.

In 2006, Alberta Infrastructure evaluated school facilities through RECAPP and
rated the overall condition of the facility as being in acceptable condition. The
evaluation made the following recommendations: interior spaces to be upgraded,
mechanical and electrical systems are aging and require considerable revision;
lighting systems are obsolete and require replacement to maintain required lighting
levels.
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Facility Description

Many of the components of the facility were noted as needing typical lifecycle
upgrades. The evaluation made the following recommendations:

« Interior spaces require upgrading (i.e., wood flooring, repainting of concrete
flooring, etc.)

« Interior fire-stopping requires localized repairs

« Mechanical and electrical systems are aging and require lifecycle upgrading and
recertification of components.

Modernization

This school requires upgrades in certain rooms, such as the science rooms, foods
room, and drama room. Millwork, fixtures, and blinds should be replaced. Carpet
should be replaced in areas like the library and main office. All of the lockers in the
school should be replaced with two-tier lockers. New front doors with less glazing
would prevent ongoing breakage from vandalism. Ceiling acoustic tiles in certain
areas are surface mounted and are falling down, requiring a retrofit. Electrical
systems should be upgraded, as well as lighting in various parts of the building.
Mechanical systems including plumbing need upgrades or replacement. The cost
estimate for this modernization is $11 million (January 2011 prices).
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Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Robert Warren School is located in southwest Calgary in the community of Canyon
Meadows, which is an established community.

« Regular Program

Robert Warren School currently accommodates the Regular program for
Grades 7-9 students living in Canyon Meadows.

« Spanish Bilingual Program

Robert Warren School currently accommodates Grades 5-9 students for the
Spanish Bilingual alternative program for students residing in Area V.

The long-term student accommodation plan for Robert Warren School is to
accommodate Spanish Bilingual students residing in Area V. This school has been
identified as one that is required by the CBE to accommodate students into the
future. It is anticipated that enrolment will be at or near capacity.

Facility Description

The one-storey building was completed in 1974 with masonry and steel
construction. The addition was built in 1991 with barrier-free access. The building
was partially renovated in 1999. As of October 2008, four new relocatable units
were located on the school site, replacing the previous five outdated units. The total
area of the building is 4,711 m? consisting of 20 classrooms (including the four new
relocatables) for instruction. The classrooms are smaller than the current standard
and internal ones do not have access to natural light. The layout of the main office
creates security concerns.

In 2007, Alberta Infrastructure evaluated school facilities through RECAPP and
rated the overall condition of the facility as being in acceptable condition. The
evaluation made the following recommendations:

« Replace caulking of exterior of building

« Incorporate barrier-free items where applicable (i.e., automatic door openers)
« Upgrading pneumatic controls and extend sprinkler system

« Upgrade electrical components (i.e., exit signs and sub-distribution panels).

Modernization

The school’s modernization strategy was divided into two phases, with the first
phase being completed in 2009 for a total cost of $1.4 million. The first phase
addressed the removal of five obsolete portables, replacing them with four new
relocatable units. This construction included a connecting corridor, complete with
lockers and a barrier-free ramp-way into the new units. The administration area was
improved, the library was expanded, and school safety modifications were
additionally incorporated.
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Modernization

When the remaining funds become available, Phase Il of the modernization will
complete the rest of the overall upgrading of the school and its aging systems. Work
will include a full upgrade of the electrical and mechanical systems (heating and
cooling systems, electrical systems, all lighting and emergency lighting). All
finishes (flooring, ceilings, and painting) will be upgraded or replaced. Envelope
upgrades to include roof and door repair and upgrades. Washroom and change room
upgrades and locker replacement are also part of the modernization. The project
costs of Phase Il are projected at $4 million (January 2011 prices).
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Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Louis Riel School is located in southeast Calgary in the community of Oakridge,
which is an established community.

« Regular Program

Louis Riel School currently accommodates the Regular program for
Kindergarten to Grade 9 students living in Oakridge and Grades 7-9 students
residing in Cedarbrae. Louis Riel School is also the designated school for
Tsuu T’ina Nation students.

« Science Program

Louis Riel School accommodates the Science alternative program for students
residing in Area V. The Science program will continue to expand by a grade
each year until 2012 when it will accommodate Kindergarten to Grade 9
students.

« System Classes
Louis Riel School accommodates Learning and Literacy classes.

The long-term student accommodation plan for Louis Riel School is to
accommodate students from Oakridge, Tsuu T’ina Nation, and Cedarbrae and the
Science alternative program for students residing in Area V. This school has been
identified as one that is required by the CBE to accommodate students into the
future. It is anticipated that enrolment will be at or near capacity.

Facility Description

The original building was constructed in 1971 with masonry and steel construction.
The additions were built in 1976 and 1993. Portables were added in 1979.

The total area of the building is 7,931 m2 consisting of 29 classrooms for instruction.
The classrooms are smaller than the current standard with minimal natural light.
Many areas have limited vision of exit and emergency lights due to the design of the
open classroom concept. In 2007, Alberta Infrastructure evaluated school facilities
through RECAPP and rated the overall condition of the facility as being in
acceptable condition. The evaluation made the following recommendations:

« Interior and exterior spaces need upgrading (barrier-free accessibility items,
stucco, etc.)

« Roof replacement in some areas

« Mechanical systems in require upgrading (replace furnaces, cooling system, etc.)

« Electrical systems require upgrading (exit lights, fixtures, emergency lighting,
etc.).
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Facility Description

As noted in the evaluation the school building requires barrier-free renovations.
Since the evaluation, a preservation project was undertaken in 2006-2007. This
upgraded fixtures, heating coils, gym curtain, fire, and electrical panel. A
modernization project was undertaken in 2007-2008 which provided two classrooms
in the library, upgraded the administration area, enclosed two open classrooms, and
upgraded the science and preparation rooms.

Modernization

The proposed modernization will upgrade building infrastructure and improve its
functionality. The modernization includes both mechanical and electrical work.
Additionally, the finishes (flooring, ceilings) will be replaced, and all walls painted.
Exterior walls need some repair work (patch stucco and replace a few doors).
Renovation work is required to improve functionality. The total project cost is
estimated to be $11 million (January 2011 prices).
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Current and Future Student Accommodation Plan

Woodman School is located in southwest Calgary in the community of Haysboro,
which is an established community.

« Regular Program

Woodman School currently accommodates the Regular program for Grades 7-9
students living in Chinook Park, Eagle Ridge, and Kingsland, as well as students
from Woodlands, Woodbine, and Walden. Woodman School also
accommodates Grades 5-9 students from Evergreen.

The long-term student accommodation plan for Woodman School is to
accommodate students from their home area, Woodlands, Woodbine, and Evergreen.
This school has been identified as one that is required by the CBE to accommodate
students into the future. It is anticipated that enrolment will be at or near capacity.

Facility Description

The original building was constructed in 1960 with wood framing and a stucco and
masonry exterior. An addition was completed in 1968 with a masonry and steel
construction exterior and is capable of a longer life than other major components. A
renovation was completed in 2003, including a barrier-free upgrade consisting of an
elevator, handicap lift, and washroom renovation. The facility is in reasonable
condition for its age; however, finishes and furnishings have become dated and are
showing wear. Windows have been replaced and the roof was replaced
approximately four years ago.

The gross building area is 8,744 m? consisting of 34 classrooms. Most of the
teaching spaces are sized to current standards and have good natural light. The gym,
by Alberta Education standards, is small for a junior high school of this capacity.
The school has an efficient layout, but allows little real flexibility in the use of the
building. Internal reconfiguration of spaces would be required to better address the
needs of junior high students.

In 2008, Alberta Infrastructure evaluated school facilities through RECAPP and
rated the overall condition of the facility as being in good condition. The evaluation
made the following recommendations:

Exterior requires upgrades (barrier-free accessibility ramp features, replacement
of windows and doors, painting, etc.)

Interior spaces require lifecycle upgrading (doors, hardware, shower stalls, etc.)
Mechanical systems require upgrading (most mechanical systems are past
lifecycle)

Electrical systems require upgrading (many components are past lifecycle, but
still functional).
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Modernization

The modernization will include replacement and upgrading of all building systems,
and mechanical equipment. All worn finishes and fixtures (e.g., flooring, ceilings,
paint, and millwork) will be replaced, and washrooms upgraded. The modernization
would include select program space renovation, hazardous material abatement,
building code, and handicap accessibility upgrades. The proposed project will
modernize the whole facility and enhance the teaching environment. The total
project cost is estimated to be $9 million (January 2011 prices).
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APPENDIX |

Capacity and Utilization

There are Sectors associated with each Area that provide for smaller units of analysis.
Table 1: Capacity for Elementary/Junior High by Residence (%)

Elementary/Junior High Students by Residence
2010-2011

Senior High Senior High %

Area Sector Students Capacity Utilization
Sector 1 5,178 6,985 74.13%
AREA | Sector 2 7,680 8,127 94.50%
TOTAL 12,858 15,112 85.08%
Sector 3 3,796 13,040 29.11%
AREA Il Sector 4 9,382 7,126 131.66%
TOTAL 13,178 20,166 65.35%
AREA Il Sector 5 17,604 20,080 87.67%
TOTAL 17,604 20,080 87.67%
Sector 6 6,469 9,059 71.41%
AREA IV Sector 7 4,290 6,808 63.01%
TOTAL 10,759 15,867 67.81%
Sector 8 7,335 16,696 43.93%
AREA V Sector 9 11,443 9,036 126.64%
TOTAL 18,778 25,732 72.98%
GRAND TOTAL 73,177 96,957 75.47%

Notes:

* Student numbers are based on ArcView data as at September 30, 2010 (K@FTE to Grade 9).
* Capacity as per Alberta Infrastructure’s ACU Report dated July 20, 2010, assuming exemptions.
* Under -utilized and over-utilized are shown on Map 7.

% Capacity by Elementary/Junior High Residence
Showing Both Areas and Sectors

200%

Area | Area ll Areallll Area IV AreaV
175%

150%

131.7%
= 126.6%
125% — 1

100%

0
| 859 I 8L ST ] Lasos
74.1% 71.4% 73.0%
0% -+ S
75% 67.8% ]

% Capacity

63.0%

50% o —H H

43.9%

29.1%
25%

Area |
Sector 1
Sector 2
Area ll
Sector 3
Sector 4

Area lll

Sector 5

Area V
Sector 8
Sector 9

0%

Calgary Board of Education 32 Prepared by Capital and Urban Planning Services



Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015

Table 2: Capacity by Residence Senior High (%)

Senior High Students by Residence
2010-2011

Grand Total

Senior High | Senior High %
Area Sector Students Capacity Utilization

Sector 1 2,023 1,525 132.66%

AREA | Sector 2 3,395 2,015 168.49%
Total 5,418 3,540 153.05%

Sector 3 1,503 6,619 22.71%

AREA I Sector 4 3,159 1,300 243.00%
Total 4,662 7,919 58.87%

AREA Il Sector 5 6,629 4,816 137.65%
Total 6,629 4,816 137.65%

Sector 6 2,719 1,743 156.00%

AREA IV Sector 7 2,224 4,145 53.66%
Total 4,943 5,888 83.95%

Sector 8 3,542 6,278 56.42%

AREA V Sector 9 4,146 1,807 229.44%
Total 7,688 8,085 95.09%

97.00%

Notes:

* Student numbers are based on ArcView data as at September 30, 2010
* Capacity as per Alberta Infrastructure’s ACU Report dated July 20, 2010, assuming exemptions.

* Under -utilized and over-utilized are shown on Map 8.
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Table 3: % Capacity for Elementary/Junior High by Enrolment

Elementary/Junior High Students by Enrolment
2010-2011

Elementary/ Elementary/
Area Sector Junior Students Junior Capacity Utilization
Sector 1 4,473 6,985 64.04%
AREA | Sector 2 7,125 8,127 87.67%
Total 11,598 15,112 76.75%
Sector 3 9,465 13,040 72.58%
AREA I Sector 4 6,070 7,126 85.18%
Total 15,535 20,166 77.04%
AREA IlI Sector 5 15,893 20,080 79.15%
Total 15,893 20,080 79.15%
Sector 6 6,273 9,059 69.25%
AREA IV Sector 7 4,379 6,808 64.32%
Total 10,652 15,867 67.13%
Sector 8 11,690 16,696 70.02%
AREA V Sector 9 7,011 9,036 77.59%
Total 18,701 25,732 72.68%

Notes:

* Student numbers are based on ArcView data as at September 30, 2010 (K@FTE to Grade 9).
* Capacity as per Alberta Infrastructure’s ACU Report dated July 20, 2010, assuming exemptions.

100%

74.65%

% Capacity by Elementary/Junior High Enrolment
Showing Both Areas and Sectors

Area | Area ll Area lll Area IV Area V
87.7%
85.2%)
---------------------- § ety ittty ettt Rl - 15/
9 9 77.6%
76.8% 77.0% 79.2% 79.2%
75% 72.6% 72.7%
69.3% 70.0%
67.19
64.0% 64.3%
>
=
Q
®©
S 50% | - - HH - - ' = H = = | - - H
(.) — N (42] < o © N~ [ee] (o)}
B sl | s S| |8 S s||s s||ée
(8] (5} (8} (5} (8] (5} (5 (&) (5]
) o) o) ) ) o) o) ) o)
(%} (7} (7} (7} (%} (7} 0 (7} (9}
25% - | - H - - HH - HH - - -H - - H
- — = > >
: g : 3 s
< < 2 <T: Z
0%

Calgary Board of Education

Areas |-V and Sectors 1-9

Prepared by Capital and Urban Planning Services



Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015

% Capacity

125% +

Table 4. % Capacity by Enrolment — Senior High

Senior High Students by Enrolment

2010-2011
Senior High | Senior High %
Area Sector Students Capacity Utilization

Sector 1 1,747 1,525 114.56%

AREA | Sector 2 2,106 2,015 104.52%
Total 3,853 3,540 108.84%

Sector 3 5,594 6,619 84.51%

AREA I Sector 4 1,497 1,300 115.15%
Total 7,091 7,919 89.54%

AREA I Sector 5 4,135 4,816 85.86%
Total 4,135 4,816 85.86%

Sector 6 1,152 1,743 66.09%

AREA IV Sector 7 4,159 4,145 100.34%
Total 5,311 5,888 90.20%

Sector 8 5,370 6,278 85.54%

AREA V Sector 9 1,856 1,807 102.71%
Total 7,226 8,085 89.38%

91.30%

Notes:

* Student numbers are based on ArcView data as at September 30, 2010
* Capacity as per Alberta Infrastructure’s ACU Report dated July 20, 2010, assuming exemptions.

Senior High Area Utilization Rates by Enrolment
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Map 7
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Map 8
Sector Utilization by Residence
for Grades 10-12
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APPENDIX I

Modernization Information

Modernization Area Grade Points Rank ‘
Chinook Learning Services v 1
Area | High Schools I Grades 10-12 2
Area Il High Schools Il Grades 10-12 3
Area Il High Schools i Grades 10-12 4
Area V High Schools \% Grades 10-12 5
Piitoayis Family School v Grades K-6 6
Christine Meikle School 1] Grades 7-12 7
Altadore School v Grades K-6 435 8
Nickle School \% Grades 5-9 435 9
Sir Wilfrid Laurier School 1] Grades 5-9 430 10
Elboya School* v Grades K-9 420 11
Dr. J.K. Mulloy School Il Grades K-6 415 12
Henry Wise Wood High School \% Grades 9-12 410 13
Senator Patrick Burns School I Grades 5-9 410 14
A.E. Cross School v Grades 7-9 410 15
Sir John A. Macdonald School I Grades 7-9 395 16
Thomas B. Riley School I Grades 5-9 390 17
Robert Warren School \Y, Grades 5-9 385 18
Louis Riel School \Y, Grades K-9 380 19
Woodman School \% Grades 5-9 380 20
Fairview School \Y, Grades 5-9 370
Sherwood School v Grades 5-9 365
Ernest Morrow School 1l Grades 7-9 355

Note:

e *Recommended as replacement school.
e The top twenty modernizations are in the Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015.

The CBE administration has evaluated modernization priorities for this year’s Capital
Plan. The first seven priorities are placements based on priority program needs for the
CBE. The remaining projects have been ranked on a priority basis. Key factors that are
evaluated to determine priorities are:

e Role of the school and accommodation plans (30% weighting).

« Enrolment, utilization rates, and enrolment projections (25% weighting).
o Site features and location (5% weighting).

« Facility condition (20% weighting).

o Ability to upgrade the facility (20% weighting).

Maximum points = 500

Calgary Board of Education
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Community Ranking for New Schools

Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015

APPENDIX 1

Community Area Grade Points | Rank

Saddle Ridge 1l Grades 5-9 120 1
Royal Oak/Rocky Ridge | Grades 5-9 105 2
Evanston Il K-4 90 3
New Brighton \Y K-4 90 4
New Brighton/Copperfield \Y Grades 5-9 90 5
Evergreen \Y Grades 5-9 85 6
Tuscany @ | K-4 85 7
Copperfield \Y K-4 80 8
Springbank Hill v K-4 75 9
Auburn Bay \Y K-4 75| 10
McKenzie Towne V Grades 5-9 75 11
Springbank Hill/Discovery Ridge \Y Grades 5-9 70| 12
West Springs/Cougar Ridge vV Grades 5-9 60 | 13
Panorama Hills @ Il K-4 60 | 14
Cougar Ridge v K-4 50 | 15
Martindale @ 1l K-4 50 | 16
Signal Hill \% Grades 5-9 45| 17
Cranston V Grades 5-9 45 18
Harvest Hills/Country Hills Il K-4 40| 19
Bridlewood \Y Grades 5-9 40| 20
Harvest Hills/Country Hills Il Grades 5-9 40| 21
Silverado V K-4 40 | 22
Evergreen @ \ K-4 40| 23
Saddle Ridge @ \ K-4 40| 24
Valley Ridge/Crestmont I K-4 35| 25
Kincora I K-4 30 26
Discovery Ridge v K-4 30| 27
Aspen Woods v K-4 30| 28
Evanston I Grades 5-9 30| 29
Cranston @ \Y K-4 30| 30
Hamptons I K-4 20| 3
Aspen Woods v Grades 5-9 10| 32
Notes:

e P ndicates second K-4 school.

¢ In the case of ties, see description on pages 25 and 26.
e The top 14 priorities are in the Three-Year School Capital Plan 2012-2015.

Calgary Board of Education
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2012-2015 Ranking for Capital Submission — K-4

» g and ave
0 0 Profile (po e (po
Build-Out/ Annual
Elementary Population Median
Pre-School (K-GR4) Growth Travel Bus Total

Community Census Enrolment | 3-Yr Average Time | Receivers | Points
Area |
Hamptons 0 20 0 0 0 20
Sherwood 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tuscany @ 35 40 10 0 0 85
Valley Ridge/Crestmont 15 10 0 10 0 35
Arealll
Country Hills/Harvest Hills 15 20 0 5 0 40
Evanston 25 40 5 20 0 90
Kincora 15 0 0 15 0 30
Panorama Hills @ 25 20 15 0 0 60
Area lll
Martindale @ 15 20 0 5 10 50
Saddle Ridge @ 25 0 15 0 0 40
Area IV
Aspen Woods 5 0 5 10 10 30
Cougar Ridge 25 20 0 5 0 50
Discovery Ridge 5 10 0 15 0 30
Springbank Hill 15 40 5 5 10 75
Area V
Auburn Bay 15 40 5 15 0 75
Copperfield 25 30 10 15 0 80
Cranston @ 15 0 15 0 0 30
Evergreen @ 25 0 15 0 0 40
New Brighton 25 30 15 20 0 90
Silverado 5 0 15 20 0 40

Notes: 1. 0 points in Community Growth Profile = 0 points in Busing, Safety and Travel Time
2. Preschool Census includes Public, Public/Separate and Unknown
3. Communities that have a new school constructed or approved and can only support one K-4 school are not ranked.
4. School @ = the community has a new school constructed or approved and can support a second K-4 school.
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2012-2015 Ranking for Capital Submission — Middle/Junior (Grades 5-9)

B g and
0 0 Profile (po Acco odation Pla PO
Build Out/ Annual
Elementary Middle Population Existing GR 5-9 Median
(K-GR4) (GR 5-9) Growth K-4 Accommodation Travel Bus Total

Community Enrolment Enrolment 3-Yr Average School N/A Time Receivers | Points
Area |
Royal Oak/
Rocky Ridge 35 40 10 5 0 15 0 105
Areall
Harvest Hills/
Country Hills 5 20 0 0 0 15 0 40
Evanston 5 0 5 0 0 20 0 30
Area lll
Saddle Ridge 25 50 15 5 5 20 0 120
Area IV
Aspen Woods 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 10
Signal Hill 15 20 0 5 0 5 0 45
Springbank Hill/
Discovery Ridge 25 20 10 0 0 15 0 70
West Springs/
Cougar Ridge 15 30 5 5 0 5 0 60
AreaV
Bridlewood 15 10 5 5 0 5 0 40
Cranston 15 0 15 5 0 10 0 45
Evergreen 25 30 15 5 0 10 0 85
McKenzie Towne 15 30 10 5 0 15 0 75
New Brighton/
Copperfield 15 40 15 0 0 20 0 90

Notes: Communities that have a new middle school constructed or approved are not ranked.
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CBE Point Assignments

Kindergarten — Grade 4, September 30, 2010
Preschool Census (Age 1-5)

200-350 5 points
351-500 15 points
501-650 25 points
> 650 35 points
Current K-4 Enrolment
% Build Out of Community 150-250 251-350 351-450 >450
20-40 40 points | 50 points | 60 points 70 points
41-60 30 points | 40 points | 50 points 60 points
61-80 20 points | 30 points | 40 points 50 points
>80 10 points | 20 points | 30 points 40 points
Annual Population Growth — Three-Year Average of Community
600-800 5 points
801-1,000 10 points
> 1,000 15 points
Median Travel Time to Bus Receiver
16-20 minutes 5 points
21-25 minutes 10 points
26-30 minutes 15 points
31-35 minutes 20 points
36-40 minutes 25 points
>40 minutes 30 points
Bus Receiver — Elementary
Greater than one bus receiver
school (no phase-outs) 10 points

Calgary Board of Education
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Middle/Junior High, September 30, 2010

Elementary (K-4) Enrolment

200-350 5 points
351-500 15 points
501-650 25 points
> 650 35 points
Current Grades 5-9 Enrolment
% Build Out of Community 250-350 351-450 451-550 > 550
20-40 40 points | 50 points | 60 points 70 points
41-60 30 points | 40 points | 50 points 60 points
61-80 20 points | 30 points | 40 points 50 points
>80 10 points | 20 points | 30 points 40 points
Annual Population Growth — Three-Year Average of Community
600-800 5 points
801-1,000 10 points
>1,000 15 points
Existing K-4 5 points
GR5-9 Accommodation
Available 5 points
Median Travel Time to Bus Receiver
16-20 minutes 5 points
21-25 minutes 10 points
26-30 minutes 15 points
31-35 minutes 20 points
36-40 minutes 25 points
>40 minutes 30 points
Bus Receiver — Elementary
Greater than one bus
receiver school (no phase-
outs) 10 points

Calgary Board of Education
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Glossary of Terms and Definitions

CBE Definitions

Additions/Expansions:  Changes the gross area of building

CTS: Career and Technology Studies
Modernization: Supports modernization of a building
Provincial Capacity: Gross square metres of a school divided by the area per student as per

Alberta Education/Alberta Infrastructure’s School Capital Manual
Look-Up Table

RECAPP: Renewal Capital Asset Planning Process

School Community Attendance Area Boundary

CBE Formulas
Utilization Rate = Weighted enrolment [K@FTE + enrolment + (Special Ed. x 3)]
Provincial capacity (student spaces)

Weighted Enrolment = (Total Kindergarten divided by 2 [K@FTE]) + Grades 1-12
enrolment + (Special Education at 3:1)

Calgary Board of Education Prepared by Capital and Urban Planning Services|
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA
APRIL 5, 2011
TOPIC: Policy Amendment Recommendations
Recommendations:
1. THAT the Board of Trustees gives first reading to the deletion of Governance Policy Executive

Limitations 5: Annual Report to the Public, in its entirety, as shown in the attached Appendix I;
and

[§]

THAT the Board of Trustees gives first reading to the amendment of Governance Policy Executive
Limitations 3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees, by the addition of the
following sub-point under point 3:

“Report annually to the public on progress towards achieving the Board of Trustees” Ends policies.”
Background:

Under the Policy Governance model,

"the board, in order to optimally control the operating organization, creates policies with a
peculiar but very important characteristic: these policies tell the CEO what not to do rather than
what to do." (Carver, John and Carver, Miriam. The Policy Governance Model and the Role of
the Board Member, Jossey-Bass, 2009.)

"the Policy Governance board does not make policies about the means that the CEO should use,
... but about the means that the CEQ is not authorized to use." (Carver, John and Carver,
Miriam. Implementing Policy Governance and Staying on Track, Jossey-Bass, 2009.

EL-5 requires that the Chief Superintendent must publish, on behalf of the Board of Trustees, an annual
progress report that includes three categories of information. 1 feel that this 1s information that is
provided to and readily available to the public in many ways, including, but not limited to the
following:

1. Student performance data indicating student progress toward accomplishing the Board of
Trustees’ Ends policies;

Student achievement information is available through the annual monitoring reports that are prepared
for board meetings throughout the year. This includes the provision of the provincial achievement tests
and diploma exam results, as well as information regularly reported on all Ends. In addition. the
Annual Education Results Report provides this information on an annual basis.

2. Information about school district strategies, programs and operations intended to accomplish the
Board of Trustees’ Ends policies;

The Three Year Education Plan is provided to and approved by the Board of Trustees. This document
is available in a printed format as well as on the CBE internet. In addition annual monitoring reports
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are provided for each of the Executive Limitations. All monitoring reports are available on the CBE
internet.

3. Revenues, expenditures and costs of major programs and elements of district operations.

The Board of Trustees approves the operating and capital budgets, which are made available on the
CBE internet. In addition, the Board receives quarterly financial updates. In November of each year,
the annual audited financial statements are made available to the public, through the board reports and
on the CBE internet.

Requiring the provision of all of this information in an Annual Report to the Public duplicates the
efforts of Administration and is not an efficient use of resources.

Administration provided the costs associated with the production of the Annual Report as $2.500 for
printing the hard copy. in addition to the $17,000 in human resources’ time.

In accordance with Governance Process Policy 3, subsection 9, should the Board approve first reading
of this suggested amendment, the Chief Superintendent would then provide impact statements to the
Board prior to second reading.

Respectfully Submitted,

Sheila Taylor, Trustee
Wards 11 and 13

Attachments:
EL-3: Annual Report to the Public
EL-3: Information. Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees, with proposed Amendments
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Board of Trusiees Policy —Executive Limitations

EL-5 Annual-Report to-the Public

Monitoring Method: —lnternal
Menitering-Frequency:—annual

Fhe-Chiet Supsrintendent-shall-net-fallte—prepare and-publish—onbehall-of the Board-—of
Frustees—pror-te-the-end-ofJanuarseach-yoaron-annual-prograse-ragan ta-the public—n-a
summary—format-understandable—te—a—reasonably—informed Javpersen—that—ncludes—the
fotlowing-iteme:

+—=student-pedormanee-data-indicating-student pregress-toward-accompliching the Board
af Trustear- Eroe pohioes
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board of Trustees’ Policy — Executive Limitations
EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees

Monitoring Method: Internal
Monitoring Frequency: Annual

With respect to providing timely information, prudent counsel and support to the Board of
Trustees, the Chief Superintendent shall not allow the Board of Trustees, as a whole (except
when fulfilling individual requests for information), to be uninformed or unsupported in its work
Accordingly, the Chief Superintendent shall not fail to:

1. provide the following information in timely, accurate and understandable manner:

a)

b}
£
dj

&)

gl

hl

relevant monitoring information directly addressing provisions of policies being
monitored;

relevant tfrends affecting the school district;
significant events that occur in the schools or the school digtrict:

all civil or cniminal charges laid or about to be laid by or against the Board of Trustees,
all  significant proceedings  before  boards,  tribunals  or anencies, statutory
investigations. and significant internal investigations. Regular updates on all such
proceedings will also be provided to the Board of Trustees;

significant cavil, criminal investigations or charges laid or about to be laid against
amployess of the Calgary Board of Education:

changes to the Administrative Reguiations of the Calgary Board of Education;

material external and internal changes to the school system, particularly changes in
the assumptions upon which any Board of Trustees' policy has previously been
established:

significant and relevant changes in provincial or federal legislation. government policy
or municipal bylaws. and the impact that those changes will have on the Calgary Board
of Education;

anticipated adverse or significant media coverage;

any correspondence or other communicatien fo or from a Minister of the Crown, a
Deputy Minister or any other elected official;

any correspondence or notices that administration pravides to all CBE school councils

all items delegated to the Chief Superintendent that are required by law or contract to
be Board-approved, along with adequate information necessary to keep the Board of
Trusiees informed (on Consent Agenda); and



ﬁm CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board of Trustees’ Policy — Executive Limitations
Page 2 to EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of
Trustees

m} an annual report, by November 30%, regarding how the Calgary Board of Education is

currently contributing towards achieving the 30-year targets of imagineCALGARY and
how the Calgary Board of Education is actively invalved in the working commitiees of
the imagineCALGARY governance structure,

provide wise counsel to the Board of Trustees in the following areas:

aj

b)

c)

if in the Chief Superintendent's opinion, the Board of Trustees is not in compliance with
its own policies on Governance Process and Board-Chief Superintendent Linkage,
particularly in the case of Board of Trustees' behaviour that is detrimental to the
working relationship between the Board of Trustees and the Chief Superintendent;

in & timely manner, actual or anticipated non-compliance with any policy of the Board
of Trustees and relevant provincial government departments: and

ag many staff and external points of view, issues and options as reasonably needed to
keep the Board of Trustees fully informed.

. provide support to the Board of Trustees in the following areas.

a} a public affairs strategy that recognizes the particular communication needs of the

Board of Trustees, which shall include:

i. effective two-way communication teols to support public engagement and
linkages with stakeholders by the Board of Trustees (ex. web-site, promotional
materials and meetings)

I a8 media strategy that recognizes the political sensitivities of the Board of
Trusiees and fosters effective media relationships and outcomes; and

ili. expert media training and advice.

b} legal cpinions, advice and represantation to the Board of Trustess: and
¢} Report annually to _the public on progress towards achieving the Board of

Trustee's Ends policies
expertise in the Board's role of developing governance policies

provide any other informatien, counsel, and'or support that in hisfer opinion should be
provided to the Board of Trustess

Adopted



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

April 5, 2011

To: BOARD OF TRUSTEES

From: Trustee Carol Bazinet

Re: Recommendations for Amendment of Governance Policy
L RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Board of Trustees approves the amended GP-11E: Board of Trustees
Committees — Terms of Reference — Board Evaluation Committee as attached to this
report.

II. ISSUE

The Board of Trustees is committed to self-evaluation through the monitoring of its governance process
policies, the policies with which the Board instructs itself and subparts of itself, such as officers of the
Board and committees, about its own job. In governance process policies, the Board describes
standards of group and individual behaviour to which it agrees to hold itself. The Board Evaluation
Committee is responsible for arranging the conducting of the evaluation of the GPs. As the Board-
Chief Superintendent Linkage Policies govern how the Board of Trustees and the Chief Superintendent
relate to each other, I am proposing that the Board Evaluation Committee also be responsible for
arranging the conducting of the evaluation of these policies.

Respectfully submitted,

Carol Bazinet, Trustee
Chair, Board Evaluation Committee

Attachments:
GP — 11E showing proposed amendments in tracked changes
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board of Trustees’ Policy — Governance Process
GP-11E: Board of Trustees' Committees — Terms of Reference

BOARD EVALUATION COMMITTEE

PURPOSE
The Board Evaluation Committee is responsible for:

1.  ensuring that the Board of Trustees conducts the retrospective review stipulated by
Governance Process Policy GP-4: Board of Trustees’ Annual Planning Cycle; and

2. arranging for the conducting of an evaluation of the Board’s performance throughout a
school year relative to:
(a) its Governance Process policies (GP 1-13); and
(b) Board-Chief Superintendent Linkage policies (B-1 — B-5): and

(c) _whatever goals it has set for such year and for its term of office; and
3. recommending to the Board of Trustees the processes to be used for such evaluation.

The Committee shall make its recommendations regarding the evaluation processes to be used
no later than May 31 of each year.

The annual evaluation shall be conducted no later than thirty days following the end of the
school year for which performance is being evaluated.

MEMBERSHIP

The committee shall consist of not less than two trustees appointed annually by the Board of
Trustees at its organizational meeting. The Chair of the Board of Trustees shall serve as ex
officio member of the Committee.

All committee members shall commit to: ethical conduct, proper use of authority, decorum, and
professional conduct.

BUDGET
There is no identified budget for this committee. However, should there be an occasion

whereby financial resources are required, the Board Evaluation Committee shall bring forward a
recommendation to the Board of Trustees.

Adopted: Decemberi-2009
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

April 5, 2011
TOPIC: Recommendations for Amendment of Governance Policy
Recommendations:
1. THAT the Board of Trustees gives first reading to the amended policies attached as Appendix [,

specificallv:
s (overnance Process 5 — Board of Trustees’ Kole Description. as amended in tracked changes.

Fa

THAT the Board of Trustees gives second reading to the amended policies attached as Appendix L
specihically:
» CGovernance Process 5 — Board of Trustees'. Role Description, as amended in tracked changes.

3, THAT the Board of Trustees approves that amendments to these policies be given more than two
readings at this meeting; and

If Recommendation # 3 is unanimoeusly approved. the Beard can proceed 1o the next
Hecommendation at this meeting,

4, THAT the Board of Trustees gives third reading and thereby final approval w the policies in
Anachment 1, specifically:

s Governance Process 5 — Board of Trusiees” Role Description, as amended in tracked chanpes.

Background:

The Board of Trustees is committed to self-evaluation through the monitoring of its governance process
policies, the policies with which the Board instructs itself and subparis of itself. such as officers of the
Board and committees, about its own job. In povernance process policies, the Board describes
standards of group and individual behaviour to which it agrees o hold iself.

As part of the annual monitoring process of its governance policies, Trustees review the wording of the
policies 1o ensure that the Board' s words continue 1o reflect the Board's vision. The attachment Tor GP-
5: Board of Trustees' Role Description contains amendments that have been recommended by Trustees
in the process of this review. Trustees feel that the proposed amendments would provide more clarity

in the functioning of the Board of Trustees. The proposed changes to GP-3 reflect the desire to make
the Board of Trustees” Role Description more action-oriented and less passive in language

Respectfully Submitted.
Trustee Jov Bowen-Evee,
Chair, Board Evaluation Commitiee

Adtachmsents:
GP-5 showing propoesed changes in tracked changes
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board of Trustees' Policy — Governance Process
GP-5: Board of Trustees' Role Description

Monitoring Method: Self-Assessment
Monitoring Frequency: Annual

The role of the Board of Trustees iz to represent, lead and inspire the school district by
determining and expecting appropriate and excellent organizational performance. The Board
of Trusteez will act 0 accordance with the relevant Province of Alberta statutes and
regulations, and the Board of Trustees’ own policies and procedures

1 The role of the Board of Trustees is to govern, advocate and represent.  As such, its
primary work will be to!

ia)

(b}

=t

(d}

&)

provide the link between the Calgary Board of Education and citizens of Calgary;

partner with the Ministers of Education and Infrastructure so that the Ministers are
informed about perspectives relevant to public education in Calgary,

advocate on behalf of students, the school system and citizens of Caigary with other
governments, agencies and organizations to ensure a slrong and appropriate
legislative enviranment for public education in Calgary:

produce, review and monitor written governance policies, which, at the broagest
levels, address:

(i

i)

(i)

i

Ends: Crganizational products, impacts, benefits, outcomes, recipients, and
their relative warth {(what good, for which people, at what cost).

Executive Limitations: Limitations on sxecutive authority. which establish the
prudence and ethics boundaries within which all executive activity and
decisions must take place

Governance Process: How the Board of Trustees conceives, executes and
monitors its own performance;

Board-Chief Superintendent Linkage: Chiefl Supernntendent's role, authority,
responsibility and accountability, and how authority and responsibility are
delegated and the pracess of monitoring those delegations;

reguire that the Ends are the focus of organizational parfarmance,
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Board of Trustees' Policy — Governance Process

(f)

(g)

(h)

Page 2 to GP-5: Board of Trustees' Role Description

define Heeswaarsyetam priorifies to drive district performance in all four policy
areas, reviewing or revising those priorities annually, to reflect current district needs
and to drive the following year's resource allocations. As such, it shall be the job of
the Board of Trustees to:

(appraveaThres Yeor Bdueation-FPlas approve Annual Education Results Beporn
{3 yrs) and Three Year Education Plan

LSRR oeE O e H e a AR - S RUSAHON FRESJlE Repat. ang
{il) approve an annual operating and capital budget for the organization;

{iit] 3 vear school caotal plan

priar to submission 1o the relevant Ministeris};

hire the Chief Superintendent and evaluate the Chief Superintendent’s performance
through monitaring Ends and Executive Limitations policies:

give consideration to authorizing the Chief Superintendent to do any act or thing or
exercise any power that the board may or is required 10 do or exercigse, subject (o
the School Act, and formally authorize, by resolution. those powers that the Board
wishes to delegate. Such resolution shall be recorded in the Governancs Policy
regarding Delegation to the Chief Supenntendent

The Board of Trustees also recognizes and holds the authority and responsibility in

areas including but not imited to the following and will act 1o

=}

(b}

{c)

(d)
i)

(f}

appomt an avditor and examine the auditor s repor;

approve the number, and locations of schools 1o be established, and maintained, in
a manner that iz opan 1o community input and paricipation as the Board of
Trustees considers appropriate, while demonstrating responsible stewardship of all
FESOUNCES,

name or rename the organization, schools, portions of schools, rooms within a
school, school grounds, other Calgary Board of Education facilities or educational
programs;

authorize a plebiscite to consider taxation reguisitons from a municipality;

approve the bargaining mandate for all collective agreements,

accept the resignations of all teaching staff;
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Board of Trustees’ Policy - Governance Process

(g}
{h}
{iy
U
LA

i}

{m)

Page 3 to GP-5: Board of Trustees’ Role Description

ferminate the services of a teacher,

hold hearings for the purpose of appeals fo teacher iransfers,
approve all locally developed/authorized courses for use in the CBE;
make by-laws pursuant to legislation;

make rules governing its intemal procedure and its mestings:

approve the ranking crtena that will determine the priorities for construction of new
Kindergarien to Grade 9 schools in the School Capital Plan, and

authorize the successful tender for school buildings prior to submession o the
appropriate Minister for approval

The Beoard of Trustees shall establish and be accountabls for an annual budget for its

QW

governance functions, within the constraints of the administrative envelope and

public acceptability.

Adopled  MNoveraber2 20H
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To:

From:

Re:

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

April 5,2011

Board of Trustees
Naomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools

Annual Monitoring Report for Ends 3: Citizenship

Originator: Cathy Faber, Superintendent, Learning Innovation

Resource Persons:  Elizabeth Gouthro, Director, Learning Support

IL

Sheila McLeod, Director, Global Learning Services, Learning Innovation

Brant Parker, Director, Innovation and Learning Technology, Learning
Innovation

Pat Kover, System Assistant Principal, Research and Innovation
Johanna de Leeuw, Specialist, Research and Innovation

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Chief Superintendent is required to provide an annual monitoring report for the
Board of Trustees with respect to Ends 3: Citizenship.

The purpose of this report is to provide evidence demonstrating the accomplishment of
the Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation for Ends 3: Citizenship.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended:

1. THAT the Board of Trustees receive the information in this monitoring report as
evidence of the accomplishment of the Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable
Interpretation for Ends 3: Citizenship.

2. THAT the Board of Trustees approve the recommended changes to the

Reasonable Interpretation of Ends 3: Citizenship as described in Section VI of this
report.
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I1I.

REASONABLE INTERPREATION

The Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation for Ends 3: Citizenship, approved
by the Board of Trustees on April, 2010, is included below.

The Calgary Board of Education Ends 3: Citizenship states:

Each student will be a responsible citizen by being an informed and involved member in
his or her local, national and global communities.

Accordingly, each student will:

1. Participate in developing and maintaining our Canadian civil, democratic society;

2. Understand the responsibilities of citizenship in local, national and international
contexts;

Respect and embrace cultural diversity;

Develop the skills necessary to work and communicate effectively with others;
Actively contribute to creating a better local and global community.

o W

Citizenship is about who we are, how we live together, and what kind of people our
children are to become."

Most historical interpretations of the concept of citizenship have encompassed a wider
definition of that term than simply referring to the rights of birthplace or homeland.
Historically, four basic facets of citizenship education have been identified; the civil
domain of citizenship, the political domain of citizenship, the socio-economic domain of
citizenship and the cultural domain of citizenship.> Each of these domains has evolved
over time, leading to an ongoing reframing of the notion of citizenship, as increased
globalization has produced a need for greater social responsibility in the global
community. The five policy provisions of Ends 3: Citizenship encompass this variety of
skills, within the context of the four domains of citizenship as we work towards
developing each student’s capacity for effective participation in local, national and
international contexts.

The Chief Superintendent believes citizenship education must combine understandings of
one’s own community with broader understandings of communities around the world;
including governance, laws and societal norms.” This view coincides with the recently

" Hebert, Y. & Sears, A. Citizenship Education. Canadian Education Association, p. 2.

*The civil domain of citizenship includes tenets such as freedom of speech and the rights of individual
citizens. The political domain of citizenship refers to political participation in a democracy including the
right to vote. The socio-economic domain of citizenship refers to social and economic rights like minimum
wage, the right to work, social security and the development of labour laws. The cultural domain of
citizenship refers to how societies deal with cultural diversity and an individual’s rights against all forms of
discrimination. Hebert, Y. & Sears, A. Citizenship Education. Canadian Education Association, pp. 1-2.

* The concept of a responsible citizen is often connected with the concept of being a well educated person.
For example, in the McKinsey Education report from July 2009, Michael Barber discusses a well-educated
person as one with an ethical underpinning to wield influence for the good of society. Barber’s equation
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revised Alberta Education Social Studies Programs of Study wherein it states that
students leaving Grade 12 will have been provided with a number of opportunities to
explore concepts and ideas relative to their own identities, and within the world around
them.

The Social Studies Programs of Study provide examples of learning outcomes that
promote the understanding and analysis of multiple perspectives, both historical and
contemporary, so that students might develop reasoned positions informed by evidence.
Along with these understandings, citizenship education encourages actions one might
perform in order to be a contributing member of a global community; a concept some
educators term “worldmindedness.” Along with the fostering of understandings and
action, citizenship education must work to develop students’ abilities to analyze and
critique causes of social problems’ and responsibly address injustices they have
recognized.5

In this way, the very definition of what it means to be a responsible citizen has changed
over time. Rather than seeing citizenship education as simply developing understandings
of what it means to be a good citizen, citizenship education has come to be viewed within
a context of citizenship-as-practice. “Citizenship-as-practice suggests that young people
learn to be citizens as a consequence of their participation in the actual practices that
make up their lives.”® This participation must be accompanied by scaffolded, directed
learning opportunities, as students do not become responsible citizens merely through the
act of participation. Citizenship as practice requires increased participation of students in
the learning process, and the contextualization of knowledge gained. Citizenship is a
concept that must be lived to be measured.

Citizenship as practice cannot be taught as an independent topic of study. just as a
student’s learnings in all curricular areas cannot be compartmentalized. As discussed in
the Reasonable Interpretation for Ends 2: Academic Success, the Program of Studies for
each curricular area is not an entity unto itself, as each one is related to others in a myriad
of ways. Literacy development, for example, does not only take place in an English
class, just as mathematics learning is not contained within the mathematics block in a
student’s schedule. In fact, literacy, it has been said, empowers the individual “both in the
psychological and the social sense, and...sharpens consciousness, creates discontent with

demonstrating his conceptualization of what constitutes a well-educated citizen was used as a model in the
Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation for Ends 1: Mega End, as it encompasses knowledge,
thinking and leadership within an ethical framework. This framework mirrors the interplay between all of
the Calgary Board of Trustees’ Ends policy statements, reinforcing the idea that all must work together to
develop a well educated citizen.

* Westheimer, J. & Kahne, J. (2004). What Kind of Citizen? The Politics of Educating for Democracy.
American Educational Research Journal. Volume 41, No. 2, p, 21,

’ Alberta Education Social Studies Program of Studies at
http://education.alberta.ca/media/774377/soc30.pdf

6 Lawy, R. & Biesta, G., 2006, Citizenship-as-Practice: The Educational Implications of an Inclusive and
Relational Understanding of Citizenship. British Journal of Educational Studies. Vol. 54, No. 1, p. 45.



http://education.alberta.ca/media/774377/soc30.pdf

the unacceptable, and adds potential to individual capacity for participation.” In short,
literacy makes modern democracy possible.7 Just as all curricular areas can contribute to
one’s citizenship education, citizenship education -- to be practiced and lived -- will cross
all curricular boundaries. It will serve, not as a subject to be studied, but to address the
many issues pertinent to student lives. “The issues themselves should be viewed as
interconnected or mutually embedded...(and) learners should be helped to understand
that their perspective on any issue is but one among many.”8

The interplay between and amongst the concepts in the five Ends not only contribute to
the development of a person who is “well-educated,” but also to illustrate the forces at
play within the concept of citizenship itself, as each of the other Ends contributes to the
development of our young citizens. Guiding students in becoming responsible citizens
requires the acquisition of knowledge and understandings described in the reasonable
interpretation for Ends 2: Academic Success, the development of participatory and
communication skills and values described in Ends 4: Personal Development and Ends 5:

Characrer and the ethical framework and personalization of learning described in Ends 1:
Mega End.

The Mega End describes processes whereby students engage deeply in the learning
process through the personalization of student learning; developing foundations needed to
function effectively in life, work and continued learning. These foundations are the
tenets stated in the policy provisions of the four CBE Ends leading to the Mega End:
Academic Success, Citizenship, Personal Development and Character. With these
necessary foundations developed in synergy with one another, students can become
citizens of the world who contribute to the common good. These student citizens are
ethical, builders of trusting relationships, open minded team players, and effective
communicators. They are engaged, life-long learners, who are able to adapt to change
with optimism and hope. They are entrepreneurs, confident and bold explorers striving
for excellence. Calgary Board of Education students are supported in developing these
attributes that contribute to healthy, sustainable and inclusive communities.

The development of desired attributes of responsible citizens can be most effectively
realized through the personalization of student learning; meeting each student’s needs in
becoming informed and involved members of their communities. Being informed
denotes an individual who seeks information, considers conflicting discourse, is reflective
and uses critical thinking skills. In addition to being informed, a responsible citizen is
also involved; active in seeking both knowledge and experience. The combination of

" Bhola, H.S. Literacy for Survival and for More Than Mere Survival. International Bureau of Education,
UNESCO, Geneva, 1990.

8 Selby, D., & Pike, G. (2000). Civil Global Education : Relevant Learning for the Twenty-First Century.
Convergence, 33(1/2), 138. Retrieved January 31, 2008, from Professional Development Collection
database. p.2. Linked at:

http://login.ezproxy.librarv.ualberta.ca/login?url=http://search.ebscohost.com/login.aspx?direct=true& db=tth& AN=350
0292&loginpage=Login.asp&site=ehost-live&scope=site
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these attributes serves to foster the development of social and critical-thinking
capabilities in each of our students.

Monitoring and measuring reasonable progress towards Ends 3: Citizenship requires a
balanced examination of our students” understandings and actions; how they are informed
and involved. Current research also suggests the addition of monitoring student values
within the realm of citizenship education. Evaluating values is complex as it involves
appraising what constitutes responsible or good citizenship; the definition of which may
change over time or in different contexts. For example, one would usually not advocate
for breaking the law, however positive examples of law-breakers like Rosa Parks, Nelson
Mandela and Mahatma Gandhi cannot be overlooked when examining the history of
human rights and what constitutes a responsible citizen. .

The Chief Superintendent believes that the monitoring of a student’s values should
primarily reside within families, guided by familial morals and expectations. Public
education has a role in complementing those family-based value systems by guiding
students in the development of societal values. Although schools cannot assess the
values students hold, they can monitor and assess attitudes and behaviours displayed in
the context of responsible citizenship in school.

All three aspects of citizenship education -- understandings, actions and values -- are
reflected in the outcomes, measures and data sources listed below.

Qutcomes

e Students demonstrate understandings of local, national and international political
processes pertinent to their age and stage of development, as per outcomes in the
Alberta Program of Studies for Social Studies

e Students demonstrate understandings of a variety of perspectives on local, national

and international issues

Students demonstrate understanding of membership obligations in communities

Student actions demonstrate understanding of local, national and global value systems

Students participate in decision-making involving issues directly affecting their lives

Students participate in community service, school service and volunteer work

? Sears, A. (2004). In Search of Good Citizens: Citizenship Education and Social Studies in Canada. Challenges &
Prospects for Canadian Social Studies. Pacific Educational Press, Chapter 5.
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Measures

Percentages of students who achieve the acceptable standard and the standard of
excellence on Provincial Achievement Tests and Diploma Exams in Social Studies
Percentage of students who report having had opportunities to participate in
classroom or school decisions that affect them

Percentage of students who report participating in political or social causes in order to
improve the community

Percentage of students who report that they believe they can make a difference in the
local, national and international community

Percentage of students who report having been encouraged through public education
to appreciate multiple perspectives

Percentage of students who report participating in community service, school service
or volunteer work

Percentage of students who understand digital citizenship requirements and use them
effectively

Percentage of students who are reported to exercise democratic rights and
responsibilities within the learning community

Percentage of students who are reported to demonstrate respect and appreciation for
diversity as measured through school report cards

Percentage of students who are reported to work and communicate effectively with
others

Data Sources

Alberta Education Accountability Pillar Overall Summary
Provincial Achievement Test and Diploma Exam results
CBE Mega End Symposia data

CBE Student Survey

CBE Student Report Card Data

Media reports involving CBE schools or students

School based digital citizenship reporting
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IV.

RESULTS
Introduction

The Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation for Ends 3 describes a model for
citizenship that has two components: 1) student understanding of the concept of
citizenship, not only as implicit in attitudes and behaviours but as a deeply held value in
Canadian society; 2) student actions that reflect this learning.

As our understanding of optimal ways of measuring citizenship increases, our data
sources continue to evolve and mature. Behind the data presented in this report lies the
picture or image of how Calgary Board of Education students demonstrate the attitudes,
values and actions that constitute citizenship as described in the Reasonable
Interpretation of Ends 3. The information presented in this report creates a model for the
achievement of citizenship that is principled and praiseworthy, a model which Calgary
Board of Education students aspire to consistently achieve year after year.

For the purposes of this report, four data sources were used for the measures in the
monitoring report for Ends 3. First, results from the Diploma Examinations and
Provincial Achievement Tests provide the data for measure 1.1 where student
understanding of local, national and international political processes pertinent to their age
and stage of development as per outcomes in the Alberta Program of Studies for Social
Studies 1s demonstrated.

Second, the Accountability Pillar survey results are used to measure the percentage of
teachers, parents and students who are satisfied that students model the characteristics of
active citizenship.

Third, results from the Calgary Board of Education Student Survey provide student
perceptions of their own performance in a number of measures ranging from their
understandings of citizenship on a local and global level to participation in a variety of
citizenship activities. Each measure indicates the number and percentage of students
agreeing with the statements provided in the survey. The percentage of students indicated
as having missed the question is a percentage of those who responded to the survey, not a
percentage of all grade twelve students. The survey also included one open ended
question related to citizenship. Observations on student responses to this question are
included in the conclusion of this report.

Fourth, data from the Pilot Ends Assessment Reporting for the first reporting period of
2009 were used in three outcomes that measure student participation in the school
community, appreciation for diversity and work and ability to communicate effectively
with others. Ninety-eight elementary and middle schools participated in the Pilot Ends
Reporting for the first reporting period of 2009 with the total number of students involved
estimated at 25% of Calgary Board of Education student population. Although the
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duration of the pilot project was the full school year, only data from the first reporting
period offered consistency in criteria reported and number of schools participating.

Outcome 1
Students demonstrate understandings of local, national and international political

processes pertinent to their age and stage of development, as per outcomes in the Alberta
Program of Studies for Social Studies

Measure 1.1

Percentages of students who achieve the acceptable standard and the standard of
excellence on Provincial Achievement Tests and Diploma Exams in Social Studies

Rationale 1.1

Citizenship and identity are the core concepts that form the basis for skills and
learning outcomes in The Alberta Program of Studies for Social Studies'’. The role of
the programme is to develop “key values and attitudes, knowledge and understanding,
and skills and processes necessary for students to become active and responsible
citizens, engaged in the democratic process and aware of their capacity to effect
change in their communities, society and world” (Alberta Education, 2005, p. 1). The
program vision emphasises “the importance of diversity and respect for differences as
well as the need for social cohesion and the effective functioning of society. It
promotes a sense of belonging and acceptance in students as they engage in active
and responsible citizenship at the local, community, provincial, national and global
level” (p.1). Evaluating student understanding of political processes by way of
performance in social studies exams is a one way of providing evidence for the
accomplishment of Outcome 1, Ends 3.

Result 1.1
On October 1, 2010, in the Accountability Pillar Overall Summary, Alberta Education

released details of the Diploma Examination and Provincial Achievement Test results
for each school and for the jurisdiction.

The 2009-2010 school year saw the full implementation of the revised Grade 6 and 9
Social Studies Provincial Achievement Tests. The new Social Studies Program of
Study is identified by Alberta Education as a major change in teaching pedagogy and
teaching practice. New exams mean that trend analysis is not possible. The 2009-
2010 reporting year will provide the baseline data for future trend analysis.

" Alberta Education. (2005). Social Studies (Kindergarten to grade 12) programme of studies. Edmonton, AB:
Government of Alberta. http://education.alberta.ca/teachers/program/english/programs.aspx
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New diploma exams were introduced in 2009-2010 school year for the new programs
of study in Social Studies 30-1 and Social Studies 30-2. As these are new exams,
trend analysis is not possible. The 2009-2010 reporting year will provide the baseline
data for future trend analysis.

The tables below show the percentage of grades 6, 9 and 12 students achieving the
acceptable standard and standard of excellence in the Social Studies Provincial
Achievement tests and Diploma exams. At both grades six and nine levels, over 76%
of Calgary Board of Education students achieved at or above the acceptable standard,
and in the diploma exams, over 85% of students achieved at or above the acceptable
level.

Table 1 Calgary School District | Alberta e

Provincial Achievement Test Results 2010 2007-2009 2010 2007-2009
Average Average

Social Number Writing 6,536 n/a 39,393 n/a

Studies 6 | A cceptable Standard % 79.3 n/a 78.6 n/a

Standard of Excellence % 16.7 n/a 18.2 n/a

Table2 : Calgary School District Alberta e

Provincial Achievement Test Results 2010 2007-2009 2010 2007-2009
Average Average

Social Number Writing 6,932 n/a 39,489 n/a

Studies 9 ["Acceptable Standard % 76.1 n/a 76.4 n/a

Standard of Excellence % 20.7 n/a 20.8 n/a

Table 3 Calgary School District Alberta

Diploma Exam Results 2010 2007-2009 2010 2007-2009
Average Average

Social Number Writing 4,769 n/a 23,484 n/a

Studies  |"Acceptable Standard % 86.4 n/a 84.5 n/a

el Standard of Excellence % 19.2 n/a 16.1 n/a

[ Tabled Calgary School District Alberta

Diploma Exam Results 2010 2007-2009 2010 2007-2009
Average Average

Social Number Writing 2,952 n/a 14,903 n/a

Studies  ["Acceptable Standard % 85.7 n/a 85 n/a

102 Standard of Excellence % 17.4 n/a 13.7 n/a




Qutcome 2

Students demonstrate understandings of a variety of perspectives on local, national and
international issues

Measure 2.1

Percentage of students who report having been encouraged through public education
to appreciate multiple perspectives

Rationale 2.1

Three questions from the Calgary Board of Education High School survey were
selected as data for measuring Outcome two. While students reporting on their own
understanding of a variety of perspectives on local national and international issues
directly addresses the outcome as stated, questions five (valuing other cultures) and
six (participating in cultural events and activities) provide a broader perspective. The
implication of question six (in the chart on the following page) which addresses
student participation, investigates “citizenship-as-practice [where] young people learn
to be citizens as a consequence of their participation in the actual practices that make
up their lives.”" (from the Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation of Ends
3)

Result 2.1

The Calgary Board of Education Student Survey was conducted with grade twelve
students in June 2010. Table 5 below demonstrates that 84.2% of the students who
responded to question four agree or strongly agree that public education enabled them
to appreciate multiple perspectives. For question five, 88.3% of the students who
responded to the question agree or strongly agree that public education allowed them
to learn to value other cultures. For question six, 65.5% of the students who
responded indicated that they participated in cultural events and activities.

Table 5 Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly Missing
Questions 4, 5 & 6 from CBE agree (1)~ | @ (3) Disagree (4)

Student Survey

Questions 4, 5 & 6 from CBE | count | % count | % count | % count % %
Student Survey

4.1 have been encouraged 1250 | 30.5 | 2199 | 53.7 | 440 10.7 164 4.0 |
through public education to

appreciate multiple

perspectives.

5.1 have learned to value other | 1772 | 43.3 | 1844 |45.0 | 286 7.0 157 3.8 9
cultures.

6. I have participated in cultural | 890 21.7 | 1795 |[43.8 | 1036 25.3 331 8.1 11
events and activities.

H Lawy, R. & Biesta, G., 2006, Citizenship-as-Practice: The Educational Implications of an Inclusive and Relational
Understanding of Citizenship. British Journal of Educational Studies. Vol. 54, No. 1, p. 45.




Outcome 3
Students demonstrate understanding of membership obligations in communities

Rationale for Measures 3.1 to 3.4

Eight questions from the Calgary Board of Education High School survey were
selected as data for measures 3.1 to 3.4. These survey questions are seen to reflect
the development of an understanding of membership obligations in communities.
Members of communities learn what it means to understand membership obligations
by developing the knowledge and skills necessary to become responsible citizens
(measure 3.1), exercising democratic rights and responsibilities within a community
(measure 3.2), observing and supporting appropriate protocols in specific
environments as in digital citizenship (measure 3.3), as well as learning essential
communication skills and working effectively with others (measure 3.4). As pointed
out in the rationale for Outcome 2, students reporting on their own understandings
(questions 7 and 8 of the Student Survey) more directly addresses the outcome as
stated. However, this report also provides evidence of the ways in which students see
themselves translating understanding into action, thus addressing citizenship as
practice (questions 11,12,13,16 & 17 of the Student Survey).

Measure 3.1

Percentage of students who report that they understand the knowledge and skills
necessary to become responsible citizens

Result 3.1
Question seven from the Student Survey was used to demonstrate this measure. Most

students (93.4%) responded positively to the statement “I understand the knowledge
and skills necessary to become a responsible citizen”.

Table 6 Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly Missing
agree (1) (2) 3) Disagree (4)
Question 7 from CBE count | % count | % count | % count % %

Student Survey

7.1 understand the
knowledge and skills 1672 | 40.8 | 2154 | 52.6 | 146 3.6 79 1.9

necessary to become a
responsible citizen,

1.1

Measure 3.2
Percentage of students who are reported to exercise democratic rights and

11
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responsibilities within the learning community

Result 3.2

The data provided for measure 3.2 from the Calgary Board of Education Student
Survey is derived from students reporting on themselves rather than teacher reports
(see recommendation for change Section VI). Student self assessment is seen as a
valid source of information as well as important component of the assessment
process'z. The Student Survey results show that of the students who responded to
question thirteen, 70.5% agreed or strongly agreed with statement, “I learned how to
challenge policies or political decisions that I may not agree with”.

challenge policies or
political decisions that I
may not agree with.

Table 7 : Strongly agree | Agree . Disagree Strongly Missing
la@)ss (2) 25 1n3) Disagree (4)
Question 13 from CBE count % count | % count | % count % | %
Student Survey
13. 1 learned how to 917 224 | 1971 48.1 | 925 22,6 | 237 5.8 | 1.1

Measure 3.3
Percentage of students who understand digital citizenship requirements and use them
effectively

Result 3.3

Results from questions eleven and twelve of the Student Survey showed varying
responses. While 89.5% of students reported feeling confident in taking personal
responsibility for using technology appropriately, only 70.2% of students felt
confident in recognising inappropriate uses of technology and taking action to correct
them. Since this latter incorporates two questions within one, it is not possible to
ascertain whether students felt unable to recognise inappropriate uses of technology
or felt unable to take action in a peer group setting or whether the response reflects
an equal combination of both scenarios. This question has been adjusted in the 2011-
2012 Calgary Board of Education Student Survey.

12 Taras, M. (2003). To Feedback or Not to Feedback in Student Self-assessment. Assessment & Evaluation in
Higher Education, 28(5), 549-565. Retrieved from EBSCOhost, February 14, 2011.
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Table 8 Strongly Agreel « Disagree Strongly Disagree | Missing
F e lagree ()EESRND) (3) “4)

Questions 11 & 12 from CBE | count | % count | % count | % count % %

Student Survey

11. I take responsibility for using | 1333 | 32.5 | 2335 | 57.0 | 252 6.2 123 3.0 1.3

technology appropriately.

12. I recognize inappropriate uses | 788 19.2 | 2090 51.0 | 898 21.9 272 6.6 12

of technology and take action to

correct them.

Measure 3.4

Percentage of students are reported to work and communicate effectively with others

Result 3.4.1

The data provided below for measure 3.4 from the Calgary Board of Education
Student Survey is derived from students reporting on themselves rather than teacher
reports (see recommendation for change Section VI). Results from the four Student
Survey questions (Table 10 below) that speak to development of communication
skills show that an average of 89.4% of students agree that they have learned to work

and communicate effectively with others.

7-13

Table 10 Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly Missing
agree (1) (2) (3) Disagree (4)
Questions 8,15,16,17 from CBE count | % count | % count | % count % %
Student Survey
8. I work to understand how other | 1660 405 | 2096 51.2 | 215 5.2 80 2.0 1.1
people feel through listening,
speaking and observing.
15. 1 learned how to communicate | 1464 357 | 2211 54.0 | 281 6.9 92 2.2 1.2
effectively with others.
16. 1 learned how to work 1503 36.7 | 2164 52.8 | 259 6.3 114 2.8 1.4
effectively with others.
17. 1 know how I learn best and | 1430 349 | 2120 51.7 | 382 9.3 114 2.8 1.2
am able to work well with those
who learn in different ways.
13




Result 3.4.2

Results from the Pilot Ends Reporting for the first reporting period of 2009 provide a
partial data picture in that not all Calgary Board of Education schools participated in
this trial of the Ends assessment and reporting process. Students were assessed on a
one to five scale according to the descriptor on the report card. Level three was
established as the mean (meeting expectations) and levels four and five were
combined to demonstrate exceeding expectations. Students assessed at levels one and
two were assessed as needing to improve. Results indicated in Table 9 below show
that teachers reported the majority of students (93.17%) work and communicate
effectively with others at or above expectations.

Table 9

60 -

B Does Not Meet
Expectations

B Meets Expectations

‘ Exceeds Expectations

Works and communicates eftectively
with others

Outcome 4
Student actions demonstrate understanding of local, national and global value systems

Rationale for Measures 4.1, 4.2 and 4.3

By asking that student actions demonstrate understanding of local, national and
global value systems, outcome four addresses the concept of citizenship as practice.
Citizenship education involves more than developing understandings; it is a “concept
that must be lived to be measured” (Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable
Interpretation, Ends 3). Both the Calgary Board of Education Student Survey
question and the Accountability Pillar question speak to this concept. The Student
Survey question is more specific asking students to report on their own belief that
they can make a difference in local, national and international communities. By
contrast, the Accountability Pillar is a provincial measure and asks the question on a
more general level. Teachers, parents and students are asked whether they believe
our students model the characteristics of active citizenship.
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Measure 4.1
Percentage of students who report that they believe they can make a difference in the
local, national and international community

Result 4.1
When asked, 72.8% of students agreed that they can make a difference in the local,
national and international communities.

Table 11 ; Strongly | Agree . Disagree Strongly Missing
j ol e agree ()¢ 5L (2) 5 ool (3) Disagree (4). ey
Question 3 from CBE Student count | % count | % count | % count % %
Survey
3. I believe I can make a 793 194 | 2189 | 534 | 842 20.6 | 238 5.8 9
difference in the local, national
and international communities.

Measure 4.2

Percentage of teachers, parents and students who are satisfied that students model the
characteristics of active citizenship

Result 4.2

Alberta Education asks responses from parents, students and teachers at each of the
grade 4, 7 and 10 levels regarding the degree to which believe that students model
the characteristics of active citizenship. The overall percentages shown below reflect
the combined results from three grade levels and of parents, students and teachers.
The results below indicate that Calgary Board of Education students have improved
significantly in this performance measure.

Table 12
Accountability Pillar Results (in percentages) Ewvaluation
Performance Maasure : 2006 [2007 [2008 [2009 [2010 [Achievement [Improvement [Overall

Percentages of teachers, parents and students

who are satisfied that students model the|75.4 [74.5|756 |78.1 [79.4 Kaliyl
characteristics of active citizenship.

improved

Good

Significantly

Measure Details
Percentages of teachers, parents and students who are satisfied that students model the characteristics of active citizenship.
Authority Province
12006 2007 2008 [2009 2010 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Overall 754 745 75.6 781 794 76.8 76.6 77.9 80.3 81.4
Teacher 88.7 87.5 87.9 90.0 91.7 90.3 89.9 90.6 91.8 93.0
Parent 70.5 70.1 71.9 736 75.8 724 726 74.7 7.4 78.5
Student 66.9 65.7 67.0 70.6 707 67.5 67.1 68.5 71.8 72.7
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Measure 4.3

Percentage of students who are reported to demonstrate respect and appreciation for
diversity as measured through school report cards

Result 4.3

Results from the Pilot Ends Reporting for the first reporting period of 2009 provide a
partial data picture in that not all schools participated in this trial of the Ends
assessment and reporting process. Students were assessed on a one to five scale
according to the descriptor on the report card. Level three was established as the
mean (meeting expectations) and levels four and five were combined to demonstrate
exceeding expectations. Students assessed at levels one and two were assessed as
needing to improve. Results shown in Table 13 indicate that teachers report the
majority of students (97.64%) respect and embrace diversity at or above
expectations.

Table 13

T i L,
60 I ——

50

B [Yoes Not Meet

Tl e Expectations

| | # Meets Expectation
L300

£ * Exceeds Expectations
.20 '

Respects and embraces diversity

Outcome 5
Students participate in decision-making involving issues directly affecting their lives

Measure 5.1

Percentage of students who report having had opportunities to participate in
classroom or school decisions that affect them

Rationale 5.1

Question one from the Calgary Board of Education Student Survey directly addresses
Outcome five and as noted before, the survey gives student perception of their
involvement with decision making.
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Result 5.1

Results from the Calgary Board of Education Student Survey indicate that 79.4% of
students believe they have had opportunities to participate in classroom or school
decisions that affect them.

Table 14 Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly Missing
: agree (1) )T 3) Disagree (4) :

Question 1 from CBE Student count | % count | % count | % count % %

Survey

1. T have had opportunities to | 944 2310 2312 56.4 | 631 154 173 42 9

participate in classroom or

school decisions that affect me.

Measure 5.2

Percentage of students who are reported to contribute to creating a positive school
community

Rationale 5.2

Data from the Pilot Ends Assessment and Reporting provide teacher assessment of
student contribution to creating a positive school climate. When students make the
choice to contribute to a positive school community, they can be seen to participate
in decision making that affects their lives.

Result 5.2

Results from the Pilot Ends Reporting for the first reporting period of 2009 provide a
partial data picture in that not all schools participated in this trial of the Ends
assessment and reporting process. Students were assessed on a one to five scale
according to the descriptor on the report card. Level three was established as the
mean (meeting expectations) and levels four and five were combined to demonstrate
exceeding expectations. Students assessed at levels one and two were assessed as
needing to improve. Results shown in Table 15 indicate that teachers report the
majority of students (95.92%) contributed to a positive school community at or
above expectations.

Table 15

B e

 Does Not Meet
Expectations

% Meets Expectations

Exceeds Expectations

Contributes to creating a positive school
community
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Outcome 6
Students participate in community service, school service and volunteer work

Measure 6.1

Percentage of students who report participating in community service, school service
or volunteer work

Rationale 6.1
The measure is explicit in the outcome.

Result 6.1

Students reported favourably on participating in community service and volunteer
work. A combined percentage result from Student Survey questions nine and ten
indicate that over 68% of Calgary Board of Education students are actively involved
in community and volunteer work.

Table 17 Strongly Agree | Disagree Strongly Missing

agree (1 @) (3) Disagree (4)
Questions 9 & 10 from the CBE | count | % count | % count | % count % | %

Student Survey

9. | do community service, school | 916 224 | 1675 409 | 1023 25.0 444 10. | 1.0

service or volunteer work to help 8

others.

10. I take action to protect the 793 19.4 | 2237 | 54.6 | 759 18.5 265 65110

environment.

Measure 6.2

Percentage of students who report participating in political or social causes in order
to improve the community

Rationale:
The measure is explicit in the outcome.

Result 6.2

Question fourteen on the student survey is open to a range of interpretations.
Students might consider that voting in a school election qualifies as participating in
social or political change or they may feel a greater commitment is required to
answer this question favourably. This is the context in which 58.8% of students
agreed with the question.

Table 18 Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly Missing
agree (1) (2) (3) Disagree (4)
Question 14, CBE Student Survey | count | % count | % count | % count % %
14. 1 participated in changing 631 154 | 1780 | 43.4 | 1251 |30.5 | 384 94 |12
something in our school
community for the better.
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Conclusion

The Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation suggests that although it is
essential to develop an understanding of what it means to be an informed and productive
citizen in a global community, “citizenship is a concept that must be lived to be
measured”.”” In addition, citizenship as practice cannot be taught as an independent
topic; rather, it is embedded in the way students live their lives in school and the
community. Monitoring citizenship relies on perception data both by students themselves
and to some extent, teachers and parents. ‘Hard’ data such as exam results are applicable
in only one measure where student understandings rather than student actions are
addressed.

Results from each measure are presented as evidence for the accomplishment of the
outcomes listed in the Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation of Ends 3.
Results show that students demonstrate awareness and sensitivity in considering the
needs of others and that an increasing number are translating words into actions by
volunteering within their schools and the greater community. As well, students are
embracing leadership opportunities. In the open comment section of the Calgary Board of
Education Student Survey, many reported that opportunities to develop leadership
capacities through volunteering, sports or involvement in school politics was instrumental
in developing their citizenship skills. Participation in the Mega End Symposia more than
tripled, from 47 students representing seven high schools in 2009, to 166 students
representing all CBE high schools in 2010.

Calgary Board of Education media releases also highlight some outstanding examples of
students as leaders in citizenship. To name only three recent instances: students from
Tom Baines School were chosen from 550 applicants across Canada to receive the Green
Grant from the World Wildlife Fund Canada’s leading conservation organisation; two
student groups from Le Roi Daniels and F.E. Osborne schools, were nominated in the
International Youth category of the 2010 YMCA Calgary Peace Medal for their
leadership in raising funds for youth in need in the developing world; in October 2010,
eight CBE high school students participated in the Youth Advisory to the Premier’s
Council for Economic Strategy. Perhaps opportunities provided in our schools for
students to learn the value of citizenship and to grow and develop as citizens can be best
summed up by the words of one Calgary Board of Education student:

I have learned to value and respect others as well as their ideas. It [my school experience] has
made me more capable of interacting and communicating with other people and the knowledge I
have gained is priceless. Because of my experiences here, whether they be frightening,
exhilarating, inspiring or even strengthening, I have grown as a student as | am now an adult. This
school really helped me develop as a human being and reminded us all that character, virtues, and
kindness are critical aspects of life which we all must remember throughout our lives."

'3 The Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation for Ends 3: Citizenship
' Student Comment from Calgary Board of Education Student Survey, 2010
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VI

SUMMARY STATEMENT

The information in this report is presented as evidence of the accomplishment of the
Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation of Ends 3: Citizenship.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR CHANGES TO THE CHIEF
SUPERINTENDENT’S REASONABLE INTERPRETATION

Administration respectfully requests the Board of Trustees consider the following
changes to the Reasonable Interpretation for Ends 3: Citizenship for use in future
monitoring of this Ends.

L.

Change: Wording of measures 3.2, 3.4 and 4.3 (as identified in this report)
from “students who are reported...” to “students who report exercising
(communicating, demonstrating) and/or who are reported to...”.

Reason for Change: The new wording provides more flexibility regarding use of
data. Data from student self reporting data as well as data from teacher reporting can
be used. Providing different types of data for one measure increases reliability of
results.

Change: Wording from “Data Sources™ to “Suggested Data Sources”.

Reason for Change: As our understanding of optimal ways of measuring citizenship
increases, our data sources continue to evolve and mature. Changing the wording
allows data sources to be added when needed or disregarded when no longer
applicable.

NAOMI E. JOHNSON
CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

APRIL 5, 2011

CORRESPONDENCE

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Board of Trustees receives the following correspondence for information
and for the record. in the form as submitted:

»  Correspondence dated March 9, 2011 frem The Honourable Dave Hancock,
Minister of Alberta Education, to Board Chair Pal Cochrane, regarding
changes 1o the policy governing leasing of jurisdiction-owned Facilities 1o
other jurisdictions and attachment of an estimate of the anticipated effect
on related funding streams of the CBE.

»  Correspondence dated March 185, 20011 from Keray Henke, Deputy Minister
of Alberta Education. 1o Board Chair Pat Cochrane, advising of capital
project approval of furniture and equipment for Coventry Hills. Taradale,
Panorama and Tuescany Middle Schools and the North West High School.

Respectfully Submitted,

LR, Barkway.
Corporate Secretary”’s Office
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March 9. 2011 —— BOARD OF TRUSTEES
r'._if.*|.:'|- q-ll'-l.l_lr Adrarneer

Ms. Pat Cochrane

Chair

Calgary Board of Education
515 Macleod Trail SE
Calgary. Alberta

T2G 2L%

Dear Ms. Cochrane:

As noted in my Budget 201 | conference call on February 24, 2011, changes 1o the policy governing the
beasing of jurisdiction-owned facilities 10 other jurisdictions will be phased in beginning with the
201 12012 school wvear,

This policy change is the result of a review of current leasing policy and practice and reflects a need to
create consistency and equity in support of leased arrangements, while also ensuring the education sysiem
remains fiscally responsible to taxpayers. In some cases. government is paying twice for publicly owned
and Mnanced school facilities,

Please note that the new policy also requires that school jurisdictions include any other requests for lease
suppor (i.e., 1o lease space in privately owned facilities) in their three-vear capital plans. prioritized
against requests for other capital funding. A further review is currently underway regarding a new policy
to govern the leasing of privately owned facilities by school jurisdictions.

The attached table provides an estimate of the anticipated effect on the related funding streams of the
Calgary Board of Education in vear one and upon full implementation once all of the affected leases have
expired and been switched 1o Infrastructure Maintenance and Renewal funding. This estimate 15 based on
lease support data from 2010:2011.

This new policy puts in place a more consisient and reasonable framework 1o help government meet its
responsibility to ensure all Alberta students have appropriate school facilities. For further information
about the new leasing pelicy, please contact Dr. Avi Habinski, Director. Capital Planning South. at
TR0-427-2272 (1oll-free by first dialing 3 1 0-0000) or by c-mail at avihabinsky@goy,ab.ca .

Y ours truly,

) /"/}i

" Dave Han€ock. Q.C.
Minis

Anachment
cel MNaomi Johnson

Superintendent. Calpary Board of Education

224 Legislarure Building 10800 - 97 Avenue, Edmonmon, Alberra Canada TSK 286 Telephone TEI-427-510 Fax TAO-427-3HHE
203, $69 Riverhend Square, Edmonton, Albera Canada ToR 2E3  Telephone 7802133970 Fax TE-415-5971

& ':.h.g i 34 i




Attachment

Calgary Board of Education

Leases: 12 Schools - Charter

A. Reduction in lease support

Year One

Full Implementation

($0.43 million)

(£5.89 million)

B. Anticipated increase to £0.27 million $1.56 million
' IMR Funding as a result of
policy change.
A+B = Net (loss)/gain in (80,16 million) (%4.33 million)

jurisdiction income
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MECEIVEN
Government of Alberta = i__'.ﬁls-'%s? EiW e i Office of the Deputy Minister
ST 4 P Tih Floor, Commense Blace
i MY MARZg 201 B M 10155 - 102 Street
!__ Il I Edmonton, Afberts T5J 4LS
rry b o el il Canada.
BOARD OF TRUSTEES TelepAicnE 760-427-3658

Fax 780=-227-FT33

ARGRO0T
March 18, 2011

Ms. Pat Cochrane

Chair

Calgary Board of Education
515 Macleod Trail SE
Calgarv, Alberta

T2G 219 ?—Lr
D:HIW 'H %

Om behalf of the Honourable Dave Hancock, Minister of Education, | am pleased 10 advise vou of
the following capital project approval for Calgary Board of Education.

Total approval of $13,119.554 for fumniture and equipment and Career and
Technology Studies (CTS) equipment for the following schools under the Alberta
Schools Alternative Procurement Project - Phase [1:

» Coventry Hills {Grades 5-9) — §1,839,996 for Furniture and Equipment and $318.000
for CTS, for a total of $2.157.994;

e Taradale (Grades 3-9) — $1,839,996 for Furniture and Equipment and 3318.000 for
CTS. for a total of §2,157,996;

e  Tuscany (Grades 5-9) — 51.839.996 for Fumiture and Equipment and $318,000 for
CTS, for awotal of 32,157 996;

# Panorama (Grades 5-9) — 51,839,996 for Furniture and Equipment and 33 18000 {or
CTS, for a total of $2.157.996; and

e Northwest High School (Grades 10-12) - $3,639.360 for Fumiture and Equipment and
S848.000 for CTS, for a wial of 54,487,560,

It is anticipated that payment will be made in two installments, with a portion being provided in
2011/2012 and the balance in 20122013, 1 trust this will enable you to begin planning for the
ordering of vour furniture and equipment for Coventry Hills, Taradale, Panorama and Tuscany
Middle Schools and North West High School,



Ms, Pat Cochrane
Page Two

If vou have any questions in regard to this approval, please comact Patricia Cox. Director,
Strategic Planning, at 780-415-5854 (1oll-free by first dialing 310-0000) or by e-mail at

Sincerely,

f

Keray Henke
Deputy Minister
Alberta Education

cc:  Naomi Johnson
Superintendent, Calgary Board of Education

Barry Day
Deputy Minister, Inlrastructure
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PUBLIC AGENDA
APRIL 5, 2011
To: BOARD OF TRUSTEES
From: J.R. Barkway, Assistant Corporate Secretary
Re: EducationMatters Quarterly Financial Report
Purpose: Information
Governance Policy Reference: GP-13: Board of Trustees’ Linkages

I RECOMMENDATION

THAT the financial report for EducationMatters be received for information and for
the record, in the form as submitted.

II. ISSUE

The Board of Trustees has requested quarterly reporting from EducationMatters. The attached
report is provided in response to this request.

Respectfully submitted,

J.R. Barkway
Asst. Corporate Secretary
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S
Sq{: Collins Barrow

Chartered Accounlants & Consullants

Colling Barrow Calgary LLP
1400 First Alberta Place

777 - 8th Avenue SW.
Calgary, Alberla, Canada
T2P 3RS

T. 403.298.1500
F. 403.298.5814

email: calgary@colinsbarrow.com

Independent Auditors’' Report

To the Board of Governors
EducationMatters, Calgary's Public Education Trust

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of EducationMatters, Calgary's
Public Education Trust, which comprise the financial position as at December 31, 2010,
and the statements of operations and changes in fund balances and cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

-y an Adepragast mesher o
BAKER TILLY
INTERMNATIONAL
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our gualified audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In common with many not-for-profit organizations, the Trust derives revenue from
donations, the completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification.
Accordingly, our verification of these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the
records of the Trust and we were not able to determine whether any adjustments might

be necessary to revenue, excess of revenue over expenditures, assets and fund
balances.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the basis for qualified
opinion paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of EducationMatters, Calgary's Public Education Trust as at December
31, 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Calgary, Alberta
March 17, 2011
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EducationMatters, Calgary's Public Education Trust

Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2010

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (notes 3 and 6)
Accounts receivable
Goods and Services Tax recoverable
Prepaid expenses

Investments (notes 4 and 6)

Property and equipment (note 5)

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred operating contributions (note 7)

Funds

Operating funds (including investment in capital
assets)

Flow-through funds

Endowment funds (note 6)

Commitments (note 8)

On behalf of the Board,

f-*xw/?"?“"w , Governor

pr~———"""Governor

7 e ¥

-4-

2010

$ 1,836,289
88

3,851

700

1,840,628
1,497,343

B 5L

$ 3248572

) 14,745
500,000

...D14,745

589,717
573,886
1,670,024
2,833,627
$ 3,348.37
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2009

$ 1,676,140
176
4,341

1,680,657
1,368,107
W -
% S080078

$ 59,937
—500.000

...559,937

581,831
533,360
1,390,947
.2.506.138
+ 108,875




EducationMatters, Calgary's Public Education Trust
Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2010

2010
Flow-
Operating Through Endowment
Funds Funds Funds Total 2009
Revenue
Contributions (note 7) $ 842,722 § 555008 § 214,283 § 1,612013 § 1483272
Gains on investments 1,124 6,272 80,079 87 475 184,913
Interest, dividends and fee revenue 20,486 - 55 794 76,280 24218
864,332 561.280 350,156 1775768 1,692,403
Expenditures
Grants (note 7) - 519,438 50,593 570,031 527,447
Salaries and benefits (note 10) 520,348 - - 520,348 545,184
Communications 136,558 - - 136,558 83,888
Fund expenses - 1,316 20,486 21,802 33,259
Fund development {note 10) 37,284 - - 37,284 18,184
Office 43,5625 - - 43,525 51,791
Professional fees 38,752 - - 38,752 40,789
Special events (note 10) 38,465 - - 38,465 83,463
Computer applications & support 26,901 - - 26,901 27,987
Rent 7,703 - - 7,703 7,055
Amortization 6,910 - - 6.910 6672
856,446 520,754 71,079 1.448279 1425719
Excess of revenue over expenditures 7,886 40,526 279,077 327,489 266,684
Fund balance, beginning of year 581.831 533,360 1,390,947 2,506,138 2,239,454
Fund balance, end of year $ 589,717 $ 573886 $ 1670024 $ 2833627 $ 2506138
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EducationMatters, Calgary's Public Education Trust

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2010

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities
Excess of revenue over expenditures
Add (deduct) items not affecting cash
Amortization
Change in deferred operating contributions
Unrealized gain on investments

Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable and Goods and Services Tax
recoverable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Investing activities
Purchase of equipment
Proceeds from (purchase) sale of investments, net

Cash inflow
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of:
Cash
Term deposits

2010

$ 327,489
6,910

(81,203)
253,196

————

878
(700)
(45,192)

(45.014)
208,182

§4;3,033)
(48.033)
160,149
1.676.140

—

$ 1,836,289

3 49,175
1,787 114

——l

$ 1,836,289

2009

$ 266,684

9-18

6,672
(2,500)
{117.945)

152 911

416

5.460

R 17

158,787

(14,300)
17.978

3.678
162,465
1.513.675
$ 1,676,140

$ 262,656
1,413.484

$ 1,676,140



EducationMatters, Calgary's Public Education Trust
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010

(3

Nature of Trust

EducationMatters, Calgary's Public Education Trust, {the "Trust") was formed by way of trust
indenture on January 20, 2003. The Trust is a registered charity and a public trust under the
Income Tax Act (Canada) and, accordingly, is exempt from income taxes and can issue
donation receipts for income tax purposes. The Trust's mandate is to promote citizen
engagement with and inspire passion for public education and to mobilize resources for
programs that enhance public education.

The Board of Trustees of The Calgary Board of Education (the CBE Board) appoints all
Trust governors. At least two, but not more than 50%, of the Trust governors must be
members of the CBE Board.

Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Revenue

The Trust receives contributions in the form of donations to specified funds, operating
grants and event funding.

The Trust recognizes contributions when the amounts can be reasonably estimated
and collection is assured.

The Trust follows the deferral method of accounting for restricted contributions related
to general operations of the Trust. These contributions are recognized as revenue in
the operating fund in the period in which the related expenses are incurred.

The Trust recognizes interest and fee revenue when the amounts are earned.
Trust funds

The Trust holds operating, flow-through and endowment funds. The Trust follows the
deferral accounting method for the operating fund and the restricted fund accounting
method for the flow-through and endowment funds.

The Trust restricts endowment fund grants in any fiscal period to a maximum of 4.5%
of the market value of the endowment at the end of the prior fiscal year.

Operating funds

Operating fund contributions received that relate to a subsequent period are shown as
deferred operating contributions on the statement of financial position.

Fiow-through funds

Flow-through funds are spent during the year in which they are received or the year
following to support a wide range of programs and projects.
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EducationMatters, Calgary's Public Education Trust
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(@

Endowment Funds

Endowment funds are created by donors to provide long-term support for discretionary
spending, general fields of interest or designated specific programs or projects.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and temporary investments with a
maturity date of three months or less.

Investments

Investments include pooled investment funds that consist of mutual funds and are
measured at fair value.

Property and equipment

The Trust capitalizes administrative assets, consisting of computer eguipment and
furniture and fixtures, at cost and amortizes them over their estimated useful lives of
five years on a straight-line basis.

Measurement uncertainty

The valuation of property and equipment is based on management's best estimates of
the future recoverability of these assets and the determination of costs subject to
classification as property and equipment. The amounts recorded for amortization of
the property and equipment are based on management's best estimates of the
remaining useful lives and period of future benefit of the reiated assets.

The valuation of accrued liabilities is based on management's best estimates of
expenses incurred during the year that will be payable in future periods.

By their nature, these estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty and the effect
on the financial statements of changes in such estimates in future periods could be
significant.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. There are no significant differences between
the carrying values of these amounts and their estimated market values due to the
short-term nature of these instruments. It is management's opinion that the Trust is not
exposed to significant interest or credit risk arising from these financial instruments.
Financial instruments also include investments, which are carried at their fair value.
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EducationMatters, Calgary's Public Education Trust
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010

(h)

(i)

Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants ("CICA") Section 3861 ‘Financial
Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation” requires the Trust to make the following
classifications:

» Cash and cash equivalents and investments are classified as assets "held-for-
trading” and are measured at fair value. Gains and losses resulting from periodic
revaluation are recorded in excess of revenue over expenditures.

¢ Accounts receivable are classified as "loans and receivables" and are recorded at
cost, which approximates fair value.

= Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as "other financial liabilities"
and are recorded at cost, which approximates fair value.

Expenditures

Administrative expenses are charged to endowment funds in accordance with donor
agreements. Interest income earned on flow-through funds is allocated to the
operating fund in lieu of an administration fee. Expenses incurred for a specific fund
are charged to that fund.

Future accounting pronouncements

As of January 1, 2011, the Trust will be required to adopt changes to Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants ("CICA"™ Handbook Section 1582 - "Business
Combinations”, which will replace Section 1581 - "Business Combinations”, and which
harmonize the Canadian standards related to business combinations with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). This new standard establishes revised
standards on the recognition and measurement of identifiable assets acquired, the
liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, as well as
recognition and measurement guidance for goodwill acquired in the business
combination or the gain from a bargain purchase option. The new standard also
provides guidance on identifying the acquirer and identifying the acquisition date
(being the date at which control is acquired), and on presentation and disclosure to
enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of
the business combination.

As of January 1, 2011, the Trust will be required to adopt changes to CICA Handbook
Section 1601 - "Consolidated Financial Statements” and Section 1602 - “Non-
Controlling Interests” which, together, replace Section 1600 - “Consolidated Financial
Statements”. These sections establish revised standards for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and specifically discuss the consolidation accounting
following a business combination involving the purchase of an equity interest of one
company by another. These sections also provide guidance in situations involving a
combination or consolidation other than through purchase of an equity interest or
involving unincorporated businesses.
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The Accounting Standards Board ("AcSB") has issued a new accounting framework for
not-for-profit organizations. Not-for-profit organizations must choose to apply for this
new framework or IFRS to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2012. Early
adoption is permitted. The standards in this new framework did not substantially
change from the existing CICA Handbook Section 4400 and the Trust believes the
implementation of the new framework will not have a significant impact on the financial

statements.

3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include shori-term investments of $1,787,114 (2008 -
$1,413,484) consisting entirely of investments in Canadian treasury bills with maturity dates
of 90 days or less. Short-term investments yield an average interest rate of 0.37% (2009 -

0.55%).

4. Investments

Investments include pooled investment funds that have a market-based unit value that is
used to allocate income to participants and to value contributions and withdrawals.
Investments comprise $1,497,343 (2009 - $1,368,107) in mutual funds measured at fair
value. The Trust's policy is to liquidate gifted shares on the same day as they are received.

There were no shares held at December 31, 2010.

5. Property and equipment

Net Book Value

Accumulated
Cost Amortization 2010 2009
Computer equipment $ 14300 § 5482 % 8818 § 11,679
Furniture and fixtures 20,250 18.667 1.583 5632
$ 34550 § 241485 § 10,401

6. Endowment Funds

Endowment funds are invested to provide long-term support, and are comprised of the

following:

2010
Cash and cash equivalents $ 172,681
Investments 1.497.343

$ 1,670,024

-10-
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EducationMatters, Calgary's Public Education Trust
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010

10.

Transactions with the Calgary Board of Education

The Trust is economically dependent on contributions from The Calgary Board of Education
("CBE") to cover general and administrative expenditures. During the year, the CBE
contributed $750,000 (2009 - $750,000) to the Trust, $500,000 of which was deferred to
2011, in accordance with spending of the funds over a one-year period and this amount is
included in deferred operating contributions on the statement of financial position. The Trust
rented office space and purchased services costing $7,703 (2009 - $7.056) and $8,266
(2009 - $11,904), respectively, from the CBE. These transactions were recorded at the
amounts established and agreed to by the parties.

Grants awarded to CBE schools by the Trust are distributed to recipients by way of the CBE.
In 2010, this amount was $421,062 (2009 - $322,681), of which $NIL (2009 - $29,588) is
included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

Commitments

The Trust's office lease with the CBE was renewed on August 9, 2010 for an additional one-
year term to August 31, 2011 and requires annual rental payments of $7,860.

Capital disclosures

In managing capital, the Trust focuses on liquid resources available for operations. The
Trust's objective is to have sufficient liquid resources to continue operating despite adverse
financial events and to provide it with the flexibility to take advantage of opportunities that will
advance its purposes. The need for sufficient liquid resources is considered in the
preparation of an annual budget and in the monitoring of cash flows and actual operating
results compared to the budget. As at December 31, 2010, the Trust has met its objective of
having sufficient liquid resources to meet its current obligations. The Trust is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements.

Additional information on Fund Development

{a) Expenses incurred to solicit contributions.

2010 2009
Fundraising event $ 38,424 $ 66,691
Fund Development expenses 37,284 18,184
Fund Development salaries and benefits 88.813 154,270
5__174521  §_ 239,145

(b) Gross contributions received in 2010 were $769,291 (2009 - $638,355).

11-
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©

(d)

Summary of dispositions of contributions.

2010 2009
Grants $ 439423 $ 379,443
Scholarships 130.608 148,004
$ 570,031 $ 527,447

There was one disposition of contributions greater than 10% of the gross contributions
received in 2010 and 2009 to support the CBE Healthy Learning system-wide initiative
and to further support each CBE school's personalized action plan and healthy
learning goals which include healthy eating, active living and developing positive social
environments ($138,550 granted in 2010; $126,950 in 2009).

Allocation of total expenditures:

Total expenditures after allocation of salaries and benefits to the cost centres consist
of the foliowing:

2010 2009

Communications expenses $ 213,760 $ 178,040
Fund development expenses, excluding

events 136,097 172,454
Events 38,465 83,463
Grants 570,031 527,447
Program expenses 483,016 457 643
Amortization expense 6,910 6.672

$ 1,448,279 $ 1,425719

Salary and benefit costs are incurred to operate the Trust and its programs in a cost-
effective manner while maximizing all opportunities to further the Trust's mission. The
Trust allocates salary and benefits based on the actual time spent in each cost centre
by each staff person.

11.  Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's
presentation.

-12-
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PUBLIC AGENDA
April 5, 2011
To: Board of Trustees
From: Trustee Jov Bowen-Eyre

Trustee Sheila Tavlor
Re: Monitoring of Governance Process Policies 1. 2 and 5
Purpose: Annual Monitoring

L. RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Board of Trustees approves the Governance Process Policy Monitoring
reports for Governance Process Policies 1, 2 and 3 in the form as submitted as
Attachment 1 to the report dated April 5, 2011,

1L ISSUE:

The Board of Trustees is required to annually moenitor each of its policies, as scheduled in GP-
4E: Annual Agenda Planmng.

Il. BACKGROUND

The Board of Trustees is committed 1o self-cvaluation through the momtoring of its governance
process policies, the policies with which the Board instructs itself and subparts of itsclf, such as
offices and commitiees. about its own job. In governance process policies, the Board descnbes
standards of group and individual behaviour to which it agrees 10 hold itsell,

The Board monitored the following policies during the month of March:

o  Governance Process Policy 10 Global Governing Process
e CGovernance Process Policy 20 Govertung Stvle
e (overnance Process Policy 5 Board of Trustees” Role Descniption

Respecttully submitted,

Bowen-Eyre. Trustee
Chair, Board Evaluation Committee

Attachment | GFP 1. 2 and & Monitoring Reports
Attachment [1: Board Evaluation Commitiee — Meeting Minutes March 3, March 16, and
March 22, 2011
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
_ﬁ Board of Trustees’ Policy - Governance Process
GP-1: Global Governing Process
Monitoring Method: Self-Assessment
Monitoring Frequency: Annual
Monitoring Time Period: up to February 28, 2011

Far this policy, instead of reviewing for compliance or non-compliance, the questions for fruslees fo
respond o ara!

1. Have we clearly articulated our foundational statements? Yes -7 Mo

Trustee comments: Unanimous

2. Do the statements still stand? Yes -7 Mo

Trustea comments: Linanimous

| The Board of Trustees is a demaocratically elected body that holds in trust the education

| of students on behalf of the citizens of Calgary and provides leadership for the Calgary |
Board of Education through defining the mission. vision, values and expectations of the
organization on behalf of its community

|
Effective governance requires that appropriate Ends are determined for the Caigary |

| Board of Education, that those Ends are achieved, and that unacceptable actions and |
gituations are avoided

The Board of Trustees. on behalf of the citizens, s accountable for acting in a manner |
that iz consistent with law and with the Board's own policies.

| Our Miss'i'l;n

Educating tomarrow's citizens today.
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Qur Vision

The Calgary Board of Education is the dynamic learning community of choice.
|

| We provide quality learring opponunities and options. Our learners take ownership by
| discovering and developing their potential, passions and gifts. They take their place as
lifelong learners and make a significant contribution within a complex, changing worid.

i Owur Values

| Students come first.

We believe that everyone can leamn. Each student is unique and worthwhile. We
| acknowledge. recognize and celebrate the diversity of our learners. Buccess for each
and every student is the goal of our work,

| Learning is our central purpose.

|

! We belisve that learning empowers students to achieve their potential. Attention to

| continuous improvement, high expectations, innavation and relationships will enable all
| students to reach their potential. Student learming is at the hean of everyone’s work at

| the Calgary Board of Education.

| Public education serves the common good.

| We baliave public education iz essential for a vibrant democracy. The principles of

| democracy drive our accountability to the public and the public's participation in our

| work. Our school system is owned by and accountable to Calgarians and, therefore, the

| Calgary Board of Education is accountable to Calgary taxpayers for using resources
wisely to meet students’ learming needs

Board Comments:



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

GP- 2: Governing Style

Monitoring Method: Self-Assessment
Monitoring Frequency: Annual

Board of Trustees' Policy - Governance Process

Maonitoring Time Period: up to February 28, 2011

| Governance Process Policy 2 — Governing Style Compliance Non
: Compliance
The Board of Trustees wvalues the imporance of strategic
leadership, policy governance and accountability for governance
performance. The Board of Trustees shall direct, control, and
| inspire the district through the careful establishment of writien
policies.
The Board of Trustees shall govern with an emphasis on strategic
leadership. This means a focus on:
I -
F1. aligning decisions with migsion, vision. values and Ends:
=
2. the future more than the past; -
5 2 I
| 3 proactivity rather than reactivity:
1 8
4 collective rather than individual decisions; I
& 1
| 5, encouraging diversity in viewpoints,
5 2
6 clear understanding of Board of Trustees and Chief |
L Superintendent roles; 4 e
(<& monitoring, reporting and publicly discussing the Calgarg,' i
| Board of Education’s pedformance. S T
The Board of Trustees major policy focus shall be on the |
| intended long-term benefits for students, not on the administrative
| or programmatic means of attaining those benefits.  Individual ‘
trustees shall not:
1. assume authorty for resohwng operational problems or
complaints; G 1
2 give personal direction to any part of the operational
organization 2 5
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Governance Process Policy 2 - Governing Style
FPage Two

Compliance

Non
Compliance

The Board of Trustees shall hold itseif accountabie for the quality
of its governance performance in Board meetings. This self-
discipline shall apply to altendance, preparation for meetings,
adherence o the principles of the Board of Trustees' governing
model, respect for roles, and ensuring the long-term capacity for
axcellent governance in the district. Te ensure that the Board of
Trustees' Board mestings are conducted with maximum
effectiveness and efficiency, trustees shall:

1, come to meetings adeguately prepared

& speak only when recognized,

3. not interrupt each other,

4 not engage in side conversations;

=

5 support the Chair's efforts to facilitate an ardery meeting

The Board of Trustees shall review its meeting process and
performance through a debriefing process.

Continuous Board of Trustees development shall  include .
orientation of potenbial candidates for new members of the Board
of Trustees about the Board of Trustees' governance process.

The Board of Trustees shall allow no officer, individual, or |
commitiee of the Board of Trustees to hinder its performance.

Board Comments;

. Board would like to focus more on Ends. less on monitoring EL's

. Board does not have work plan or strategic priorities completed

. Board will make an effort to return from Board meeting recess on ime
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board of Trustees' Policy - Governance Process
GP-5: Board of Trustees' Role Description

Monitoring Method: Self-Assessment
Monitoring Frequency: Annual

Governance Process 5 Board of Trustees” Role Description

The role of the Board of Trustees is o represent, lead and [ iE
inspire the school district by determining and expecting [
appropriate and excellent organizational performance. The :t
Board of Trustees will act in accordance with the relevant M.,
Province of Alberta statutes and regulations. and the Board |
of Trusteas’ own policies and procedures, =3

1. The mole of the EBoard of Trustees is to govem,
advocate and represent. As such. its primary work
will be to:

{a) provide the link between the Calgary Board of
Education and citizens of Calgary; 7

{b) partner with the Ministers of Education and
Infrastructure so that the Ministers are informed 7
about perspectives relevant to public education in
Calgary-

(c} advocate on behalf of students, the school system |
and citizens of Calgary with other governments,
agencies and organizations to ensure a strong and
appropnate legislative environment for public
education in Calgary,

-1
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Governance Process 5 Board of Trustees' Role Dascription

Pags Two

Compliance

Mon

Compliance

()

produce, review and monitor written govermnance
policies which, at the broadest levels, address:

(i Ends: Organizational products, impacts.
benefitz, cutcomes, recipients, and  their
relative warth {what good, for which people. at
what cost),

(i) Executive Limitations: Limitations  on
executive authority, which establish  the
prudence and ethics boundaries within which
all executive activity and decisions must take
place:

(i} Governance Process: How the Board of
Trustess concewes, executes and monitors its
N perfarmance,

{iv] Board-Chief Superintendent Linkage: Chief
Superintendent’s role, authornty, responsibility
and accountability, and how authority and
responsibility are delegated and the process
of monitaring those delegations;

-l

(e}

require that the Ends are the focus of
organizational performance;

{f)

define three-yearsysiam prionties to drive district
performance in all four policy areas, reviewing or
revising those priarities annually, to refiect current
distnict needs and to drive the following year's
resource allocations. As such, it shall be the job of
the Board of Trustees to

(1) asprosso-Teec Year Eauestisn-Sanloorous
Annual Education Results Repor (3 wrs)
and Thr=e Year Educstion Plan:

il approve an annual operating and

capital budgst for the organization;
prior to submission to the relevant Minister(z);

i’ 2 vear school canital plan

——

f
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Governance Process 5. Board of Trustees’ Role Description LCompliance Mo
Page Threa o sd el S Compllance

| {g) hire the Chief Supernntendent and evaluate the
| Chief Superintendent's performance through
monitoring Ends and Executive Limitations 7
policies,

(h) give consideration to authorizing the Chef
Superintendent to do any act or thing or exercise
; any power that the board may or is required to do 7
ar exercise, subject to the School Act, and formally
authorize, by resolution, those powsrs that the
Board wishes to delegate. Such resolution shall be
recorded in the Governance Policy regarding
Delegation to the Chief Superintendent,

2. The Board of Trustees also recognizes and holds the |
authority and responsibility in areas including but not |
limited to the following and will act to!

(a) appoint an auditcor and examine the auditors
report;

-l

it) approve the number, and locations of schools to be |
established, and maintained, in a manner that is |
open to community input and participation as the
Board of Trustees considers appropriate, while
demonsirating responsible stewardship of all
FESOUrces;

=1

ic) mame or rename the organization. schools,
portions of schools, rooms within a school, scheol | 7 '
grounds, other Calgary Board of Education
facilities or educational programs;

(d) authorze a plehbiscite to  consider taxatinnl '

requisitions from a municipality: - nia
{e) approve the bargaining mandate for all coliective | _ i3
agreements: I 7
I ifi  accept the resignations of all teaching staff: [ =
I -
(a)  terminate the sarvices of a teacher, | o R R
| ¥
() hold hearings for the purpose of appeals to |
teacher transfers: [ 7
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Governance Process 5 Board of Trustees’ Role Description | - Compliance: Mon
Page Four ALbe gy Compliance
{ii approve all locally developediauthorized courses |

for use in the CBE;

-3

(1)

make by-laws pursuant 1o legislation,

-4

(k)

make rules governing its internal procedure and
its meetings,

()

approve the ranking criternia that will determine the
priorities for construction of new Kindsrgaren to
Grade 9 schools in the Schoof Capital Plan; and

(m}

authorize the successful tender for school
buildings pricr to submiszion to the appropriate
Minizter for approval.

The Board of Trustees shall estabiish and be
accountable for an annual budget for its own
governance functions, within the constraints of the
administrative envelope and public acceptability

o ——— e

Board Comments:

2 (d)

2 im)

Board has not exercisad this authority

In regard to the ASAP schools. provincial government is now responsible for tendering of
confracts
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Board Evaluation Committee — Meeting Minutes

Date of Meeting: March 3, 2011

Time: 10:00-12:00 pm

Location: Trustees’ Lounge

In Attendance: Trustees - Cochrane, Ferguson, Lane, Bazinet, King, Bowen-Eyre, Taylor

1. Items Discussed
Trustees discussed compliance related to GP-1 and GP-2 for each policy subsection
2. Actions Required

In future, the template for the report will include a section at the top for “Monitoring Time Period”

See attached report for compliance by section and comments.
Note: Comments for GP-1:
Section 2: Board would like to focus more on ends and less on executive limitations

Section 3: Board does not have work plan or strategic priorities completed
Section 4: Board will make an effort to return from Board Meeting recess on time in future

The next committee meeting to review GP-5 is scheduled for March 16™ at 11:00 am in Trustees’ Lounge



Board Evaluation Committee — Meeting Minutes

Date of Meeting: March 16, 2011

Time: 11:00-11:30 am

Location: Trustees’ Lounge

In Attendance: Trustees - Cochrane, Ferguson, Lane, Bazinet, King, Bowen-Eyre, Taylor

1. Items Discussed
Trustees discussed compliance related to GP-5 up to GP-5 1 (e)
2. Actions Required

See attached report for compliance by section and comments

The next committee meeting to continue monitoring GP-5 is March 22 at 1:30 pm



Board Evaluation Committee — Meeting Minutes

Date of Meeting: March 22, 2011

Time: 1:30-2:30 pm

Location: Trustees’ Lounge

In Attendance: Trustees - Cochrane, Ferguson, Lane, Bazinet, King, Bowen-Eyre, Taylor

3. Items Discussed

Trustees discussed compliance related to GP-5 1 (f) up to subsection 3

4. Actions Required

See attached report for compliance by section and comments

The following policy changes were requested:

1 (f) define system priorities to drive district performance, reviewing or revising those priorities
annually, to reflect current district needs and to drive the following year’s resource allocations. As
such, it shall be the job of the Board of Trustees to:

0] Approve the Annual Education Results Report and Three Year Education Plan

(i) Three Year School Capital Plan

Comments:

2 (d) Board has not exercised this authority

2 (m) With regards to the ASAP schools, provincial government is now responsible for tendering of
contracts

The next committee meeting to begin monitoring GP 3,4,8,9 and 12 will be held April 28 at 1:00 pm



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PUBLIC AGENDA
April 5, 2011

To: BOARD OF TRUSTEES

From: Trustee Sheila Taylor

Re: Liaison Report — Calgary Association of Parents & School Councils
(CAPSC)

Purpose: Information

Governance Policy Reference: GP-13: Board of Trustees’ Linkages

I. RECOMMENDATION

THAT the attachments with respect to the Calgary Association of Parents and
School Councils (CAPSC) be received for information and be considered as the
liaison report for that organization.

1L ISSUE

The attached is a report provided by the Calgary Association of Parents and School Councils. As
the Board of Trustees’ representative for CAPSC, 1 am providing this report for your
information.

Respectfully submitted,

Trustee Sheila Taylor
Liaison Representative
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Calgary Association of Parents and School Councils
Audited Statement of Revenue and Expenses
To June 30, 2010 and July 2009 Comparison

July 109 July 108
to tfo
June 30 10 June 3009
REVENUE
CBE Grant S 7,800.00 S 7,800.00
Interest Revenue’ 22.40 51.68
Member Fees’ 2, 430.00 2,000.00
Total Revenue $10,252.40 $ 9,851.68
EXPENSES
Bank Charges $ 5940 S 14552
Communications Contract® 7,195.00 7,615.00
Depreciation 0 38.86
Education Forum* 146.01 0
GST 226.95 53.68
Honoraria 0 300.00
Insurance’ 930.00 1,030.00
Mailbox 191.00 191.00
Office Supplies 162.00 79.64
Promotional 0 294.00
Telephone 0 333.31
Trustee Forums 0 0
Website/e-newsletter® 1,387.00 1,249.42
Total Expenses $10,297.36 $11,330.43
REVENUE-EXPENSES -$44.96 -$1,478.75
Notes:

Deficit will be covered by CAPSC accumulated surplus

1 Interest from GIC Term Deposit

2 Membership Fees: (60 member schools x $40) + (2 individual members x $15) = $2,430

3 Communications Contract (359.75 hrs x $20/hr = §7,195)+GST

4 Education Forum with Hon. Dave Hancock, January 27, 2010, Facility Rental Fee

5 Insurance is for General Liability (52M) required by CBE for meeting space in their buildings
6 Web Hosting and E-Newsletter deployment by SDMG
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Calgary Association of Parents and School Councils
Audited Balance Sheet
To June 30, 2010 and 2009 Comparison

June 30 2010 June 30 2009

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash S 87772 S 420.63

Term Deposit 8,074.08 8,051.68

Accounts Receivable 0 737.09

Total Current Assets S 8,951.80 $9,209.40
FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT

Computer Equipment S 4.793.74 S 4,793.74

Office Furniture & Equipment 1,054.95 1,054.95

Total S 5,848.69 S 5,848.69

Less Depreciation Allowance 5,848.69 5,848.69

Net Furniture and Equipment 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,951.80 $ 9,209.40
LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0 0

GST Payable(Receivable) (5 226.95) (S 159.06)

Total Liabilities ($ 226.95) ($ 159.06)
DEFERRED REVENUE

Jacket Racket Fund 0 S 144.75

Prior Year End Operations Surplus(Deficit) $9,223.71 $10,702.46

Current Year Surplus(Deficit) (S 44.96) (S 1,478.75)

Current Year End Operations Surplus(Deficit)  $9,178.75 S 9,223.71

Total Surplus $9,178.75 $ 9,368.46
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS $ 8,951.80 $ 9,209.40

.
We haye audited these financial statem on behalf of thg mgmbership —
e s
"7‘2,;/“_) /"/(f %—fﬂ-—’d/ Director Director
~ Dated T—Qb 22 2o\
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PUBLIC AGENDA
April 5, 2011

To: BOARD OF TRUSTEES
From: Trustee Lynn Ferguson
Re: Liaison Report — Alberta School Boards Association (ASBA)
Purpose: Information
Governance Policy Reference: GP-13: Board of Trustees’ Linkages
1. RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Alberta School Boards Association (ASBA) liaison report containing the
ASBA Board of Directors’ Meeting Highlights dated March 10-11, 2011 be received
for information.

II. ISSUE

The attached is a report provided by the Alberta School Boards Association (ASBA) with respect
to their work. As the Board of Trustees’ representative on the ASBA Board of Directors, I am
providing this report for your information.

Respectfully submitted,

Trustee Lynn Ferguson

Liaison Representative
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— =
AS.BA - '
Highlights

March 10-11, 20117

ASBA Board of Directors Meeting

Board Highlights are circulated to the ASBA Board of Directors and ASBA staff after each
meeting. Directors are asked to share Board Highlights with their respective constituencies.
See the ASBA website www.asba.ab.ca for draft and official minutes. For more information
contact Marian Johnson at 1.780.451.7101.

Budget proposes 1 per cent increase in membership fees

Board approves draft 2011-12 budget for presentation to members
The ASBA Board of Directors approved the following measures to establish a draft
$5,684,467million budget for the 2011-12 year. Under the proposed budget:
- Membership fees will rise by one per cent to generate an extra $28,634
Fee for service rates will increase:
o Legal services from $225 to $250
o Labour services from $176 to $200
o Educaton services from $200 to $210
- The staff’s annual conference of choice is suspended again this year
- The association will not conduct a telephone survey of school boards;
it will explore other options for gathering member input
- Fewer board of directors meetings will be held. Next year,
the board will meet seven times instead of 10.
- The annual invitatonal Leadership Retreat will be
reworked with a view to making it a revenue-generating event.
- Based on a review of comparable organizations and given the cutrent fiscal climate, the per
diems and honoraria for trustees doing ASBA work will be held to 2010-11 levels.

"The board of directors is proposing a deficit budget for the coming year and proposes to draw
$30.455 from the assoctation’s building reserve (created when the ASBA sold its building some years
ago) to balance the 2011-12 budget.

Dates for budget presentation to Zones

Next steps will see directors Johnette Lemke (Zone 2/3) and Keith Warren (Zone 4) present the
proposed budget in Zones. School boards will consider and vote on the budget at the Spring General
Meeting in Red Deer.

Zone 1 March 24 Peace River

Zone 2/3 April 29 Edmonton

Zone 4 April 18 Rocky Mountain House
Zone 5 May 20 Airdrie

Zone 6 May 11 Taber

For more information:
The draft budget will be posted on the ASBA website shortly.
Contact Heather Rogers, Director Finance and Administration at hrogers@asba.ab.ca.
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Board of directors responds to Wild Rose Public Schools request
A school board or Zone may propose Directives for Action for consideration by the ASBA Board of
Directors. Wild Rose Public Schools asked the ASBA Board to adopt the following Directive for
Action:
Be it resolved that in order to support an integrated approach to mental health promotion
and prevention for all school children of Alberta, the government of Alberta should ensure
continued funding for the Mental Health Capacity Building projects which have been
initiated throughout the province.

The Policy Development Action Committee (Vice-president Cheryl Smith, Lisa Brower Zone 2/3
Director, Becky Kallal, Edmonton Catholic Schools and Anne-Marie Boucher Zone 5 Director)
reviewed this request and recommended the following response which the ASBA Board of Directors
approved:
As the provincial budget did include continued funding for this initiative, the ASBA will
send a letter to the minister of health and wellness expressing appreciation for the additional
funding and reiterating the importance of continued support for an integrated approach to
mental health promotion and prevention or all school children in Alberta.

Board of directors adopts 2011-14 Strategic Plan
The ASBA’s new strategic plan identifies four priorities specifically:
The ASBA will provide leadership and suppott to school boards:
to provide successful lea.rnlng opportunities for all students
with emphasis on meeting the needs of the whole child
- to enable school boards to understand and implement effective
governance that is informed by their local public’s views and values
- to advocate on behalf of school boards and to support school boards’ advocacy efforts
- to help school boards respond to the transformation of public education in Alberta
The board identified 15 key results to support these priorities and several strategies.
The 2011-14 strategic plan will be posted on the ASBA website shortly.

Board of directors appoints auditor

Collins Barrow LLP has been re-appointed as the auditors for the ASBA for the year ending August
31, 2011

-2
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

April 5, 2011
To: BOARD OF TRUSTEES
From: Trustee Bowen-Evre
Re: Board of Trustees” Governance Commities
Purpose: Information

Governance Policy Referenee: GP-11E Board of Trustees” Commitiees

L. RECOMMENDATION

That the Board of Trustees receives this report for information and for the record,

I BACKGROUND
Attached please find the minutes of the March 16, 2011 meeting of the Board of Trustees’

Governance Committee. | would be pleased 1o address any questions that may arise from these
minules,

Respectfully submutted,

Trustee Joy Bowen-Eyre,
Chair, Board of Trustees” Governance Committes
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CALGARY BoAarD OF EDUCATION
GOVERNMANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

MMHUTES OF THE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, MaRCH 16, 2011

AT 9:45 am., TRUSTEES LownNGE, EDUCATION CENTRE

Present:

Trustee Carol Bazmet Trustee Jov Bowen-Eyre
Trustee Pat Cochrane Trustee Lynn Ferguson
Trustee Pamela Kang Trustee George Lane

Trustee Sheila Taylor

th

Review of Agenda

The agenda was reviewed and approved as wrillen.
Review of Commitie: Terms of Reference

The terms of reference were reviewed.
Appointment of Chair

Action: The Committee recommends that Trustee Bowen-Evre be named Chair, Trusiee
Cachrane be named Vice Chair and Trustee King be named Second Vice Chair.

Meeting Dates and Times

The Committee will meet each Wednesday from 9:30 - 11:30 am. The Committee will not
meet on March 30, 2001,

External Facilitation of Meetings

Action: . Wasvlyshvn will bring forward names of potential exiernal facilitators for the
Committee's review at the March 23, 2011 meeting.

Governance Research
Committes members agreed to continue to research governance models.
: Mare

Mext meetin 23, 2001 - 930 a.

Adjournment

The meeting adjourned at 11:00 a.m.
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

April 5, 2011

Board of Trustees

From: Naomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools

Chief Superintendent’s Update

Purpose: Information

| 8

II.

III.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees receive this report for information.

PURPOSE OF THE UPDATE REPORT

As the Board’s Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Superintendent is accountable
for meeting the expectations set by the Board of Trustees. These expectations are

stated in Ends and Executive Limitations (EL) policies.

Executive Limitation 3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of
Trustees requires the provision of timely information. prudent counsel and
support to the Board of Trustees. Along with other reports submitted to the Board
of Trustees, this update meets the requirement of EL-3 for the provision of

information in a timely, accurate and understandable manner.

TIMELY INFORMATION
OFFICE OF THE CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT
Volunteer Calearv Leaders of Tomorrow Award

Ends 3: Citizenship
EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees

Eighteen CBE students were nominated for the Volunteer Calgary Leaders of
Tomorrow Award. This award, sponsored by Encana. recognizes youth who
make a difference in Calgary through their volunteer activities. This year’s
overall winner of the senior high division, Jocelyn Stock, is an outstanding
student and citizen from Western Canada High School. Jocelyn will be

recognized for her achievements at the Leadership Awards Gala on April 13.
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Change to the Disposition of Property Regulation
EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees

Executive Limitation 3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of
Trustees 1. h) requires that the Chief Superintendent shall not fail to provide
information regarding “significant and relevant changes in provincial or federal
legislation, government policy or municipal bylaws, and the impact that those
changes will have on the Calgary Board of Education.” The following
information is shared with the Board of Trustees in the context of this EL-3
provision.

The Disposition of Property Regulation under the School Act has been amended to
support clarity and efficiency around the issue of surplus lands and buildings, and
to support changes to the Municipal Government Act.

The amended regulation requires that every school board put into place a process
to determine if a school building and/or reserve land is surplus to its needs. By
requiring school boards to establish a process, government can more easily
identify surplus lands that could be used for other public education needs. For
example, surplus lands could be transferred to another school board or the
Francophone Regional Authority, and surplus school buildings could be
transferred to another school board, the Francophone Regional Authority or
leased to a charter school. Under the Municipal Government Act, if no other
public education purpose is identified, surpluses could be used for alternative
municipal needs. The amendments do not affect a school board’s ability to sell
non-reserve lands.

The amendments provide school boards with a more streamlined process by
eliminating additional bureaucracy. Under the previous regulation. the Ministry
of Infrastructure had jurisdiction over the disposition of lands and buildings:
responsibility for the disposition of all school board property will now rest with
Education.

Amendments to the Disposition of Property Regulation are in effect and CBE
administration is formalizing our current process. The entire regulation can be
viewed at: htip://education.alberta.ca‘department/policv/legislation/regulations.aspx

FACILITIES AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Citizenship and Environmental Stewardship
Ends 3: Citizenship
EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees

The Ends 3 policy describes citizenship as active, informed involvement in local
and global communities. Facilities and Environmental Services have been
actively supporting students to develop citizenship attributes that contribute to
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creating a better local and global community. Student agency is a key component
of the many examples of student engagement with environmental learning
projects in CBE schools.

Students at Western Canada High School have been working to make the world a
better place through a variety of student-led environmental action projects.
Western Canada High School student leaders have organized monthly natural
world remediation and improvement projects at local parks and natural spaces to
beautify and help preserve spaces for local residents and other living things. This
same group of students is planning a bike to school day in May 2011 including a
pancake breakfast. The event is planned to engage the Western Canada High
School student population to use active modes of transportation as an alternative
to vehicles.

The school’s student leaders are also investigating the environmental impact of
electric hand dryers versus paper towel use in washrooms. After their
investigation. the students plan to take action based on their findings by
organizing a campaign to use the best options available to reduce their school’s
ecological footprint. Western students are also organizing an Earth Hour event
for the school, encouraging the school population to shut off their lights for an
hour on April 21, 2011. The leadership of Western Canada High School students
is a good example of citizenship development in CBE schools.

Hillhurst School’s Destination Conservation Club has made and displayed posters
throughout the school to educate and promote action regarding recycling. The
school is involved with a system-wide fiber recycling initiative focused on using
paper on both sides. Student club members have also researched, designed and
implemented a composting program. Student leaders collect compost, which is
eventually used as soil for the school’s naturalization project. Parents and
teachers are actively involved with both initiatives that are diverting significant
amounts of waste from the landfill. Students created skits and presentations to
celebrate the school’s success and shared their work at school assemblies and in
classrooms over the course of the school year.

Citizenship is a key component of environmental stewardship. Students are
actively supported in their environmental stewardship work through the
development of the EcoSites initiative and through providing capacity building
and information sharing with staff and students.

Calgary Board of Education students at Western Canada High School and
Hillhurst School are exemplars of how our students are making the world a better
place through active environmental stewardship initiatives.

L2
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LEARNING INNOVATION

Global Citizenship Showcased at Annual Provincial AIST Conference
Ends 3: Citizenship

EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees
EL-6: Instructional Program

One of the Calgary Board of Education’s presentations at the February AISI
Conference in Edmonton showcased the journey of two grade 3 classes at Sam
Livingston School as students actively engaged in inquiry-based learning. The
presentation told the story of how learning was personalized for the students
through authentic engagement in a 5 month inquiry into “How has the quality of
life in Haiti been impacted by the January 2010 earthquake?”

Within the content and framework of the grade 3 Social Studies curriculum,
students developed critical thinking skills through investigating pictures,
exploring powerful questions, researching children’s rights and investigating the
difference between partnerships and charity. Demonstrating active citizenship,
students brainstormed and acted upon how they themselves could support the
quality of life in Haiti. Empowered by the depth and meaning the inquiry process
brought to their learning. students built a personal understanding of how children
can be agents of change. In the words of one student, “Anyone who wants to can
make a difference. You're more powerful than you think.”

Career and Technology Strategy Updates

Ends 1: Mega End

Ends 2: Academic Success

Ends 4: Personal Development

EL-3:  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees
EL-6:  Instructional Program

e SMART Technical Training Certificate

The first group of students has begun their journey towards a SMART
Technical Training Certificate. The certificate begins with CTS courses at the
home high school and progresses to on-site training at SMART Technologies.
Students work with industry experts for an industry credential to install and
support Smartboards anywhere in the world. This new component of the
Career and Technology Strategy is the result of a partnership between the
Calgary Board of Education and SMART Technologies.

e APEGGA Partnership
CBE and the Association of Professional Engineers, Geologist and
Geophysicists of Alberta (APEGGA) have signed a 10 year agreement to
support and expand opportunities for students in engineering, science and
math. More information about this initiative will be shared as the work builds
out.

9-4



Responsible Citizenship in Safetv Education

Ends 3: Citizenship

EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees
EL-6: Instructional Program

At our city’s annual Safety Expo, a group of CBE students focused their attention
on graffiti. Students from Marlborough, Hawkwood and Belfast schools took on
the role of detectives to collect evidence and deduce answers to these three
questions: What is graffiti? What is the impact of graffiti? What can you do about
graffiti? Students demonstrated their inquiry skills and shared their findings.

This inquiry project is linked to “value others” one of the three pillars of Teaming
UP 4 Healthy Learners. the CBE’s comprehensive school health strategy. For
further information and “Think Challenges™ about safety outcomes in the health
curriculum, students and teachers access www.thinkresponsibiv.ca, developed in
partnership between the CBE and the City of Calgary.

Bevond Learning and Literacy

Ends 1: Mega End

Ends 2: Academic Success

EL-3:  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees
EL-6:  Instructional Program

The offering of site licenses to schools for Read & Write Gold and Dragon
Naturally Speaking. two of our speech to text programs, has both peaked interest
in the software and allowed schools to affordably purchase the software.

Teachers and school-based administrators were provided eight professional
development sessions to build their capacity on the mac and pc platforms.

Breakfast Clubs of Canada

Ends 1: Mega End

Ends 2: Academic Success

EL-3:  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees

The Calgary Board of Education has six new schools this vear and four schools
from last year that have been accepted into the Breakfast Clubs of Canada
sponsorship program. This sponsorship includes donations of equipment such as
fridges. freezers, dishwashers. toasters and dishes. Schools will also receive
dairy. bread and juice donations on a weekly basis. This sponsorship by
Breakfast Clubs of Canada is in addition to our Fuel for School program and
allowed us to expand our support of students.
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IV.

Student Assessment in the Context of the Ends

Ends 1: Mega End

Ends2: Academic Success

EL-3:  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees
EL-6: Instructional Program

Data from the first term report cards (Fall 2010) as well as feedback from teachers
and admnistrators has been compiled. This data is currently being used to plan
next supports and resources for schools to build understanding and refine
practices for assessing the Ends in student report cards.

Principals, assistant principals and school-based learning leaders worked
collaboratively with Curriculum Design & Assessment staff to analyze report card
comments from their schools. The process involved key adjustment-cycle
questions: What does the evidence show? How will we respond to successes?
How will we respond to areas of need?

As they worked through this process. administrators clarified their understanding
of the relationship between assessment, reporting practices and student learning,
and determined how the information gathered will inform the role of school
principal as the leader of assessment. The information will also frame the focus
of professional learning opportunities for teachers and support next steps for Ends
assessment and reporting.

ENDS STATEMENT FOCUS

The focus of this report is on Ends 3: Citizenship. The Board of Trustees has
stated that, “Each student will be a responsible citizen by being an informed and
involved member in his or her local, national and global communities.”

Calgary Board of Education schools have provided illustrative examples of how
personalized student learning that supports the Board of Trustees’ Ends is lived in
classrooms across the district.

AREA 1

Thomas B. Riley School has been hosting recognition assemblies each term that
are linked to when report cards go out to students. Initially. the assemblies were
designed as one way to intentionally build a greater sense of community among
the students attending the various programs at the school. This goal was indeed
achieved with the usual types of categories recognized at the assemblies. Over
time. however, something unique began to evolve: the assemblies became a
vehicle for the school-wide development of ways to give back to the community.
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A community need is usually identified by students in their classes. The
assemblies raise the awareness of all students about a particular need and
encourage all of the students to become involved in the initiative. In addition to
fund raising. opportunities arise that promote active positive citizenship among
our student body. It is quite evident when one attends one of these assemblies,
and then experiences the following days and weeks, that there is an enhanced
view of what it means to be a positive contributing citizen of Thomas B. Riley
School. Students’ awareness of the needs of others is heightened and they are
actively involved, demonstrating citizenship in meaningful productive ways—
locally, within our city and even internationally. It has brought the concept of
citizenship to life in concrete ways for our students. It has also become a part of
the essence of what they are learning in their various subjects. with real world
connections they can relate to and identify.

Positive citizenship at Thomas B. Riley School is part of the school’s culture that
we continue to work on each and every day with our students, staff and parents.

AREA II

North Haven School is a “Circle of Courage” school. As this philosophy focuses
on the four pillars of belonging, generosity, mastery and independence. it lends
nicely to helping our students understand what citizenship is and how it connects
to their world of learning. In particular, the pillar of generosity is closely linked
to the concepts of citizenship. Each of the students knows that generosity is about
lending materials, volunteering, helping to clean up without being asked. sharing
with others, offering praise and encouragement, and offering to help others. Our
students know that generosity sounds like: “Good work!”, “You can use mine.”.
“Let me help vou.”, “Can I help you with anything?” and “I can share...”.
Students are encouraged to use this language in all aspects of their learning.

Once a month, our students have the opportunity to engage in learning activities
that focus on the pillars of the Circle of Courage with other students within their
grade group. Recently, our grade 3 students decided to collect donations for the
Canadian Red Cross in support of those affected by the tragedy in Japan. In the
short span of a week they were able 1o raise a total of $478.

AREA I11

Over the past few weeks, the students of Roland Michener School prepared to
host a Citizenship Ceremony to welcome and celebrate people who have chosen
to make Canada their new home. Students asked the question. "What does it
mean to be a Canadian Citizen?" Though the answers varied. responses often
focused around the safety and security students feel in their school. their
community. the City of Calgary and our country of Canada. Many Roland



Michener students have come from elsewhere and have become Canadian
Citizens themselves, while others look forward to participating in this kind of
ceremony one day.

During the Citizenship Ceremony, students and staff came to truly understand the
meaning of citizenship. The entire learning community took part in our country's
democratic process and collectively valued our democracy. It was a time to be
reflective and a time to witness the joy of others who have chosen to take the Oath
of Citizenship and make Canada their home. For those born in Canada it was a
proud moment to stand with right hands raised and take the Oath of Citizenship
for the first time. This simple act was powerful and reminded young and old of
our responsibility as citizens to our country. As one of the platform guests stated,
"Our country gives us so much. We must also remember to give back to our
country, and this is our responsibility." In the pursuance of Ends 3: Citizenship,
students at Roland Michener School participated in a ceremony in which they
moved bevond themselves to see their roles as citizens and had the opportunity to
fully understand their response-ability to be engaged and informed citizens in our
city, in our province and in the country in which they live.

AREA IV

At W. H. Cushing Workplace School. we are working to instill citizenship within
our students through our ‘BE’ campaign. Each month we focus on an appropriate
quality decided on in each classroom. This month we are focusing on ‘BE
GIVING.” Students are encouraged to demonstrate their personalization of this
quality. Some examples of discussion topics are:

e Students think about how important it is to ‘BE GIVING” and how their
actions impact others.

e ‘BE GIVING® in the ways you can be helpful.

e ‘BE GIVING’ in the ways in which you can make a difference in your own
classroom.

e ‘BE GIVING’ to our downtown community with displays and thoughtful
sentiments for all to see as they pass by.

As students move throughout their day examples of giving are witnessed and
acknowledged by each other and the staff. Students begin to realize that even
small acts of giving make a difference in our lives.

Citizenship 1s a central focus of our inquiry work this year, “Be the change you
want to see in the world . . . Create.” Students explore the possibilities and
dreams that inspire them to be an informed and involved member of the
community. As responsible citizens our students began this month with their
project “Giving from the Heart.” Students are encouraging parents and family
members to bring in non-perishable food items during the month of February.
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These food items will be delivered to the Interfaith Food Bank. To support our
February ‘BE GIVING” campaign students also created individual valentines and
mailed each one them to veterans for Valentine’s Day. Students understand that
the contributions of our veterans should be remembered on November 11 and
throughout the vear. Students continue to explore the important role they each
play in ensuring the well-being of others. They are encouraged to dream big,
create change and ultimately leave a legacy.

AREA V

In response to the earthquake in Haiti, students at Le Roi Daniels School have
been involved in a project to support an orphanage called Heart to Heart
Orphanage. This project was initiated by our Grade 4 students in the spring of
2010. These students undertook the task of raising money and awareness of the
hardships faced by the children in Haiti. The students developed a working motto
“Kids helping Kids™ and focused on supporting the children of the orphanage.
Last spring the students’ efforts raised over $2000 and. as a result, they were
nominated for a Peace Award from the YWCA.

This year, the kindness continues and has grown to include the entire school.
Students created backpacks that were themed and then used in an activity to raise
money for the orphanage. In the last months of this year, one grade per month
will have the opportunity to choose an activity and plan and implement it to raise
funds. Some of the activities will include a Penny Drive, PJ Day. and a Water
Walk. We have purchased musical instruments and gvm equipment, and will be
purchasing a water filtration system for the use of the orphanage and the people in
the surrounding community. It is amazing to witness the compassion and
commitment of our students. staff and parents who have come together to support
the children of the Heart to Heart Orphanage in having the things we take for
granted.

Naomi E. Johnson

Chief Superintendent of Schools
CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
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To:

From:

Re:

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGUALR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

April 5, 2011
Board of Trustees
Naomi E. Johnson. Chief Superintendent of Schools

Adjustment to Annual Monitoring Schedule

Purpose: Approval

Governance Policy Reference: Governance Process 4E: Annual Agenda Planning

Originator: Naomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools

Resource Person: ~ Ronna Mosher, Director, Office of the Chief Superintendent

L

IT.

III.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended:

THAT the Board of Trustees approves the presentation of the monitoring report for
Executive Limitation 6: Instructional Program in November of each year, beginning in
the 2011-2012 school instructional vear.

ISSUE

The Board of Trustees sets the monitoring interval and timing for Executive Limitation
(EL) policies.

BACKGROUND

The schedule contained in Governance Process 4E: Annual Agenda Planning requires an
annual monitoring report in March for Executive Limitation 6: Instructional Program.

One of the data sources accessed to inform the monitoring of EL-6 is the Student Data
Mart, the data warehouse connected to the Student Information Record System (SIRS).
When a report spans two school instructional years, the resources required to analyze the
data and ensure quality is compounded. To facilitate accurate results-reporting using
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existing resources effectively and efficiently, administration is proposing the presentation
of this report take place in November of each year. This will align the monitoring report
contents with a school instructional vear.

VI. IMPLEMENTATION CONSEQUENCES

With approval of Board of Trustees for this proposed adjustment, the 2011 monitoring
report for Executive Limitation 6: Instructional Program year will be presented in March
2011 and in November of each following school instructional vear. The focus of these
monitoring reports will be on the preceding school instructional vear rather than report
date to report date.

The monitoring report for EL-6 provided in November 2011 will cover the time period
February 2011 to June 2011.

NAOMI E. JOHNSON
CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
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